Note: This report has been compressed significantly in order to be uploaded.
For the Higher Quality version of our Annual Report, kindly visit our
corporate website at www.serbadinamik.com
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GROUP MD/CEO
SUSTAINABILITY Message
We are keenly aware that we live and work in an ecosystem based on interactions with people,
the environment and sharing of precious resources. As we create wealth for shareholders,

we seek to enhance the quality of the environment around us, conserve scarce resources and
contribute to a better society.

- Dato’ Dr. Ir. Mohd Abdul Karim, Group MD/CEO
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G R O U P M D / C E O S U S TA I N A B I L I T Y M E S S A G E
I am pleased to present Serba Dinamik Holdings Berhad’s
sustainability report, which serves as a statement of
commitment to our stakeholders towards a sustainable
future. As an engineering solutions provider serving the
energy industry, we address sustainability based on balancing
the need to generate economic value against nurturing the
environment and contributing to society.
In generating economic value to sustain our business, we will
continue to focus on our core competencies in the provision of
O&M services and EPCC works within the energy industry. In
line with our vision to be a global company, we will continue to
expand our business into new foreign markets covering other
regions in addition to the markets that we are currently serving
in Central and South Asia, Middle East, Europe and Africa. This
will provide us with growth opportunities as well as mitigate
over dependency on one or a small group of countries for our
business sustainability.
We will continue to play a role in assisting our customers
to create sustainability where the provision of our MRO and
IRM engineering services serve to minimise lost time due
to machine breakdowns and extending the lifespan of their
machinery and equipment. At the same time, our services
assist our customers to reduce their carbon footprint by
operating machinery and equipment that runs efficiently.
As part of our efforts in promoting economic, environmental
and social sustainability, we will continue to expand our
investments in sustainable solutions in water supply and
power generation. Access to clean water and power supply
is critical to economic growth and the health and well-being
of the community. Hence, we will play a role in ensuring the
sustainability of these resources. This is demonstrated by
our acquisitions of minority interest in water and sewerage
treatment plants in Kuala Terengganu and several small
hydropower plants in Sabah and Perak. These hydropower
generation plants will provide sustainable source of power
to the community in remote areas of Sabah and Perak in
Malaysia.

We will continue to generate economic value for the nation as
well as contribute to the community. As an anchor company
identified by the Ministry of International Trade and Industry
("MITI") for its Vendor Development Programme ("VDP") for
engineering solutions, we have started to fulfill this important
role in nurturing and developing small and medium size
engineering companies to be competitive locally and globally.
As at end of February 2018, we have seven vendors under
our VDP. Our VDP vendors will also benefit our business as
they form part of our business ecosystem in providing total
engineering solutions to our customers.
Our efforts to ensure a sustainable and growing business is
evident with the increase of our share performance since we
went public. Our total returns to shareholders was 142.11%
within a year of our debut on the Main Board of Bursa
Securities. In comparison, FBMKLCI saw a return of 9.91%
during the same period. Furthermore, Serba Dinamik was
added into MSCI Malaysia Index and FTSE Bursa Malaysia Mid
70 index since May 2017 and June 2017 respectively.
As we continue to create wealth for our shareholders, we
give assurance to our stakeholders that we will uphold the
highest standards of quality in products and services without
compromising on our business integrity and ethics. At all
times, we will give due consideration in conserving the
environment where we operate and contribute to society
wherever possible.

Group MD/CEO

Dato’ Dr. Ir. Mohd Abdul Karim Bin Abdullah

In the same regard, we intend to establish our own targets in
minimising the adverse effects of our business activities on
the environment by making meaningful improvements to the
use of energy and water in our own operations.
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OurSUSTAINABILITY
Report
Report Schedule and Period
This report provides a summary of the activities for financial
year ended 31 December 2017, and where relevant including
early 2018.
Current Issue

: April 2018

Next Issue

: Scheduled for April 2019

Previous issue

: April 2017

Organisation Boundaries
This report covers the operations of Serba Dinamik Holdings
Berhad and its subsidiaries in Malaysia and foreign countries.
It includes majority owned subsidiaries (greater than 50%
shareholdings), unless otherwise stated. Acquisitions are
included in data sets once they are legally owned and fully
integrated into the corporate structure of Serba Group. All data
included in the report is on a group basis unless otherwise
stated. Any significant organisation changes are available in
Company Announcements on the website of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad.

Reference Guidelines
Serba Group has developed this report using United Nations
Global Compact and the Stichting Global Reporting Initiative
(GRI) G4 Guidelines.

Reporting Approach – Data

Assurance

Serba Dinamik Holdings Berhad and subsidiaries operate as
Serba Group. In this report, unless otherwise noted, “Serba
Group” or “our Group” refers to the combined group.

Financial data in this report has been independently assured
as part of the Group's annual financial audit.

The information provided in this report is mainly based on
activities during Serba Group’s FYE2017. Some information for
the first few months of 2018 may be included.
Due to the size of our Group and geographical extent of our
operations, it is at times difficult to obtain all data points.
Therefore, to the extent where possible, limitations and
assumptions are stated in the report.
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Disclaimer
This report contains past, present and moving forward
information, plans, strategies and policies.
Various
assumptions were used for the moving forward statements
and plans. Our moving forward plans may vary from actual
results.
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OurSUSTAINABILITY
Framework
Sustainability Principles and Values
•

Business growth is key to our sustainability. This
drives us to innovate and broaden our product and
service offerings, expand our markets globally and
increase our engagement with customers to better
meet their needs.

•

Our employees drive our business growth. We reward
our people at competitive market rates and help
advance their personal and career development.

•

Health and safety of our people is our top priority and
this governs the economic decisions that we make as
a business entity. As we operate within the oil, gas,
petrochemical, power generation, water and utilities
industries, health and safety of our people as well as
the general population are paramount.

•

A sustainable business must operate based on
fair business practices. This provides us with the
framework for conducting our business ethically while
complying with regulations diligently and compete
fairly.

•

Our business operates within an ecosystem
encompassing the environment and the community.
Preserving the quality of air, water and land would
allow us to operate unhindered. A thriving community
creates increased consumption which sustains our
business.

73

SERBA DINAMIK HOLDINGS BERHAD

forefront

PARTNERS

ANNUAL REPORT | 2017

O U R S U S TA I N A B I L I T Y F R A M E W O R K
Our Stakeholders Identified
As a business entity, we operate within the regulatory parameters in the countries which we conduct business, and the general
community at large. As such, our stakeholders are as follows:
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O U R S U S TA I N A B I L I T Y F R A M E W O R K

Shareholders/Investors

Customers

Employees

How we communicate

How we communicate

How we communicate

•

•
•
•
•

Sales initiation
Project reporting regularly
Exhibitions and conferences

•

•

Press releases
Company website

•
•
•
•
•

Annual and extraordinary general
meetings
Annual and quarterly reporting
Investor briefings
International investor road shows
Press conferences, releases and
interviews

•

Publications occasionally

•
•
•
•

Management visits to all local and
foreign operations
Staff meetings
Work interactions
Internal memorandums
Social activities

Shareholders’ circulars
Issues that Matter

Business Partners
How we communicate
Principals
• Business meetings
• Product training and updates
• Sales reports
Joint-Venture Partners
• Directors meetings
• Management and
operations reports

Shareholders
• Profitability
• Business growth
• Corporate governance
Customers
• Health and safety
• Cost and productivity
•
•
•

Product and service quality
Continuous innovation and prudent
use of technologies
Environment care

Employees
• Health and safety
• Equal opportunity
• Training and skills development

Business Partners
Ethical business practices
•
•
Profitability
Suppliers
• Prompt payment
• Health and safety
Government/Authority
• Regulatory compliance
• Develop industry to be globally
competitive
• Transfer of skills, knowledge and
technologies to locals
Community
• Job creation
• Environment care
• Social responsibilities

Project Partners
• Project meetings
• Progress reports
• Performance reviews

•

Suppliers

Government/Authorities

Community

How we communicate
• Registration of interests and call for
tenders
• Progress reports
• Performance reviews
• Meetings

How we communicate
•
Licence, permit, registration and
certification applications and
renewals
• Project proposals
• Compliance and audit
• Consultative meetings

How we communicate
• Press releases

Career development
and advancement
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What
WE STAND for
We are charged with the stewardship of Serba Group. As a
commercial enterprise we have an ongoing obligation to our
shareholders to create economic wealth. At the same time,
we are aware that we operate within a wider ecosystem
comprising various stakeholders, the countries that we derive
economic benefits as well as the environment that sustain all
of us.
As such, we have developed an overall framework and guiding
principles for the continuing operation and sustainability of
our business.

Our Mission for Sustainability
Our mission for a sustainable business entity is to continuously:
•

Create wealth for our shareholders with due
care and consideration to the environment and
society.

•

Expand our markets locally and globally to
drive business growth.

•

Enhance product and service quality, and drive
improvement and innovation to be the provider
of choice for our customers.

•

Maintain the highest standards of workplace
health and safety.

•

Develop our people through continuous
training and education, and recognising and
rewarding talents to meet the needs of our
customers.

•

Maintain a conducive working environment
incorporating equality and merit-based career
advancement, while providing for personal
and family needs.
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W H AT W E S TA N D F O R

Our Sustainability Value Systems
In carrying out our mission, we abide by the following value systems:
•

Shareholders: Our shareholders are owners of the enterprise. We will strive
to create wealth for our shareholders.

•

Customers: Customers are the reason we are in business and we rely on
them to sustain our business. As such, we will continuously engage with
them, provide them with quality products and services, and to help them
meet the challenges of their operating environment, and to facilitate the
creation of wealth for their shareholders.

•

Products and Services: Quality of products and services continue to be key
in meeting the needs and expectations of our customers. As such, we will
continually improve on the quality of our products and services. We embrace
improvements and innovation in our products, services, delivery systems and
processes which are critical in sustaining and growing our business.

•

People: We value the contributions of our people and recognise that our
success is dependent on their continuing development in skills, expertise
and knowledge. We will help them advance in their career and personal
development. We strive to be one of the best companies to work for and
in that respect, we will continue to promote a working environment that is
based on equality, merits, ethics, teamwork, honesty, respect, understanding
and compassion premised on an open-door policy with management.

•

Suppliers: Our suppliers are our business partners and we work with them
to effectively and efficiently meet the needs of our customers. We employ
fair practices and transparent procedures to ensure that our suppliers enjoy
mutual benefits for sustainable business partnerships.

•

Global Reach: As we strive to be a global enterprise, we will use local talents
and resources of the country where we operate. At the same time, we will
continually develop such local talents, and provide economic and social
benefits in the countries where we operate.

•

Community: We operate in an ecosystem that involves the greater community
comprising citizens and residents, government and other organisations.
To sustain our business, we will exercise corporate social responsibilities
which would include, among others, helping the less fortunate, creating job
opportunities, encouraging talents and improving social environments.

•

Environment: We recognise that we share the environment with everyone on
this earth. As an ISO 14001 certified company operating within the energy
sector, we are keenly aware of diminishing non-renewable resources and the
negative impact some of these resources may have on the environment. As
such, in planning, developing and operating our business, we aim to minimise
negative impact on the environment. Where practical, we would pro-actively
source and champion renewable energy resources and help improve the
environment for all of us.
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SUSTAINABILITY Of
Our BUSINESS
Our Moving Forward Plans
To sustain and grow our business, we will focus on four (4) areas:
-

diversify into new industries;
expand our geographic markets;
broaden and deepen our products and services;
move towards Industry 4.0.

Two (2) strategies we will employ in our growth plan are to:
- undertake strategic acquisitions and investments;
- adopt an asset ownership business model.
Our growth plan and strategies will continue to leverage from our core competencies in the provision of O&M and EPCC services, and
operating within the energy sector.

Asset Ownership Business Model

Industry Diversiﬁcation

Investments & Acquisitions

Market Expansion

Broadening & Deepening
Products & Services

SERBA DINAMIK HOLDINGS BERHAD
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S U S TA I N A B I L I T Y O F O U R B U S I N E S S
Our Growth Plans
Industry diversifications
While we will continue to focus on the energy industry which
is our core competency, we will also invest in other industries
with the aim of creating new revenue streams. This will
provide us with additional growth opportunities and at the
same time mitigate over reliance on any one industry.
In February 2017, through our minority acquisition in
Konsortium Amanie JV Sdn Bhd (Konsortium Amanie), we
participated on the development of 120 million litres per
day (MLD) and a 28 MLD water treatment plant as part of
the Kuala Terengganu Utara Water Supply Scheme for the
State Government of Terengganu, Malaysia. This project
provides us with an entry into a new utility sector using
our core competency in EPCC. In addition to the revenue
derived from undertaking the EPCC project which amounted
to approximately RM289.7 million, we will have recurrent
earnings from our minority interest in Konsortium Amanie.
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S U S TA I N A B I L I T Y O F O U R B U S I N E S S
Market Expansion
We will adopt a two-prong approach in our market expansion
growth plan. The first prong is to enlarge our business in
existing markets while the second prong is to venture into
new geographic markets. In venturing into new geographic
markets, we will grow from our existing markets to nearby
countries or regions.

Expanding into new foreign markets is in line with our vision to
be a global company. In FYE2017, Middle East was our largest
contributor at RM1.61 billion or 59.04% to our Group’s total
revenue. From this existing geographic market base, we will
continue to intensify our business growth efforts in the Middle
East and nearby regions.

In this respect, our revenue from Saudi Arabia grew from
RM15.96 million for FYE2015 to RM303.67 million for
FYE2017, representing approximately 1,800% growth.
Similarly, our revenue from Bahrain grew from RM5.63 million
for FYE2015 to RM341.21 million in FYE2017, representing
approximately 6,000% growth.

With our experience in the Middle East, we continued to make
in roads into other continents. In 2017, we made our foray into
the African continent when we entered into a Joint Venture
Agreement with Junaco (T) Limited for the establishment and
operation of a chlor-alkali plant in Tanzania.

Using our Existing Markets to explore opportunities in Africa,
Australasia and the Americas

Current Presence
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S U S TA I N A B I L I T Y O F O U R B U S I N E S S
Broadening and deepening our products and services
Our core competencies are in O&M and EPCC. Within O&M,
we provide MRO of rotating equipment, and IRM of static
equipment and structures. Deepening our products and
services includes moving into specialised areas that we are
currently not doing within our core competencies. Examples
include undertaking MRO of hot section of gas turbines,
and IRM of rotor blades of turbines. These services require
specialised skills, knowledge and technologies, as well as
requiring special test equipment and facilities.
Deepening our products and services may include fabricating
critical and high value parts to complement our MRO and IRM
services. This will require acquisition of the expertise as well
as investment in machinery and equipment to undertake such
tasks.

and coatings services as part of corrosion prevention system
for plant equipment. Having the expertise to provide these
services in-house will enable us to offer a wider solution to
our customers as well as reduce our costs.
Broadening our products and services focuses on using our
existing resources to venture into new areas, especially in
different industries. One example is to undertake MRO of
large diesel engines for the marine industry. Large ships
and vessels require rotating equipment for propulsion and
power generation. Large ships could include container and
bulk cargo ships, oil and gas carries, and passenger cruise
ships. Large vessels could include off-shore supply vessels
to service the oil and gas industry, and patrol boats for border
security as well as marine police.

We acquired KB Engineering Coatings Sdn Bhd (“KB
Engineering”) in February 2018 as our strategy to leverage
on KB Engineering’s expertise in providing blasting, painting
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S U S TA I N A B I L I T Y O F O U R B U S I N E S S
Move Towards Industry 4.0
In the delivery of our products and services, we will continuously strive to maximise from automation, technologies and innovations.
To this end, we will commence on a programme to upgrade and innovate our product and service deliveries in line with the aspirations
of Industry 4.0. We aim to use the following technologies in the delivery of our services:
•

Virtual, augmented and mixed reality for more effective, efficient and timely provision of our MRO and IRM services;

•

Internet of Things for real time monitoring and measurement data, and transmission to a command centre for effective project
supervision, and remote collaboration with subject experts;

•

Cloud computing for collaboration with customers and suppliers, and storage of project information and performance data and
metrics for analytics, benchmarks and case studies for future references;

•

Digitalisation of facilities, assets and processes to facilitate:
• virtual, augmented and mixed reality;
• collaboration with customers, suppliers, experts and engineers on the ground;
• training and education;
• safety and emergency procedures;
• integration with the collection and analysis of data, metrics, benchmarks and case studies.
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S U S TA I N A B I L I T Y O F O U R B U S I N E S S
Our Strategies to Support Growth
Strategic investment and acquisition
Our growth plans will incorporate organic growth using our
internal human capital resources. However, we will also
adopt a faster growth trajectory through strategic investments
and acquisitions. Target investments and acquisitions would
include those that can provide us with diversification into
new or complementary industries, facilitate expansion of our
geographic markets, broaden and deepen our products and
services, as well as add value to our business.
In this respect, we have acquired KB Engineering , a company
that has the expertise in providing blasting, painting and
coating services as part of corrosion prevention system
for plant and machinery. Currently, for blasting and coating
services, we will sub-contract these services out as we do not
have the facilities in some of our service centres. However,
with this acquisition, we will gradually bring this services
in-house and add value to our operation and maintenance
services.
Asset ownership business model
We have recently adopted an asset ownership model as one
of the strategies to grow and sustain our business. We aim to
utilise our existing competency in O&M and EPCC to develop,
operate and maintain assets. One example is our current
compress natural gas (CNG) Plant in Muaro Jambi, Sumatra,
Indonesia and small gas power plant in Ambon Island,
Indonesia, where we developed, own, operate and maintain
the assets.
Our asset ownership model also includes our recent acquisition
of minority interests in water utility plants, chemical plant as
well as small hydropower plants to provide us with possible
recurrent income once they become operational.
In this respect, we have acquired minority stakes in the
following:
•

•

•

In early 2018, we signed an MoA to acquire a 40%
equity stake in Maju Renewable Energy Sdn Bhd.
Maju RE (Talang) Sdn Bhd and Maju RE (Temenggor)
Sdn Bhd. These three companies have been
approved by the Sustainable Energy Development
Authority Malaysia to develop hydropower plants with
a total of 60 megawatts (MW) generating capacity.
They have also entered into Renewable Energy
PowerPurchase Agreements with Tenaga Nasional
Berhad to supply electricity to the national power
grid. The hydropower plants to be developed will
be located within the Temenggor and Belum Forest
Reserves in Perak, which comprise a 27MW, 19MW
and 14MW hydropower plant in Singgor,Talang and
Temenggor respectively. With the acquisitions, we
were also awarded the EPCC and O&M contracts for
the three hydropower plants.

In 2017, we also acquired land in Pengerang, Johor for
development of our Pengerang eco-Industrial Park (PeIP) and
Pengerang International Commercial Centre (PICC). In PeIP
we will establish MRO and IRM Global Centres of Excellence
together with a Plant Turnaround Village specifically to
service PETRONAS’ USD27 billion investment in its Petroleum
Integrated Complex including its Refinery and Petrochemical
Integrated Development Project (RAPID) and six other
associated facilities in Pengerang, Johor. Our PICC is aimed
at providing supporting commercial, community, hospitality
and residential facilities to complement our PeIP as well as
PETRONAS’ PIC developments.

In early 2017, we took a 40% equity interest in
Konsortium Amanie which enabled us to venture
into the water treatment sector. Together with this
acquisition, we were awarded the EPCC and O&M of
the water and sewerage treatment plants.
In 2017, we took a 25% equity stake in Sufini Holdings
Ltd., which will be the owner of a chlor-alkali plant
in Tanzania. Together with this acquisition, we were
awarded the EPCC and O&M of the chlor-alkali plant.
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S U S TA I N A B I L I T Y O F O U R B U S I N E S S
Total Engineering Solution Provider
Our business activities are focused on assets. The types
of assets that we deal with are mainly industrial plants and
facilities, as well as the multitude of machinery and equipment
that are used for manufacturing and processing products, and
providing energy in the form of electricity.
Our growth plan to broaden and deepen our portfolio of
products and services is mapped against the lifecycle of an
asset. This is depicted in the diagram below:

Typical Asset Lifecycle

An asset starts with the design phase, after which it is built.
It is then brought into operations which will require regular
maintenance for optimum performance. Over a period of time,
the asset needs to be upgraded or remanufactured to extend
its useful life. Eventually the asset becomes uneconomical
to operate or is obsolete, in which case it will need to be
decommissioned.
In line with our intention to provide products and services
across the lifecycle of an asset, we pursued a complementary
business growth strategy in asset ownership. Our asset
ownership business model is ideal as it enables us to complete
the typical asset lifecycle, where we will own and develop the
asset, operate, maintain and at a much later stage, upgrade
and if need be, decommission the asset.
To this end, we have successfully positioned ourselves in
various phases of asset ownership and lifecycle as depicted
in the diagram below.

Our position within the asset ownership and lifecycle business model

EPCC
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Creating ECONOMIC VALUE
CREATING ECONOMIC VALUE
Our Contribution to Economies and Beyond
We are proud of our contribution to the economies of the
countries which are home to our operations. The scale of
our operations enables us to make significant and long-term
economic contribution in the following manner:
•
•

Direct economic contribution of our
business;
Taxes to governments in the various
countries where we operate.

Our Economic Contribution for FYE2017
Payment to suppliers

RM2,206 million
Payment to employees

RM69 million
Payment to providers of capital
and government

2.40

RM

billion

RM124 million

Our business operations create jobs and stimulate production and consumption of goods and services. This is achieved through
our supply chain where we purchase goods and services to operate our business. Similarly, we are part of the value chain where
our products and services are, in turn used to create value for our customers. In combination, our supply chain and value-added
chain create multiplier effects where wealth moves from one sector of the economy to the next, thus benefitting a wide circle of the
commercial and consumer community.
The larger our revenue base, the higher the quantum of benefits to the various economies and communities in the countries where
we operate.

Economic Distribution Value

FYE2017
RM’000

Economic value generated
Revenue and other income

2,726,501

Economic value distributed
Operating costs¹

2,206,312

Wages and benefits to employees²

69,062

Payments to providers of capital³

106,491

Payments to government4

17,854

Economic value retained

326, 782

Aggregated economic contribution

2,399,719

1

Operating costs are related to expenses recognised in the financial statements. This includes expenditure paid to suppliers, contractors, and
professional fees for provision of technical consultancy and related fees, and exclude employee/personnel expenses such as wages and
benefit, payments to governments, depreciation and taxes.

2

Wages and benefits to employees include wages and salaries of personnel directly related to contracts/projects, and technical personnel,
as well as full time employees from various departments including managerial and professional, clerical, administrative, sales and
marketing and others.

3

Payments to providers of capital refer to dividents paid to shareholders of our Group, and interest payments comprising interest expense
on borrowings for project financing and finance acquisition of companies.

4

Payments to government refer to payments of corporate income tax.
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C R E AT I N G E C O N O M I C VA L U E
Our Foreign Earnings
We serve customers across a number of regions:
•

South East Asia (Malaysia and Indonesia)

•

Central and South Asia (Malaysia, Turkmenistan,
Indonesia and India);

•

Middle East (Qatar, Bahrain, Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia, United Arab Emirates, Oman and Kuwait);

•

Europe (United Kingdom).

Our earnings derived from foreign markets contribute to the
economic value of Malaysia. Our foreign earnings contribute
to the balance of payment as well as create wealth for the
nation and strengthen our currency as our foreign profits are
repatriated back to Malaysia.

RM1. 85 billion
Our Foreign Earnings in FYE2017

UAE
United
Kingdom

Bahrain

Turkmenistan

Qatar
Kuwait
Saudi
Arabia

Oman

India
Indonesia

Malaysia
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C R E AT I N G E C O N O M I C VA L U E
Our Vendor Development Programme
On 22 December 2015, we were appointed by Malaysia’s
Ministry of International Trade and Industry (MITI) to be an
anchor company for a vendor development programme (VDP).
Our role as an anchor company is to assist in nurturing and
developing Malaysian Bumiputera entrepreneurs relating to
MRO of rotating equipment and IRM of static equipment and
structures.
In 2016, we launched our VDP programme. By end of 2017,
there were seven vendors under our VDP. We are committed
to operate our VDP to support small and medium enterprises
(SME) in their pursuit of excellence and contribute to the
economic growth of the Malaysian industrial community.

Creating and Sustaining Jobs
•

Building SME capabilities by developing
human capital covering entrepreneurship,
technological and engineering expertise, and
product development capabilities within the
engineering sector for the oil and gas, and
power generation industries.

•

Initiate and develop training programmes
to encourage on-the-job training and skills
development programme with targeted
efforts to meet international standards.

•

Encourage
people
development
by
creating linkages with global suppliers for
technology, skills and knowledge transfer.

Developing Small and Medium Enterprises
•

Provide opportunities for local SME to
participate in the engineering solutions sector
including MRO of rotating equipment and IRM
of static equipment and structures.

•

Nurture SME to be globally competitive to
secure foreign earnings to benefit the local
economy.

•

Create business transactions to contribute
directly to economic value generation to bring
wealth to the local economy.

•

Fiscal contribution from property and corporate
taxes to government revenue which provides
support to public infrastructure and service
development for the local communities.

87

SERBA DINAMIK HOLDINGS BERHAD

forefront

PARTNERS

ANNUAL REPORT | 2017

Memberships
We are a member of the Malaysian Oil and Gas Services
Council ("MOGSC") and Institute of Materials Malaysia
("IMM").
MOGSC is an association that represents and promotes the
interest of Malaysian oil and gas service providers. As a
member, we are involved in promoting the growth of the oil
and gas industry, where a growing industry will benefit the
country, industry players as well as our business.
IMM is a professional society that promotes honourable
practices, professional ethics and encourages education in
materials science, technology and engineering. Our Group
CEO, Dato’ Karim, is the council member for IMM for 2016
to 2018. As a member, we are involved in the progress and
development of knowledge in materials science, technology
and engineering.
Our Group CEO Dato’ Karim is also a Chairman of the Vibration
Committee of IMM where he is spearheading the development
of local knowledge and certification of ISO18436 compliant
practitioners in vibration analysis, a powerful diagnostic tool
in asset integrity management of rotating equipment, static
equipment, piping, and foundation resonance conditions. The
said certification is recognised internationally. Serba Group
has sponsored many technology related seminars, exhibitions,
and industrial visits for vibration analysis in support of this
advanced diagnostic technology.
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PETROS
In early 2018, the state-owned Petroleum Sarawak Berhad
(PETROS) was launched with the aim to protect Sarawak’s
interest in the oil and gas industry. According to the Chief
Minister of Sarawak, Datuk Patinggi (Dr) Abang Haji Abdul
Rahman Zohari Bin Tun Datuk Abang Haji Openg, the formation
of PETROS means the Federal Government’s authority on
oil and oilfields and the development of mineral resources,
is subject to the State’s rights to grant mining rights for oil
and natural gas within Sarawak. PETROS’ aim is to protect
Sarawak’s interest in the oil and gas industry will provide new
opportunities for local oil and gas players to capitalise on.
We are a Sarawak local company where we established and
started our operations in Bintulu, Sarawak in 1993. We hope
to be able to play our part in the development of Sarawak’s oil
and gas resources by cooperating with PETROS.
During the launch of PETROS in March 2018 attended by
approximately 540 participants, our Group CEO, Dato’ Karim
was one of four session presenters where he shared our
entrepreneurship journey from “Local to Global”. This is
clearly demonstrated where our initial revenue was all derived
from Sarawak and by FYE2017, 68.08% of our revenue was
contributed by foreign countries. Currently, our operations and
customer base are spread accross South East Asia Central and
South Asia, Middle East, Europe, and the African continent.
(Source: https://feedyeti.com/hashtag.php?q=PETROS)

The launching of PETROS will open up new opportunities for Serba Dinamik because
besides existing national oil companies and production sharing contract holders like
Nippon Oil, Shell and Murphy Oil, it is another entity which we can provide services to.

- Dato’ Karim said to The Borneo Post during an interview.
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C R E AT I N G E C O N O M I C VA L U E

Our Supply Chain
Our relationship with suppliers is critical to our business
operations and sustainability. In the respective countries
where we operate, we seek to work with suppliers that share
our value systems and comply with our supplier’s code of
conduct including, among others, corporate governance, fair
and legal practices, health and safety, transparency, labour
laws, human rights and environmental compliance. Through
engagements with suppliers and assessment of our supply
chain, we will continue to improve our performance and
create shared value which will be mutually beneficial.
In 2017, we purchased goods and services from more than
435 suppliers. These are mainly for the purchase of parts,
consumables, tools, equipment and services.
We will continue to support local suppliers, where possible,
in the respective countries where we operate. In Malaysia, as
we are charged with the role of an anchor company for VDP
in relation to MRO of rotating equipment and IRM of static
equipment and structures, we will continue to give priority and
actively support Malaysian-owned companies.

435
Our active suppliers
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Business ETHICS &
GOVERNANCE
Business Ethics
We are proud of the reputation that we are fair in our
business dealings. This is enshrined in our code of business
which we promote when conducting our business.
Our code of business ethics is integral to our operations
especially when we deal with external parties. We are
vigilant in ensuring that all employees comply with our code
of business ethics. Compliance to these principles is also
expected from our business partners, suppliers, contractors,
consultants, representatives as well as other intermediaries.
Managing Grievances
We continually promote a culture of communication and
transparency in our work place. This is designed to provide
a platform for our staff to raise any issues, grievances or
concerns regarding the way we operate, as well as how
staff interacts internally. We encourage our people to take
their concerns directly with line managers, supervisors,
human resource manager or if the issues are not resolved
satisfactory and expediently, to bring forward those issues
or concerns to senior management.

Code of Business Conduct
In this respect, we have incorporated our business
ethics, policies, core values and principles into our
Code of Business Conduct. This sets the standard on
business practices, behaviour and conduct that we
expect from our employees in their daily activities and
dealings internally and with external parties. All new
employees will be issued with our Code of Business
Conduct as part of their orientation on working with us.
Anti-Corruption
We firmly believe that corruption in any form diminishes
the quality of business decisions and actions. It leads
to non-optimal results that threaten the sustainability
of our business. We are committed to providing a
working environment that is free from the influence
of corruption and this applies to our dealings with all
stakeholders.

Whistleblower Policy
We will institute a system for handling internal and external
complains and grievances. This will apply to internal staff as
well as external stakeholders including business partners,
customers, suppliers and contractors. All complains and
grievances will be formally acknowledged, investigated
and documented with recommended remedial actions. All
these will be conducted on a confidential basis. To maintain
confidentiality, we will provide an online facility to receive
as well as create an audit trail of follow-up actions and final
resolution or decision.

We will institute a whistleblower policy which
encourages reporting of misconduct or wrongful acts
among our employees. We will also provide protection
to whistleblowers. This is part of our overall system of
conducting our business ethically and corruption free.

Governance of the Code
In order to promote an ethical work environment, we have a
Compliance Officer in our head office in Malaysia to monitor
work environment and business practices. The Compliance
Officer reports to the Ethics Advisory Committee comprising
General Managers from various departments including Human
Resources, Finance, Corporate Services, Corporate Governance
and Legal Affairs. The responsibility of the Committee is to
provide advice, guidance and resolve any disputes relating
to the Code of Business Conduct. Any serious issues arising
would be reported to the Audit Committee.
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ENVIRONMENTAL
Conciousness
Our Approach
As we create wealth for shareholders, we interact with the
environment. We are greatly aware that the environment is
a shared resource which affects every living being on earth.
What we choose to do with the environment would eventually
affect the sustainability of our business. This is most important
as we operate within the oil and gas, power generation
industry, and water utilities industries. Our ability to preserve
the sanctity of the environment and possibly reverse some of
the ravages on the environment will hold us in high esteem
by our customers as well as the local community. Generating
goodwill will contribute a long way to the sustainability of our
business.
We are also aware that we are part of the value chain in
extracting, processing and using non-renewable resources in
the form of fossil fuel such as oil and gas. While the world
today continues to be heavily dependent on fossil fuels, we
will actively pursue alternative renewable and clean energy.
As a consumer of environmental resources like energy and
water, we will continue to play our part to reduce usage to
conserve scare resources, and to minimise our carbon
footprint.
We are committed to address challenges and opportunities
in our natural surroundings where we conduct our business.
This will enable us to contribute to environmental value and
minimise damage to the environment.
We are an ISO 14001 certified organisation. We strive to
maintain and adhere to sound environmental management
system with the following approaches:
•

Participate in developing renewable energy
to create environment sustainability and
economic value.

•

Implement
environmental
management
programmes including creating awareness and
consciousness of the importance of preserving
the environment.

•

Management review and monitoring to
meet environmental aspects in minimising
usage and consumption of energy and
water to reduce impact on the environment.

•

Formulate energy efficiency initiatives in
our operational facilities to maintain energy
efficiency level.
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Our international environmental standards are detailed in
our health, safety, environment (HSE) control framework.
Our projects and operational facilities comply with local
environmental regulations and internal standards.
With our international presence, our capabilities to streamline
work processes with clearly defined responsibilities will
contribute to greater efficiency and bottom line by facilitating
environmental initiatives and improvements. In 2016, we
received “The Green Era Award for Sustainability” in France
from the Association Otherways Management and Consulting,
in recognition of sustainable practices and outstanding
achievements in environmental protection.
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E N V I R O N M E N TA L C O N C I O U S N E S S
Water Conservation
We place emphasis in preserving valuable resources and
strive to manage our water usage responsibly. Through
the introduction of water initiatives, control and monitoring
programme, we intend to educate our employees in reducing
wastage of water and streamline the approach in meeting our
internal environmental standards.

Water
Consumption
21,463 m³ of water was
consumed from our operational
facilities in Malaysia for FYE2017.

Note: Data covers our head office in Shah Alam, and operational facilities in
Malaysia.

Our recent investment and EPCC of a water and sewerage
treatment plant project in Terengganu, Malaysia will improve
our appreciation of the value and scarcity of clean water. We
recognise that we need to do more in terms of recycling,
reusing and reducing the use of scare resources in other parts
of our business, as well as internally among our people.
Waste Management
As a service provider, we generate an immaterial amount
of scheduled waste including spent lubricating oils for our
machines and equipment, empty paint containers, and used
rags from our cleaning and maintenance operations at our
service centres. The disposal of this type of waste is handled
by licenced waste management companies.

Energy Efficiency and Management
We plan to adopt an energy management system to facilitate
our business operations to minimise energy usage to reduce
greenhouse gas emission.

In addition, we continue to place emphasis on the 3R concept
to reduce, reuse and recycle with the aim of minimising waste
generation. To create awareness and educate our staff, we
introduce waste management training and also engage our
employees through emails on reduction of paper consumption,
reuse of paper and stationery, and initiate waste sorting and
disposal to promote recycling.

Our energy usage for FYE2017 in our operational facilities in
Malaysia is as follows:

Electricity
Consumption
1,163 MWh of electricity was
consumed from our operational
facilities in Malaysia for FYE2017
Note: Data covers our head office in Shah Alam, and operational facilities in
Malaysia.
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E N V I R O N M E N TA L C O N C I O U S N E S S
Greenhouse Gas Emission

Our carbon management plan entails carbon neutral practices to
minimise the impact on the environment.

CARBON NEUTRAL

Action plan towards
emission neutral practice

Computation of
emissions

Management &
employee commitments
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Consensus on
emission reduction
target

CO2 inventory
Plan
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E N V I R O N M E N TA L C O N C I O U S N E S S
Carbon Dioxide Emissions from Vehicles

Carbon Dioxide Emissions from Power Usage

We adopt the emission factor method that considers carbon
content of fuel used in our company vehicles to calculate
our contribution to greenhouse gas (GHG) emission. This
is computed based on default value of emission factor. The
fuel consumption is based on total fuel purchases for motor
vehicles owned by our Group.

The computation of CHG emissions analysis below is derived
from the total consumption of electricity using the published
national emission factors for 2014.

Direct GHG
Emissions

Scope 1

1,691 tonnes of carbon dioxide
emission from consumption
of petrol and diesel in Malaysia
(FYE2017).

Indirect GHG
Emissions

Scope 2

748 tonnes of carbon dioxide
emission from electricity usage of
our operational facilities in Malaysia
(FYE2017).

Note: Data covers our head office in Shah Alam, and operational facilities in
Malaysia.

Note: Data covers our head office in Shah Alam, and operational facilities in
Malaysia.
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Our WORKFORCE
&SOCIETY
Developing Our Workforce

Our Approach to Human Rights

We place significant emphasis on improved work performance
as part of our business sustainability. As such, we encourage
our employees to develop their competencies and
qualifications to help them to improve their job performance.

We are committed to the preservation and protection of
human rights in our supply chain.

In 2017, we invested approximately RM179,000 on both inhouse and external technical training as part of our continuing
development in our most valued resource - our people. This is
equivalent to RM439 per employee in 2017.

RM179,000
Our expenditure in health and
safety, and technical training for
employees in Malaysia.

407

Our technical workforce
comprising engineers, technical
and service personnel, as well as
quality control/HSE personnel in
Malaysia.

2016

2017

Number of participants

125

162

Expenditure¹

31%

29%

68

144

27%

32%

Number of participants

113

101

Expenditure¹

42%

39%

Occupational health
and safety training

Technical training
Number of participants
Expenditure¹
Other non-technical training

¹

Percentage is calculated based on expenditure of the
respective training programmes over the Group total training
expenditure in Malaysia.
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As a global engineering solutions provider, we face issues
relating to working conditions in our foreign operations. Part
of our business operations includes utilising contractors and
their workers in building and construction related works in
developing countries. We recognise that the safeguarding of
human rights extend to our suppliers and part of our corporate
social responsibility is to conduct an annual review of our
supply chain including contractors and suppliers to assess
their safety procedures and working conditions.
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OUR WORKFORCE AND SOCIETY
Gender Equality
We will continue to support gender equality by providing
equal opportunity without discrimination. Our Group’s total
female employees’ composition increased from 18% in
2016 to 19% in 2017. The growth came mainly from our
operations in Malaysia.
Malaysian
Although the proportion of women in our operations in
Malaysia had increased from 18% in 2014 to 21% in 2017,
we recognise that more work needs to be done to create
gender equality in our operations.
Of the 21% of women employees, 53% were in clerical
and administrative positions, followed by 31% in technical,
supervisory, and sales and marketing positions while
the remaining 16% were in managerial and professional
positions. As such, we do have a gender imbalance in
technical and supervisory roles, as well as in managerial
and professional departments.
Foreign Operations
Aside from our Malaysia operations, we face more of a
challenging environment in promoting gender diversity in
our foreign operations where female workers accounted
for very low proportion within our Group. This is particularly
prevalent in our Middle East operations.
We are stepping up our actions to improve the imbalance by
increasing the employment of women across all areas of our
organisation. To this end, we have introduced some internal
initiatives to attract and retain our pool of talented women
in our Group. Some of these initiatives include developing
and accelerating the career of female employees who can
demonstrate leadership position in their areas of operation.
In addition, we recognise that to seek an equal balance
of men and women in our Group is to build the pipeline
of potential female employees. Part of our initiatives for
2018 is to give seminars and talks targeted at engineering
students in tertiary educational institutions as well as
vocational students with the intention to attract potential
female employees to join our Group.
Ratio of female employees in Malaysia
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OUR WORKFORCE AND SOCIETY
The tables below summarises our workforce over the past four years

2015

2016

2017

316
68
384
18

395
106
501
21

478
122
600
20

562
151
713
21

180
21
201
10

257
30
287
10

206
33
239
13

226
31
257
12

Proportion of female directors (%)						

3
3
0

3
3
0

6
1
7
14

6
1
7
14

Age group of employees in Malaysia 			
< 30 years old (No.)							
30 – 40 years of age (No.)							
41 – 50 years of age (No.)							
>50 years of age (No.)							

211
91
60
22

257
126
83
35

296
154
101
49

329
199
121
64

52
83
41
25

67
126
75
19

77
55
88
19

65
91
74
27

									2014
Gender Diversity in Malaysia		
		
Male employees (No.)							
Female employees (No.)							
Total employees in Malaysia (No.) 					
Proportion of female employees (%)						
				
Gender Diversity in Foreign Operations
			
Male employees (No.)							
Female employees (No.)							
Total employees in foreign operations (No.)					
Proportion of female employees (%)						
				
Gender Composition - Board of Directors				
Male Directors (No.)							
Female Directors (No.)							
Total board members (No.)							

				
Age group of employees in foreign operations				
< 30 years old (No.)							
30 – 40 years of age (No.)							
41 – 50 years of age (No.)							
>50 years of age (No.)							
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OUR WORKFORCE AND SOCIETY

2015

2016

2017

585
384
183
9
9
-

788
501
265
12
6
4

839
600
208
21
6
4

970
713
228
21
6
2

67

86

99

131

44
370
23
75
6
0

47
500
33
106
8
8

52
523
36
113
8
8

77
556
38
153
5
0

23
4
16

19
2
11

15
5
12

16
24
19

								2014
By Location
						
Malaysia								
Indonesia							
Bahrain								
United Kingdom							
Brunei								
By Job Function 			
Managerial and professional						
Technical and supervisory				
Engineers						
Technical and service personnel				
Quality control / HSE personnel				
Clerical and administrative						
Sales and marketing						
Others								
Employee Turnover Rate				
Malaysia Operations (%)						
Foreign Operations (%)						
Group (%)							

Benefits and Remuneration

RM69.06 million

We recognise that we have to offer competitive benefits and
remuneration to attract new talent, retain as well as reward the
contribution of our people. In this respect, all our employees
are offered a competitive base salary, short and medium-term
incentive plans, and retirement scheme.

Total compensations and benefits
to employees for FYE2017.

Our compensation framework is designed to motivate and
retain employees.

Our total workforce including
permanent and
contractual employees for
FYE2017.

970

99
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OUR WORKFORCE AND SOCIETY
5.9.5

Occupational Health and Safety

Occupational health and safety is an integral part of our
business operations and our customers expects the highest
safety standards. As such, we have inculcated a culture
that focuses on health and safety. Among others, all new
employees and contractors working at our service centres and
customers’ sites have to undergo formalised internal safety
briefing. Visitors to our service centres are also provided with
safety procedures. In addition, safety also extends to attire,
footwear and headgear. All workers at our service centres
are required to wear company issued work clothes, footwear,
hardhats, goggles and where necessary ear plugs. These are
specially designed to offer protection for the wearer.

11.9 million
(Malaysia)
16.4 million
(Foreign Countries)
Cumulative person-hours without loss time injury
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OUR WORKFORCE AND SOCIETY

Health, Safety and Environment (HSE) Awards from PETRONAS group of companies 2008 - 2017
PETRONAS Methanol Labuan 2008		
HSE award for maintenance of rotating equipment for 13th August to 3rd 		
					September shutdown.
PETRONAS Group 2009			
HSE and sustainability awards for minor contractor safety category for inculcating
					
quality and HSE into every work process.
PETRONAS Penapisan (Melaka) 2010		
HSE and sustainability development awards for enhancement of HSE and quality
					
during hydrogen production unit 1 revamp project.
					
Certificate of appreciation for completion of cogeneration plant (heat recovery
					
steam generator) certificate of fitness renewal with 15,000 person-hours without
					
lost time injury and delay.
PETRONAS Chemicals Ammonia 2015		
Appreciation award of excellent performance in unplanned shutdown in terms of
					schedule, HSE and quality.
					

Contractor outstanding behaviour and recognition award for outstanding 		

					performance in HSE.
.
Other HSE Awards 2007 - 2017
Appreciation for services offered during plant shutdown where work was 		
BP Chemicals 2007			
completed safely without any minor or major incidents.
					
Ethylene Malaysia and
Award for achievement of 963,000 safe person-hours of work in 4th turnaround
Polyethylene Malaysia 2008			
2008 and 5.35 million contractor’s safe person-hours without lost time injury since
					
					2004.
SME OSH award with three star rating.
Malaysia Society for 			
Occupational Safety And Health 2010		
METIX Malaysia 2015			
Award for achievement of 13,028 safe person-hours without lost time injury 		
towards the completion of the Sakura Ferroalloy project which has reached a total
					
					
of 2 million safe person-hours without lost time injury.

								 2015		

2016

2017

Health and safety 		
Loss Time Injury – Group1						0		0		0
Total person-hours completed - Malaysia operations2 (No. of hours)		
1,170,137
1,467,702
1,137,197
2
Total person-hours completed - Foreign operations (No. of hours)		
2,003,915
2,790,991
2,734,522

¹
²

Data includes both Malaysia and foreign operations. No fatalities were recorded in loss time injury.
Refer to the total person-hours completed for the respective year of operations.

101

SERBA DINAMIK HOLDINGS BERHAD

forefront

PARTNERS

ANNUAL REPORT | 2017

Our CORPORATE
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES
Charitable Activities and Donations
Being a socially responsible company, we believe in giving
back to the community. Part of our contribution goes to
supporting institutions such as orphanages and non-profit
government bodies.
In total, we have disbursed RM363,080 to orphanages and
non-profit government bodies between 2015 and 2017.

BUILDING
STRONGER
Relationships With
The Community

								

2015

2016

2017

Supporting the Underprivileged - Orphanages 		
Amount Disbursed to Teratak Nur Barakah (RM)							
21,000
36,000
36,000
Amount Disbursed to Rumah Amal Al Firdaus (RM)						
21,000
36,000
36,000
Amount Disbursed to Rumah Perlindungan Nur Hati (RM)						
21,000
36,000
36,000
Amount Disbursed to Baitulrahmah Hidayah Centre (RM)						58,080
Amount Disbursed to Lembaga Kebajikan Anak-Anak Yatim Sarawak (PERYATIM) (RM)						
10,000
			
Supporting Non-Profit Government bodies
		
Amount Disbursed to Tabung Kebajikan Warga Kerja BDA (RM)				
15,000
Amount Disbursed to Pertubuhan Kebajikan Islam Malaysia (“PERKIM”) (RM)			
1,000
Total monetary contributions							
63,000
134,000
166,080

Rumah Amal Al-Firdaus
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O U R C O R P O R AT E S O C I A L R E S P O N S I B I L I T I E S
Community Programmes
We recognise that investing in the community goes beyond the measurement of dollars, hence part of our “Building Stronger
Relationships with the Community” programme is to contribute our efforts, time and involvement in activities that matter most to
the community. This includes visitations to orphanages and old folk’s homes where we can bring communities together in unity by
participating in breaking of fast.

Shopping spree for orphans in preparation for Hari Raya in
Labuan

Visitation to Hospital Nyabau during Ramadhan period in
Bintulu, Sarawak

Visitation to old folks home in Kuala Kubu Bharu, Selangor

'Gotong-Royong' for fire tragedy which affect 7 houses in
Kampung Sebuan Besar Jepak in Bintulu, Sarawak
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Corporate GOVERNANCE
STATEMENT
INTRODUCTION

(c)

The Corporate Governance Overview Statement (“CG
Statement”) seeks to provide investors with vital insights into
the corporate governance practices of the Group.

to identify principal risks and ensuring the
implementation of appropriate internal controls and
risks mitigation to effectively monitor and manage
these risks;

(d)

to prepare for succession planning, including
appointing, training, fixing the remuneration of, and
where appropriate, replacing key management;

(e)

to oversee the development and implementation of a
shareholder communication policy for the Group;

(f)

to review the adequacy and the integrity of the
management information and internal controls
systems, including systems for compliance with
applicable laws, regulations, rules, directives, and
guidelines; and

(g)

to ensure that appropriate policies are in place,
adopted effectively and are regularly reviewed in light
of changing circumstances.

In this CG Statement, the Board of Directors (“Board”) reports
on the manner the Group has adopted and applied the
principle and best practices as set out in the Main Market
Listing Requirements (“MMLR”) of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad (“Bursa Malaysia”) and the Malaysian Code on
Corporate Governance 2017 (“MCCG 2017”).
The status of the Group’s application to MCCG 2017 are
disclosed in our Corporate Governance Report which is
accessible to the public at the Group’s website
www.serbadinamik.com.

ROLES & OPERATION OF THE BOARD
The Board is responsible for the overall governance of the
Group, the responsibility to exercise reasonable & proper
care of the Group’s resources for the best interests of its
shareholders as well as to safeguard the Group’s assets.
In discharging its roles and duties effectively, the Board is
guided by its Board Charter, a document which set out the
principles and guidelines that are to be applied by the Board
and the Board Committees.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
Board Size & Composition
The Board currently comprises seven (7) Members as follows:
No Name of Director

Designation

1

Dato’ Mohamed Nor Bin
Abu Bakar

2

Tengku Dato’ Seri
Hasmuddin Bin
Tengku Othman

Independent
Non-Executive Director

The Board Charter is accessible to the public at the Group’s
website www.serbadinamik.com.

3

Sharifah Irina Binti
Syed Ahmad Radzi

Independent
Non-Executive Director

To ensure the effective discharge of its functions, the Board
endeavors on the following responsibilities:

4

Hasman Yusri Bin Yusoff

Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director

5

Abdul Kadier Sahib

Non-Independent
Non-Executive Director

6

Dato’ Dr. Ir.
Mohd Abdul Karim
Bin Abdullah

Non-Independent
Executive Director

7

Dato’ Awang Daud Bin
Awang Putera

Non-Independent
Executive Director

The Board Charter shall be periodically reviewed and updated
from time to time to reflect relevant changes to policies,
procedures and processes as well amendments to rules and
regulations.

(a)

(b)

to review, challenge, approve and monitor the strategic
business plan, which includes the overall corporate
strategy, marketing plan, human resources plan,
information technology plan, financial plan, budget,
regulations plan and risk management plan;
to oversee the conduct and the performance of the
businesses and to determine whether the businesses
are being properly managed;

SERBA DINAMIK HOLDINGS BERHAD

106

Independent Non-Executive
Director / Chairman

ANNUAL REPORT | 2017

C O R P O R AT E G O V E R N A N C E S TAT E M E N T
The composition of the Board is consistent with the
requirements of Paragraph 15.02 of the MMLR where at least
one-third of its members are Independent Non-Executive
Directors.
The Board size is conducive to decision making and is
appropriate given the size of the Group’s operations. The
composition enables an effective and objective check and
balance on the Board’s deliberation and decision making.
The presence of Independent Non-Executive Directors is
crucial in mitigation of any possible conflict of interest in
relation to related party transactions.
The Independent Non-Executive Directors do not participate
in day-to-day management of the Group and do not engage in
any business dealing or other relationship with any companies
within the Group.
The Independent Non-Executive Directors play a significant
role in providing unbiased and independent views, advice
and judgement taking into account the interest of relevant
stakeholders including minority shareholders of the Group.
The Directors are selected based on their individual merits
and experience. The Board composition comprises individual
of diverse backgrounds with expertise and skills in the oil &
gas industry, engineering & technical, finance and legal. These
are important to ensure diversity of views, facilitate effective
decision making and constructive Board deliberation during
its meetings.
Any nomination for new Directors to the Board is to be
reviewed by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
(“NRC”) and the Committee makes recommendation for the
Board’s approval. The Company Secretary will ensure that
all appointments are properly made and that regulatory
obligations are complied with.
The profile of each Director is presented on page 18 to page
25 of this Annual Report.

Senior Independent Director
Hasman Yusri Bin Yusoff who fulfils the criteria under the
definition of Independent Director pursuant to MMLR is the
Senior Independent Director of the Group.
As a Senior Independent Director, he acts as the main liaison
between the Independent Directors and the Chairman on
matters that may be deemed sensitive and also provides
an alternative communication avenue for shareholders and
stakeholders to convey their concerns and raise issues so that
these can be channeled to the relevant parties.

Evaluation of Board Performance
The Board has established an annual performance evaluation
process to assess the performance and effectiveness of the
Board and Board Committees, as well as the performance of
each Director.
In addition, the NRC assesses the independence of Directors
annually based on the criteria specified in the MMLR.
The Performance Assessment for Board (“PAB”) was adopted
by SDHB in Financial Year 2017. It is conducted internally
upon completion of the financial year and comprise of Board
Evaluation. It is designed to increase the Board’s effectiveness
and efficiency as well as to draw the Board’s attention to
key areas that need to be addressed in order to maintain
consistency of the Board’s performance regardless of its
diversity.
The assessment questionnaire is distributed to all respective
Board members and covers topics such as the contribution
and performance of Directors with regards to their
competency, time commitment, integrity and experience in
meeting the needs of the Group and suggestions to enhance
board effectiveness.

Chairman & Group Managing Director (“MD”) / Group
Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”)
There is clear demarcation of duties and responsibilities
between the Chairman, Group MD/CEO and Non-Executive
Directors to ensure balance of power and authority.
The position of Chairman and Group MD/CEO are held by two
different individuals.
The Chairman is primarily responsible for the stewardship
and smooth functioning of the Board, whilst the Group MD/
CEO is responsible for overall operations of the business,
organizational effectiveness and implementation of the
Group’s strategies and policies.
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Board Meetings

Board Committees

The Board meets at least on a quarterly basis with additional
meetings convened as & when necessary.

To assists the Board in discharging its duties, the Board has
established three (3) Board Committees, namely ARC, NRC and
IC.

The Board has a formal schedule of matters reserved at Board
meetings which includes strategic business plans, annual
budgets, operational & financial performance review, major
investments & financial decisions, changes to management &
control structure within the Group, including key policies and
procedures and delegated authority limits.
All proceedings of the Board meetings are duly recorded in the
minutes of each meeting and signed minutes of each Board
meetings are properly kept by the Company Secretary.
The Board is informed of the decisions and salient issues
deliberated by the Audit & Risk Committee (“ARC”), NRC and
Investment Committee (“IC”).
The Board is satisfied that each Director has committed
sufficient time to the Group as evident from the Directors’
record of attendance at Board meetings held in the Financial
Year 2017, as reflected as follows:

Name of Director

Number of Board
Meetings Attended

Dato’ Mohamed Nor Bin Abu Bakar
Independent Non-Executive Director
/ Chairman

7/7

Tengku Dato’ Seri Hasmuddin Bin
Tengku Othman
Independent Non- Executive Director

6/7

Sharifah Irina Binti Syed Ahmad Radzi
Independent Non-Executive Director

7/7

Hasman Yusri Bin Yusoff
Senior Independent Non-Executive
Director

The Terms of References of the Board Committees is available at
the Group’s website.
Audit & Risk Committee (“ARC”)
The Report of ARC is presented on Page 116 to Page 118 of this
Annual Report.
Nomination & Remuneration Committee (“NRC”)
The NRC meets at least twice a year, and as and when required.
The attendance of Members at the NRC meetings held in Financial
Year 2017 is as reflected as follow:
Number of NRC
Name of Director
Meetings Attended
Tengku Dato’ Seri Hasmuddin Bin
Tengku Othman (Chairman)
Independent Non-Executive Director
Abdul Kadier Sahib
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

2/2

Sharifah Irina Binti Syed Ahmad Radzi
Independent Non-Executive Director

2/2

Investment Committee (“IC”)
The IC meets as and when required. The attendance of Members
at the IC meetings held in Financial Year 2017 is as reflected
below:

7/7

Name of Director

7/7

Dato’ Dr. Ir. Mohd Abdul Karim Bin
Abdullah (Chairman)
Non- Independent Executive Director/
Group MD / CEO

Dato’ Dr. Ir. Mohd Abdul
Karim Bin Abdullah
Non- Independent Executive Director

7/7

Dato’ Awang Daud Bin Awang Putera
Non-Independent Executive Director

Dato’ Awang Daud Bin Awang Putera
Non-Independent Executive Director

7/7

Tengku Dato’ Seri Hasmuddin Bin
Tengku Othman
Independent Non- Executive Director

Abdul Kadier Sahib
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
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2/2

Number of IC
Meetings Attended

1/1

1/1
1/1
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Directors’ Remuneration
The NRC recommends the level and structure of Directors’ fees which comprise an annual fee for service on the Board.
In making its recommendation, the NRC considers the responsibilities of the Directors and the Directors’ fee structure of comparable
Groups.
The Chairman and the Directors are paid an attendance allowance of RM3,000 and RM2,000 respectively for each Board meeting that
they have attended in the Financial Year 2017.
Details of the Directors’ remuneration (including benefits-in-kind) of each Director during the Financial Year 2017 are as follows:
Salary
RM

Fees
RM

Other Emoluments
RM

Total
RM

Executive Director
Dato’ Dr. Ir. Mohd Abdul Karim Bin Abdullah

RM715,965

-

RM435,795

RM1,151,760

Dato’ Awang Daud Bin Awang Putera

RM569,407

-

RM321,885

RM891,292

Non-Executive Director
Dato’ Mohamed Nor Bin Abu Bakar

-

RM165,000

RM21,000

RM186,000

Abdul Kadier Sahib

-

RM110,000

RM30,000

RM140,000

RM110,000

RM32,000

RM142,000

RM110,000

RM35,000

RM145,000

RM110,000

RM32,000

RM142,000

Tengku Dato’ Seri Hasmuddin Bin Tengku Othman
Hasman Yusri Bin Yusoff

-

Sharifah Irina Binti Syed Ahmad Radzi

-

Supply & Access to Information
To facilitate productive and meaningful deliberations,
the proceedings of the Board meetings are conducted in
accordance with a structured agenda. The agenda together
with comprehensive management reports and proposal papers
(“Board Meeting Papers”) are furnished to the Directors at
least seven (7) days before the Board meeting. This is to allow
time for the Directors to review the Board Meeting Papers and
to facilitate full discussion at the Board meeting.

There is a process in place for Non-Executive Directors to seek
clarifications or obtain details concerning the Board Meeting
Papers from the Management or the Company Secretary or if
they deem necessary to take independent professional advice
at the Company’s expenses.

The Board Meeting Papers are prepared and presented in
a concise and comprehensive manner so that the Directors
have a proper and relevant depiction of the issues at hand, in
order that the Board deliberations and decision-making are
performed systematically and in a well-informed manner. The
Board Meeting Papers contain information in a form and of a
quality appropriate to enable the Board to discharge its duties
effectively.

The minutes of Board meetings are circulated to all Directors
for their perusal prior to confirmation of the minutes to be
done at the commencement of the following Board meeting.
The Directors may request for clarification or raise comments
before the minutes are tabled for confirmation and upon
receiving confirmation from all the Members at the Board
meetings, the minutes will be signed by the Chairman of the
meeting as a correct record of the proceedings of the meeting.

The Board Meeting Papers tabled to the Board include
progress reports on business operations, detailed information
on business propositions and corporate proposals including
where relevant, supporting documents such as risk evaluations
and professional advice from solicitors or advisors.

The Group Chief Financial Officer ("CFO") also attends Board
meetings by invitation to update the Board on financial
guidelines and to brief the Board on matters relating to the
finance portfolio.

Confidential papers or urgent proposals are presented and
tabled at the Board meetings under supplemental agenda.
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Continuous Development Program for Directors

Re-Appointment and Re-Election

All the Directors have attended the Mandatory Accreditation
Program (“MAP”) as required under the MMLR of Bursa
Malaysia.

Chapter 7, Part J, Para 7.26 of MMLR and Article 111 of
the Company’s Constitution require all Directors to retire at
least once every three (3) years or at least one third (1/3) of
the Directors shall retire by rotation each year and they are
eligible for re-election.

In line with Paragraph 15.08 of MMLR, the Directors recognise
the importance and value of attending conferences, training
programs and seminars in order to keep themselves abreast
with the development and changes in the industries in which
the Group operates, as well to update themselves on new
statutory and regulatory requirements.
The Company Secretary and the Management undertake
the role as the coordinator to manage and coordinate the
Directors’ continuous development program.
In Financial Year 2017, the directors attended and participated
in programs as follows, which they considered as useful in
contributing to the effective discharge of their duties as
Directors:
Name of Director

List of
Program Attended

Dato’ Mohamed Nor Bin Abu Bakar
IndependentNon-Executive Director
/ Chairman

The Mandatory Accreditation
Programme (MAP)

Tengku Dato’ Seri Hasmuddin Bin
Tengku Othman
Independent Non- Executive Director

The Mandatory Accreditation
Programme (MAP)

Sharifah Irina Binti Syed Ahmad Radzi
Independent Non-Executive Director

The Mandatory Accreditation
Programme (MAP)

Hasman Yusri Bin Yusoff
Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director

• Companies Act 2016 –
Key Insights & Implication
for Directors, Auditors/
Accountant & Companies
Secretaries;
• Malaysian Code on
Corporate Governance
2017;
• Capital Market Director
Programme;
• Khazanah Megatrends
Forum "Cerebrum x
Algorithm";
• Tax and Business Summit
2017.

Abdul Kadier Sahib
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

The Mandatory Accreditation
Programme (MAP)

Dato’ Dr. Ir. Mohd Abdul
Karim Bin Abdullah
Non-Independent Executive Director

The Mandatory Accreditation
Programme (MAP)

Dato’ Awang Daud Bin Awang Putera
Non-Independent Executive Diretor

The Mandatory Accreditation
Programme (MAP)
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The re-election of Directors at regular intervals enhances
Board effectiveness and also presents shareholders with the
opportunity to measure the performance of the Directors.
Article 132 of the Company’s Constitution provides authority
for the Board to appoint any person who is willing to act as
Director to fill up casual vacancies and such Director shall
retire and be eligible for re-election at the next Annual General
Meeting.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Group attaches great importance to effective
communication with shareholders in order to strengthen
the mutual relationship with its shareholders and investors.
In accordance with the MMLR pertaining to continuing
disclosure and the best practices as recommended in the
MCCG 2017 with regard to strengthening engagement and
communication with shareholders, the Group continuously
discloses and disseminates relevant and comprehensive
information in a timely manner to its shareholders and the
general investing public.
The Group believes that effective and timely communication
will enhance shareholders’ understanding and appreciation of
the Group’s business strategies, performance and challenges.
Moreover, enhanced engagement also facilitates the ability
of the shareholders in making informed investment decisions
and in exercising their rights as shareholders. A range of
communication channels are used to build a more constructive
relationship between the Group and its stakeholders.
The Group MD/CEO together with Group CFO conduct regular
dialogues with the institutional shareholders and analysts,
and hold quarterly analysts briefings to further explain the
Group’s quarterly financial results. This is to promote better
understanding of the Group’s financial performance and
operations.

Annual Report
The Group’s annual report provides comprehensive
information on the financial results, business performance
and operations of the Group. It provides full disclosure and is
in compliance with the MMLR on Financial Reporting.
The Group disseminates its annual report to its shareholders
in hard copy and softcopy in the website.

ANNUAL REPORT | 2017

C O R P O R AT E G O V E R N A N C E S TAT E M E N T
Corporate Website
The Group’s corporate website provides convenient access
to the annual report, press releases, analyst briefings
presentation slides and / or also archives all other corporate
and financial information that had been made public, such
as the quarterly announcement of the financial results of the
Group, announcements and disclosures made pursuant to
the disclosure requirements of MMLR and other corporate
information of the Group.

Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
The AGM of the Group provides a useful forum for shareholders
to engage directly with the Group’s Directors and Key
Management.
The notice and agenda of the AGM together with the Proxy
Form are given to shareholders at least 21 days before the
AGM, which gives shareholders sufficient time to prepare
themselves to attend the AGM or to appoint proxies to attend
and vote on their behalf.
At the AGM, the Chairman of the meeting presents a
comprehensive and concise review of the Group’s financial
performance and value created for shareholders. This review
is supported by visual and graphical presentation of key points
and key financial figures.
During the AGM, shareholders are at liberty to raise questions
or seek clarification on the agenda items of the general
meeting from the Group’s Directors and Key Management.
Immediately after the conclusion of the AGM, the Group will
hold a press conference with the media.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting
The Board is committed to provide a balanced, clear and
comprehensive assessment on the financial performance of
the Group in all disclosures made to the stakeholders and the
regulatory authorities.
The Board is also committed to provide transparent and upto-date disclosures of the performance of the Group via timely
release of announcements on quarterly, half yearly and annual
financial statements.
The Board, assisted by the ARC, oversees the financial
reporting process and the reliability of the financial reporting
of the Group. The ARC seeks explanations and additional
information from the Key Management and the Group CFO
in regard to the financial performance and preparation of the
financial statements of the Group.

The ARC reviews and discusses with the external auditors on
their observations of the annual financial results of the Group
including the appropriateness of the accounting policies
applied, its changes and the significant judgements and
assumptions made by Management affecting the financial
statements as well as compliance with approved accounting
standards and regulatory requirements.

Risk Management & Internal Control
The Board has the overall responsibility for maintaining a
system of risk management & internal controls which provides
reasonable assurance on the effectiveness and efficiency of
the operations that ensure compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations, as well as with internal procedures and
guidelines.
The Statement on Risk Management & Internal Control, which
provides an overview of the state of internal control within
the Group, is set out on page 113 to page 115 of this Annual
Report.

Related Party Transactions (“RPT”) & Conflict of
Interest Situations
The ARC conducts review of the RPT on a quarterly basis.
The Group has established its policies and procedures on RPT,
including recurrent RPT, to ensure that they are undertaken
on normal commercial terms and are not to the detriment to
the Group.

COMPANY SECRETARY
The Directors have ready and unrestricted access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary to enable
them to discharge their duties effectively. The Board is
regularly updated and apprised by the Company Secretary
who is experienced, competent and knowledgeable on new
statutes and directives issued by the regulatory authorities.
The Company Secretary gives clear and sound advice on the
measures to be taken and requirements to be observed by
the Company and the Directors arising from new statutes and
guidelines issued by the regulatory authorities.
The Company Secretary briefs the Board on proposed contents
and timing of material announcements to be made to Bursa
Malaysia. The Company Secretary also serves notices to the
Directors and Principal Officers on the closed periods for
trading in Group’s shares, in accordance with the black-out
periods for dealing in the Company’s securities pursuant to
Chapter 14 of MMLR.
The Company Secretary attends all Board meetings and
ensures that accurate and proper records of the proceedings
and resolutions passed are maintained in the statutory records
at the registered office of the Company.
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The Company Secretary also facilitates timely communication of decisions made and policies set by the Board at Board meetings,
to the Senior Management for action. The Company Secretary works closely with the Management to ensure that there are timely
and appropriate information flows within and to the Board and Board Committees, and between the Non-Executive Directors and
Management.
The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary must be approved by the Board.

RELATIONSHIP WITH AUDITORS
External Auditors
Through the ARC, the Group maintains a professional and transparent relationship with its external auditors, KPMG PLT.
The ARC meets the external auditors twice a year without the presence of the Management to review the scope and adequacy of the
Group’s audit process, the annual financial statements and their audit findings.
At the meeting, the external auditors highlighted to ARC on matters that warranted their attention.
The role of ARC in relation to external auditors is described in the ARC Report on page 116 of this Annual Report.

Internal Auditors
The Group’s internal auditors, whose function is undertaken by Salihin Consulting Group Sdn. Bhd. (“SALIHIN”) and reports directly to
ARC and has unrestricted access to the ARC.
SALIHIN is independent of the activities and operations, and conducts regular audits on the effectiveness of internal controls,
compliance with internal and regulatory requirements.
The audit reports which highlights any findings, along with the recommendations are tabled to the ARC.
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Statement of RISK
MANAGEMENT
&INTERNAL CONTROL
INTRODUCTION
This Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control is
made Pursuant to paragraph 15.26(b) of the MMLR of Bursa
Malaysia which the Board is required to include a statement
on risk management and internal control of the Group.
The Board is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting
and other records are kept, which disclose with reasonable
accuracy the financial position of the Group, and ensuring
that the financial statements comply with the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2016.
The Board are also responsible for taking reasonable steps to
safeguard the assets of the Group, and to prevent and detect
fraud and other such irregularities.
The Board has ultimate responsibility for the oversight of
enterprise risk management and satisfying itself that the risk
management framework is sufficiently robust and sound.
The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s risk
management and internal control system and for reviewing
its adequacy and effectiveness. The Board ensures that the
risk management and internal control system manages the
Group’s relevant and material risks within its risk register in
the Group’s pursuit of its strategies and business objectives.
The Board continually reviews the system to ensure that
the risk management and internal control system provides
a reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement of management and financial information and
records or against financial losses or fraud.
The Board has established an ongoing process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the relevant and material risks
encountered by the Group and a key aspect of this process is
the adoption of the three lines of defense model which sets
out clear risk management and control responsibilities of the
parties involved.
The process for assessing the adequacy and effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control system is regularly
reviewed by the Board, which is assisted by the ARC.

The Management is responsible for ensuring that the dayto-day management of the Group’s activities is consistent
with the risk strategy, including the risk register and policies
approved by the Board. To this end, the key responsibilities
of the Management in respect of risk management are as
follows:
•

Ensuring that all relevant and material risks associated
with the Group’s business operations have been identified
and assessed to determine whether the risks are within
the Group’s risk register.

•

Designing, implementing and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control system in accordance
with the Group’s strategies and overall risk register.

•

Identifying changes in the operational environment which
give rise to risks or emerging risks and taking appropriate
actions and the prompt escalation of the identified risks
and actions to the Board.

RISK MANAGEMENT
The key processes that the Board has established in reviewing
the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control system include the following
•

Risk Management Function
The Risk Management Function is responsible for the
development and the implementation of the Group
Risk Management Framework which sets out the key
principles of risk governance, and the development of
risk management practices and tools which enable the
continuous identification, measurement, controlling and
monitoring of all relevant and material risks of the Group
including the identification of emerging risks.
The key elements of the Group Risk Management
Framework which is approved by the Board are as follows
1.

Risk Governance
The Group’s risk governance sets out the roles and
responsibilities of the Board, the risk committees
and the parties involved in the three lines of defense
for risk management which consists of the business
and support units as the first line of defense, risk
management and compliance units as the second
line of defense, and internal audit, the third line of
defense.
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The Board is assisted by the ARC to oversee the
management of all identified risks. Risk Management
Function of the Group provides main support to the
ARC and Management Executive Committees in
meeting their responsibilities and is responsible to
develop and maintain risk management policies
and procedures that are responsive to changes in or
expansion of business activities and developments
in the operating environment.
2.

Risk Register
The Group’s risk register defines the amount and
types of risk that the Group is able and willing to
accept in pursuit of its business objectives. It also
reflects the level of risk tolerance and limits to
govern, manage and control the Group’s risk-taking
activities.
The risk register of the Group is articulated via a set
of risk indicators and risk limits. All entities within
the Group are required to develop risk indicators
and risk limits that have considered the respective
entities’ strategic business directions, risk taking
capacity, risk profile and the operating environment.
The processes for setting, cascading, monitoring
and ongoing review of the risk register are set out in
the Group Risk Register Framework.
The Risk Register is comprised of a series of
unrelated spreadsheets across a combination of
business units and risk types. The registers are to:
•

use a system of unique Risk IDs that provide
a linkage of risk to the Group’s core strategies
and functional business areas;

•

list the risks which could cause losses to be
incurred and possible causes;

•

list the consequences;

•

provide an assessment of the risks;

•

detail the existing risk mitigators;

•

provide an assessment of the strength of the
mitigators;

•

provide an assessment of the risks;

•

detail any action plans to reduce residual risks.

Whenever any functions or systems are developed
or changed, or new strategies, products or projects
are considered, management is required to carry
out a risk appraisal. This review is carried out using
the procedures and tools set out in the Group Risk
Management Methodology. The respective Risk
Register is to be updated accordingly.
3.

Risk Management Process
The information gathered at each stage of the
Risk Management Process should be documented
in the Group Risk Registers. In creating the Risk
Register, the risk owners (i.e. the persons who are
actually accountable for managing the risk and its
consequences) can satisfy themselves that they
have defined and properly addressed the real risk. It
makes it easier to review the risks and ensure that
they continue to be complete, relevant and accurate
having regard for both internal and external changes.
A structured approach to risk management which
balances risks against returns is established for all
relevant and material risks.

• Internal Control System
The key elements of the internal control system of 		
the Group are as follows:
1. Board & Its Committee
The Board has delegated authority to various Board
committees such as the ARC, NRC and IC to enable
them to oversee certain specific responsibilities
based on clearly defined terms of reference.
Any change to the terms of reference for any
Board committee requires Board approval. Further
information on the Board Committees is included in
the Statement on Corporate Governance.
2. Management Executive Committee
The Management Executive Committees is
established to ensure that the day-to-day business
operations are consistent with the corporate
objectives, strategies and business plans and
budgets approved by the respective Boards
including addressing issues emanating from both
the external business environment and internal
operating conditions.
3. Internal Controls, Policies & Procedures
A system of internal controls based on segregation
of duties, independent checks, segmented system
access control and multitier authorisation processes
is put in place to ensure control procedures and
limits are implemented and complied with.
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Authority limits are imposed on the Management
within the Group to govern the day-to-day risk taking
activities such as treasury operations, investments,
acquisitions and disposal of assets.
Policies and procedures are formulated in support
of the Group’s internal control framework. These
policies and procedures are subject to periodic
review and updated during the year in response
to changes in the operational needs, business
environment or regulatory requirements and are
approved by the Boards, relevant board committees
or management committees.
• Internal Audit Function
The Internal Audit Function of the Group’s check for
compliance with statutory/regulatory requirements,
internal policies and procedures and review the work
processes/procedures for efficiency and effectiveness.
In addition, the Internal Audit Function assess the
operating effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems during their course of the audits.
Audits are carried out by Internal Audit Function, the
frequency of which is determined by the level of assessed
risks, to provide an independent and objective report on
operational and management activities of the Group.
The annual audit plan is reviewed and approved by the
ARC. Audit findings are submitted to the ARC for review
at their special / quarterly meetings.
The ARC reviews internal control issues identified by the
respective Internal Audit Function, the external auditors,
the regulatory authorities and the Management, including
the remedial actions taken to address issues identified,
and evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems.

financial year under review and up to the date of approval
of this statement for inclusion in the Annual Report is
adequate and effective to safeguard the interests of
shareholders, customers, employees and the Group’s
assets.

REVIEW OF THIS STATEMENT
The external auditors have reviewed this Statement on Risk
Management and Internal Control pursuant to the scope set out
in Audit and Assurance Practice Guide ("AAPG") 3,Guidance
for Auditors on Engagements to Report on the Statement on
Risk Management and Internal Control included in the Annual
Report issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants
(“MIA") for inclusion in the Annual Report of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2017, and reported to the Board of
Directors that nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the statement intended to be included in
the Annual Report of the Group, in all material aspects:
(a) has not been prepared in accordance with the disclosures
required by paragraphs 41 and 42 of the Statement on Risk
Management and Internal Control: Guidelines for Directors of
Listed Issuers; or
(b) is factually inaccurate.
AAPG 3 does not require the external auditors to consider
whether the Directors’ Statement on Risk Management and
Internal Control covers all risks and controls, or to form an
opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control system including
the assessment and opinion by the Board of Directors and
Management thereon.
The auditors are also not required to consider whether the
processes described to deal with material internal control
aspects of any significant problems disclosed in the Annual
Report will, in fact, remedy the problems.

The ARC also reviews the internal audit functions with
particular emphasis on the audit scope, the frequency of
audits and the adequacy and knowledge of the resources.
Further details of the activities undertaken by the ARC are
set out in the ARC Report.
• Assurance From Management
The Board has received assurance from the Group MD/
CEO and the Group CFO that the Group’s risk management
and internal control system is operating adequately and
effectively, in all material aspects, based on the risk
management and internal control system adopted by the
Group.
Taking into consideration the assurance from the
management and input from the relevant assurance
providers, the Board is of the view that the Group’s risk
management and internal control system in place for the
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AUDIT
Committee REPORT
INTRODUCTION
The Audit & Risk Committee (“ARC”) is pleased to present the
ARC Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2017
in compliance with Paragraph 15.15 of the MMLR of Bursa
Malaysia.

COMPOSITION
The ARC was formed by the Board and the members were
appointed by the Board from amongst the Board members.
The composition is in compliance with Paragraph 15.09(1)(b)
of the MMLR and MCCG 2017 where all members are NonExecutive Directors including two Independent Directors who
fulfill the criteria of independence as defined in the MMLR.
None of Independent Directors has appointed alternate
directors.
The functions and authority of the ARC extends to the Group
and all its subsidiaries as well as joint venture and associate
companies where management responsibility is vested on the
Group.

TERMS OF REFERENCE
The Terms of Reference of ARC set out the authorities, duties
and responsibilities of the ARC which is consistent with the
requirements of the MMLR and the MCCG 2017.

By invitation, the Group MD/CEO and the Group CFO attend the
ARC meetings to provide the ARC their input and advice and
furnish appropriate relevant information.
SALIHIN, as an appointed internal auditor, presents the internal
audit reports to the ARC.
In this regard, relevant members of the Management are
invited to apprise the ARC on specific issues arising from the
audit findings.
The external auditors also attend the ARC meeting to present
the external audit plan for the year as well as the outcome of
the statutory audit conducted on the Group.
During the financial year, the ARC meets with the external
auditors without the presence of the Management.
The agenda and a set of meeting papers encompassing
qualitative and quantitative information relevant to the
business of the meeting are distributed to the ARC members
five business days prior to the meeting dates.
Deliberations during the ARC meetings include performance
review of the Company, the proposed annual and interim
financial reporting to Bursa Malaysia, assessment of RPT and
RRPT proposed to be entered into by the Group, status of open
audit findings together with the agreed corrective actions, risk
management activities and proposed interim dividends.
Minutes of the ARC meeting are tabled for confirmation at the
next ARC meeting, after which they are presented to the Board
for notation.

MEETINGS & ATTENDANCE

In addition to communicating to the Board on matters
deliberated during the ARC meeting, the ARC Chairman also
recommends to the Board the approval of annual financial
statements, quarterly financial results and proposed interim
dividends.

The ARC meets at least quarterly with additional meetings
convened as and when necessary.

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES

The Terms of Reference of the ARC are accessible to the
public for reference at the Group’s website.

During the Financial Year 2017, the ARC held seven meetings
and the details of attendance of each ARC member are shown
in the table below:
Number of ARC
Name of Director
Meetings Attended
Hasman Yusri Bin Yusoff (Chairman)
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

7/7

Abdul Kadier Sahib
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

6/7

Sharifah Irina Binti Syed Ahmad Radzi
Independent Non-Executive Director

7/7

SERBA DINAMIK HOLDINGS BERHAD

116

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the ARC had
carried out the following activities in the discharge of its roles
and responsibilities:

Financial Reporting
The ARC had reviewed the unaudited quarterly financial
results as well as the annual audited financial statements of
the Group. The review, covers among others, an assessment
on the appropriateness of the accounting policies applied.
The ARC had sought explanations and additional information
from the Senior Management including the Group CFO on
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the reasons for the variances / fluctuations in the financial
performance of the Group, including the key income and
operating expenses.
In reviewing the quarterly and annual financial results, the
ARC focused on the following:
•

Profits contribution by domestic and overseas operations;

•

Profits contribution by business segments;

•

Trends on financial ratios such as return on equity, net
interest margin, cost of funds, cost to- income ratio, loan
loss allowances ratio and capital ratio; and

•

Significant issues relating to adoption of accounting
policies and fiscal reporting.

External Audit
The ARC reviewed and evaluated KPMG’s audit plan for the
financial year ended 31 December 2017.
KPMG’s audit plan covered its engagement team, concept of
materiality, independence and objectivity, and the areas of
audit emphasis.
The ARC also reviewed key audit issues raised by KPMG
from its annual audit in its management letter including
Management’s responses/actions taken on the resolution of
such issues.

Internal Audit (“IA”)
In its oversight over the IA Function, the ARC approved the
internal audit framework and the annual audit plan to ensure
adequate scope and comprehensive coverage over the
activities of the Group and ensured that all high risk areas are
audited at least annually.

The IA Function had reviewed the compliance with
policies, procedures and standards, relevant external rules
and regulations, as well as assessed the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal control.
Areas audited by the Internal Audit Function included audits on
the various subsidiaries covering each divisions in the Group.
Internal Audit reports were issued to the ARC regularly and
tabled in the ARC meetings. The report incorporated audit
recommendations and Management’s responses with regards
to any audit finding on the weaknesses in the systems and
controls of the operations.
The Internal Audit Function also follow up with the Management
on the implementation of the agreed audit recommendations
and, if necessary, follow up audit will be carried out and
reported to the ARC.
The ARC also monitored the progress of the corrective actions
taken by Management to ensure appropriate remedial actions
were taken on a timely basis to address all key areas of risk
and control issues.
For the financial year under review, the ARC noted that there
was no significant disagreement between the IA Function and
the Management.

Risk Management
ARC review the Group Risk Register on a quarterly basis and
also deliberated on the risk exposures and the mitigation
plans required.

During the year, the ARC reviewed and deliberated on the
revisions made to the Internal Audit Charter and recommended
the same to the Board for approval.
The ARC reviews and monitors the IA’s performance, progress
of achievement of approved annual audit plan and adequacy
of audit coverage on a quarterly basis.
The ARC also reviewed and approved the action plans to
address the competency gaps and audit methodology of the
IA Function.
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INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION
The ARC is supported by the Internal Audit Function in the
discharge of its duties and responsibilities. Internal Audit
Function, as the third line of defense, checks for compliance
with statutory/regulatory requirements, internal policies and
procedures and reviews the internal control and governance
procedures for adequacy and effectiveness.
In Financial Year 2017, the Group has engaged SALIHIN, as
Internal Auditor to undertake a Risk Based Internal Audit
Consultancy. The total cost incurred by the internal Audit
Function in discharging its functions and responsibilities for
the working period set for financial year ended 31 December
2017 was approximately RM175,678.01.
The general scope and responsibilities of the Internal Audit
Function include but are not limited to, conducting reviews,
examination and evaluation of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management processes, internal control
assurance and corporate governance practices in carrying
out assigned responsibilities to achieve the Group’s stated
mission and vision.
The responsibilities further include the following:
•

Develop and prepare an annual audit plan of work using
appropriate risk-based methodology and approach and
submit to ARC for review and approval.

•

Review the reliability and integrity of any financial
information via financial reporting statements and
accounts and the means used to identify, measure,
classify and report such information.

•

•

Review the adequacy of the Group’s risk management
framework in identifying and evaluating the adequacy
and effectiveness of risk management processes.
Review the systems performance which have been
established to ensure compliance with policies,
procedures, laws and regulations which could have
a significant impact on operations and adequacy and
effectiveness of governance practices.

•

Review the system of internal controls of the Group to
ensure its adequacy and integrity in managing principal
risks and controls.

•

Carry out risk based audits of strategic business units
of the Group which covers review of internal control
assurance, accounting, management information system,
risk management processes and corporate governance
practices including ad-hoc assignment initiated or
instructed by the ARC, the Board or the management.

•

Obtain management’s comments and action plans on
audit findings and evaluate the relevant and effectiveness
of the comments and action plans.

•

Ensure that management’s action plans shall include
a timetable for anticipated completion of action to be
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taken and an explanation for any recommendations not
addressed.
•

Distribute audit reports upon completion of audits to
members of the ARC, the Group MD/CEO and auditees.
To follow-up with management to ensure adequate,
appropriate and effective corrective actions are taken on
timely basis.

•

Review the safeguarding of assets and verify the
existence of assets.

•

Review any operation or program in ascertaining whether
the operations are carried out as planned and the results
are in line with the established objectives and goals.

•

Maintain a comprehensive IA Function manual setting
out minimum internal auditing standard, work programs,
audit procedures and update practices to guide the work
of the Internal Auditors.

•

Ensure all significant findings shall remain as open until
cleared by the Head of IA Function or the ARC.

•

Consult on internal controls for new and major system
changes prior to implementation to ensure adequate
internal controls and documentations are in place.

•

Evaluate potential exposure or risk in various segments
of the Group's operations.

•

Attend all the ARC meetings to table and discuss the
audit reports and follow up on matters raised.

The Internal Auditor, in the discharge of his / her duties, shall
be accountable to the ARC to:
•

Assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's
processes for controlling its activities and managing its
risks in the areas set forth under the mission and scope
of work.

•

Report significant issues related to the processes for
controlling the activities of the Group and its affiliates,
including potential improvements to those processes,
and provide information concerning such issues through
resolution.

•

Provide information periodically on the status and results
of the annual audit plan and the sufficiency of department
resources.

•

Coordinate with and provide oversight of other control
and monitoring functions (risk management, compliance,
security, legal, and ethics, environmental and external
audit).

ANNUAL REPORT | 2017

119

SERBA DINAMIK HOLDINGS BERHAD

forefront

PARTNERS

ANNUAL REPORT | 2017

SERBA DINAMIK HOLDINGS BERHAD

120

forefront

PARTNERS

ANNUAL REPORT | 2017

FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
122

Financial Statements

135

Notes to the Financial Statements

208

Statement by Directors

209

Statutory Declaration

210

Independent Auditor's Report

121

SERBA DINAMIK HOLDINGS BERHAD

ANNUAL REPORT | 2017

FINANCIAL
Statements
Directors’ report for the period ended 31 December 2017
The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

Principal activities
The Company is principally engaged in investment holding and provision of management services. There has been no significant
change in the nature of these activities during the year.

Subsidiaries
The details of the Company’s subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 4 to the financial statements.

Results
Group
RM’000
Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Company
RM’000

308,087
69,689
(
3,295)		
__________
__________
304,792
69,689

=========

=========

Reserves and provisions
There were no material transfers to or from reserves and provisions during the year under review, except for those disclosed in the
financial statements.

Dividend
Since the end of the previous financial period, the amount of dividends paid by the Company as reported in the Directors’ Report in
respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2017 were:
i)

A first interim of 2.2 sen per ordinary share totaling RM29,370,000 declared on 19 May 2017 and paid on 21 June 2017;

ii)

A second interim of 1.50 sen per ordinary share totaling RM20,025,000 declared on 11 August 2017 and paid on 20 September
2017; and

iii)

A third interim of 1.50 sen per ordinary share totaling RM20,025,000 declared on 21 November 2017 and paid on 20 December
2017.

On 26 February 2018, the Board of Director declared a fourth interim dividend of 1.60 sen per ordinary share in respect of the financial
year ended 31 December 2017.
The Directors do not recommend any final dividend to be paid for the year under review.
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Directors of the Company
Directors who served since the date of last report are:
Dato’ Mohammed Nor Bin Abu Bakar
Dato’ Dr. Ir. Mohd Abdul Karim Bin Abdullah
Abdul Kadier Sahib
Dato’ Awang Daud Bin Awang Putera
Tengku Dato’ Seri Hasmuddin Bin Tengku Othman
Sharifah Irina Binti Syed Ahmad Radzi
Hasman Yusri Bin Yusoff
The names of the Directors of subsidiaries are set out in the respective subsidiaries’ financial statements and the information is
deemed incorporated herein by such reference and made a part thereof.

Directors’ interests in shares
The interests of the Directors in the shares of the Company and of its related corporations (other than wholly-owned subsidiaries) as
recorded in the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings are as follows:

		

Number of ordinary shares
At				
At
01.01.2017		 Bought
Sold
31.12.2017

The Company
Direct interests:
Dato’ Dr. Ir. Mohd Abdul Karim Bin Abdullah
Dato’ Awang Daud Bin Awang Putera
Abdul Kadier Sahib

388,315,600
196,389,500
307,974,400

1,684,000 (52,128,500) 337,871,100
- (40,043,800) 156,345,700
670,000 (31,429,500) 227,214,900

By virtue of their interests in the shares of the Company, Dato’ Dr. Ir. Mohd Abdul Karim Bin Abdullah, Dato’ Awang Daud Bin Awang
Putera and Abdul Kadier Sahib are also deemed interested in the shares of the subsdiaries during the financial year to the extent that
the Company has an interest.
The other Directors holding office at 31 December 2017 had not dealt in the shares of the Company and of its related corporations
during and at the end of the financial year.

Directors’ benefits
Since the end of previous financial period, no Director of the Company has received nor become entitled to receive any benefit
(other than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by the Directors as shown in
the financial statements or the fixed salary of a full time employee of the Company and of its related corporations) by reason of a
contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the Director or with a firm of which the Director is a member, or with a
company in which the Director has a substantial financial interest, other than certain Directors who have significant financial interests
in companies which traded with certain companies in the Group in the ordinary course of business as disclosed in Note 27 to the
financial statements.
There were no arrangements during and at the end of the financial year which had the object of enabling Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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Issue of shares and debentures
On 8 February 2017, the Company issued 271,400,000 new ordinary shares as part of the Initial Public Offering at RM1.50 per
ordinary share in addition to an offer for sale by the existing shareholders of 118,000,000 shares of the total enlarged capital of the
Company.
Save as above, there was no other change in the issued and paid-up capitals of the Company, nor issuances of debentures by the
Company, during the financial year.

Options granted over unissued shares
No options were granted to any person to take up unissued shares of the Company during the financial year.

Idemnity and insurance costs
The following disclosure on particulars of indemnity given to, or insurance effected for, any Director or Officer of the Company and its
subsidiaries is made pursuant to Section 289(7) of the Companies Act 2016:

								 Premium
Sum
								 paid		insured
								 RM		 RM
Directors and Officers Liability Insurance				
							

69,325
=======

1,160,000
=======

Other statutory information
Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the Directors took reasonable steps to ascertain that:
i.

there are no bad debts to be written off and no provision need be made for doubtful debts, and

ii.

all current assets have been stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances:
i.

that would render it necessary to write off any bad debts or provide for any doubtful debts, or

ii.

that would render the value attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company
misleading, or

iii. which have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the
Company misleading or inappropriate, or
iv. not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements, that would render any amount stated in the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company misleading.
At the date of this report, there does not exist:
i.

any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial year and which
secures the liabilities of any other person, or

ii.

any contingent liability in respect of the Group or of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial year.

No contingent liability or other liability of any company in the Group has become enforceable, or is likely to become enforceable within
the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the Directors, will or may substantially affect
the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their obligations as and when they fall due.
SERBA DINAMIK HOLDINGS BERHAD
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Other statutory information (continued)
In the opinion of the Directors, the financial performance of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December
2017 have not been substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature nor has any such item,
transaction or event occurred in the interval between the end of that financial year and the date of this report.

Auditors
The auditors, KPMG PLT, have indicated their willingness to accept re-appointment.
The auditors’ remuneration is disclosed in Note 18 to the financial statement.
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:

…..................…………….........……..........................
Dato’ Dr. Ir. Mohd Abdul Karim Bin Abdullah
Director

….............................………………..........................
Dato’ Awang Daud Bin Awang Putera
Director
Shah Alam,
Date: 3 April 2018
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Statements of financial position as at 31 December 2017
Group
2017
RM’000

Note

Company
2016
RM’000

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

Assets
Property, plant and
equipment
3
658,126
Investment in subsidiaries
4
Investment in associates
5
44,128
Other investments
6
307
Intangible assets
7
6,987
Deferred tax assets
8
2,810
		
__________
Total non-currents
assets 					 712,358		
		
__________

490,173
12,220
307
3,836
703
__________

531,800
__________

531,800
__________

507,239		
__________

531,800		
__________

531,800
__________

Inventories
9
Trade and other receivables
10
Deposits and prepayments
11
Current tax assets		
Other investments
6
Cash and cash equivalents
12
		
Total current assets			
		

577,762
880,334
40,230
487
48,469
300,778
__________
1,848,060
__________

486,349
741,194
11,320
931
52,446
187,353
__________
1,479,593
__________

420,735
3,810
__________
424,545
__________

1,413
1
__________
1,414
__________

Total assets					2,560,418
		
=========

1,986,832
=========

956,345		 533,214
=========
=========

Equity
Share capital
13.1
Merger reserve
13.2
13.3
Other reserve
Retained earnings/
(Accumulated losses)		
		
Total equity attributable
to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests
4		
		
Total equity
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531,800
434,709)
124,945

928,194
-

825,833
__________

587,177
__________

2
__________

1,383,852

809,213

928,196

3,877
__________
1,387,729
__________

7,929		
__________
817,142
__________

(

928,194
434,709)
64,534

(

__________
928,196
__________

531,800
(

267)
__________
531,533
__________
531,533
__________
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Statements of financial position as at 31 December 2017 (continued)
Group
Note

2017
RM’000

Company
2016
RM’000

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

Liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
8
Loans and borrowings
14
Employment benefits
15
		
Total non-current
liabilities					
		

15,636
24,758
592
__________

14,355
16,229
492
__________

__________

__________

40,986
__________

31,076
__________

-		
__________

__________

Trade and other payables
16
Loans and borrowings
14
Current tax payable		
		
Total current liabilities			
		

423,366
681,284
27,053
__________
1,131,703
__________

501,009
623,432
14,173
__________
1,138,614
__________

28,009
140
__________
28,149
__________

1,681
__________
1,681
__________

Total liabilities 			
		

1,172,689
__________

1,169,690
__________

28,149
__________

1,681
__________

2,560,418
=========

1,986,832
=========

956,345
=========

533,214
=========

Total equity and
liabilities					
		

The notes on pages 135 to 207 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2017

		
		
Note
Revenue 			

01.01.201731.12.2017
RM’000

17

Group

Company
01.01.201702.12.2015 31.12.2017
31.12.2016
RM’000
RM’000

25.05.2016 31.12.2016
RM’000

2,722,318

1,408,556

78,094

-

Cost of sales/services
17		
		
Gross profit					

( 2,238,385)
__________
483,933

( 1,173,604)
__________
234,952

(
38)
__________
78,056

__________
-

Other operating income
		
Administrative expenses
		
Other operating expenses		
		
Results from operating
activities			
18		

4,074
(
73,637)
(
32,271)
__________

544
51,380)
__________

5
(
6,646)
(
1,980)
__________

184,116

69,435

Finance costs
19
Finance income
19
Net finance (costs)/income 		

(

19,790)
2,278
17,512)

394
394

-

2,092)
__________
346,071

__________
166,604

__________
69,829

__________
(
267)

Tax expense
20
(
41,279)
		
__________
Profit/(Loss) for the
304,792
year/period		
		
__________
Items that may be
reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss
Foreign currency
translation differences
for foreign operations		
(
61,180)
		
__________
Total comprehensive
income/(loss) for the
year/period					
243,612
=========		

(
15,164)
__________

140)
__________

__________

151,440
__________

69,689
__________

(
267)
__________

46,030
__________

__________

__________

197,470
=========

69,689
=========

(
267)
=========

Share of results of equity
accounted associates
		
Profit/(Loss) before tax			
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(

382,099

(
(

37,071)
3,135
33,936)

(
(

(

(

267)
__________

(

267)
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Statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

Note
Profit/(Loss) for the
financial year/period
attributable to:
- Owners of the Company		
- Non-controlling interests
4
			
Profit for the year/period
			
Total comprehensive
income/(loss)
attributable to:
- Owners of the Company
- Non-controlling interests
			
Total comprehensive
income/(loss)
for the year/period
			
Basic and diluted earnings
per ordinary shares (sen)
22
		

01.01.201731.12.2017
RM’000

Group

25.05.2016 31.12.2016
RM’000

Company
01.01.201702.12.2015 31.12.2017
31.12.2016
RM’000
RM’000

308,087
(
3,295)
__________
304,792
=========

151,831
69,689
(
391)
__________
__________
151,440		
69,689
=========
=========

(

267)
__________
(
267)
=========

247,664
(
4,052)
__________

198,111		
69,689
(
641)
__________
__________

(

267)
__________

243,612
=========

197,470		
69,689
=========
=========

(
267)
=========

23.58
=========

14.28
=========

The notes on pages 135 to 207 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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At 31 December 2017

Issue of ordinary shares
Foreign currency translations differences for
foreign operations
Profit for the period
Total comprehensive income for the year
Dividend paid to the owner of the company
Transfer to other reserve

At 31 December 2016/1 January 2017

Issue of ordinary shares
Effect of acquisition of subsidiaries
Foreign currency translations differences for
foreign operations
Profit for the period
Total comprehensive income for the period

At 2 December 2015 (date of
incorporation)

Group

23

13.1

13.1

		
Note

434,709)

-

-

-

=========
(Note 13.1)

928,194

45,257

-

(

(

60,423)
60,423)
-

12

-

(
(

308,087
308,087
69,420)
12)

-

151,831
151,831
__________
587,177

435,346

-

19,265

45,269

825,833

========= ========= ========= =========
(Note 13.2)
(Note 13.3)
(Note 13.3)

(434,709)

=========

1,383,852

__________

60,423)
308,087
247,664
69,420)
-

396,394

46,281
151,831
198,112
__________
809,213

(
(

1
531,799
79,301

Retained		
earnings
Total
RM’000
RM’000

__________ __________ __________ __________

-

__________

33,407

-

Other
reserves
RM’000

46,281
-		46,281
__________ __________ __________
(
434,709)
79,688
45,257

(

Merger
reserve
RM’000

396,394

__________
531,800

531,799
-

1

Share
capital
RM’000

Foreign
currency
translation
reserve
RM’000

------------------Attributable to owners of the Company----------------------------------------Non-distributable---------------------Distributable

Consolidated statements of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2017

=========

3,877

__________

757)
3,295)
4,052)
-

61,180)
304,792
243,612
69,420)
-

=========

1,387,729

__________

(

(

396,394

(
(
(

46,030
151,440
197,470
__________
817,142

531,799
87,872

1

Total
equity
RM’000

(
250)
(
391)
(
641)
__________
7,929

8,570

-

Non-controlling
interests
RM’000
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Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2017
Non-distributable
			
Retained earnings/
Share
(Accumulated
		
capital
losses)
Note
RM’000
RM’000

Total
RM’000

Company
At 2 December 2015 (date of incorporation)		1
Loss and total comprehensive loss for
the period		
Issue of ordinary shares
13.1
		
At 31 December 2016/1 January 2017		
Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year			
Dividend paid to owner of the company 		 23
Issue of ordinary shares
13.1
At 31 December 2017
			
			

531,799
_________
531,800
396,394
__________
928,194
=========
(Note 13.1)

(

267)
___________
(
267)

1
(

267)
531,799
__________
531,533

69,689		 69,689
69,420)
(
69,420)
396,394
__________
__________
2
928,196
=========
=========

(

The notes on pages 135 to 207 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2017

01.01.201731.12.2017
RM’000

Group
25.05.2016 31.12.2016
RM’000

Company
01.01.201702.12.2015 31.12.2017
31.12.2016
RM’000
RM’000

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(Loss) before tax

346,071

Adjustments for:
		 Depreciation of property,
		
plant and equipment (Note 3)
		 Finance income (Note 19)
		 Finance costs (Note 19)
		 Employment benefits
		
(Note 15)
		 Property, plant and equipment
		
written off (Note 3)
		 Net of unrealised
		
foreign exchange loss
		 Share of loss of equity 		
accounted associates, net of tax
			
Operating profit/(loss)
before changes in
working capital
Changes in working
capital:
		 Inventories
		 Trade and other receivables
		 Trade and other payables
			
Cash generated from/(used in)
operations
Interest or profit paid
Tax paid
			
Net cash from/(used in)
operating activities
			

SERBA DINAMIK HOLDINGS BERHAD

132

(

69,026
3,135)
37,071

166,604

(

32,952
2,278)
19,790

69,829

(

(

267)

394)
-

-

100

95

-

-

-

16,205

-

-

14,320

2,274

-

-

2,092
__________

__________

__________

__________

465,545

235,642

69,435

(
(

7,251)
1,440
__________

(

267)

( 117,456)
( 184,334)
(
59,982)
__________

186,570)
109,951)
118,300
__________

103,773

57,421

63,624

(
581)
(
17,854)
__________

(
609)
(
401)
__________

__________

__________

85,338
__________

56,411
__________

63,624
__________

(
1,562)
__________

(

1,413)
118
__________

(

(

1,562)
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Statements of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

01.01.201731.12.2017
RM’000

Group
25.05.2016 31.12.2016
RM’000

Company
01.01.201702.12.2015 31.12.2017
31.12.2016
RM’000
RM’000

Cash flows from investing activities
Cash and cash equivalents acquired
through acquisition of subsidiaries
Acquisition of property, plant
and equipment [Note (i)]
Acquisition of shares in an associate
(Note 5)
Interest received
Increase in term deposits
pledged to banks
Increase/(Decrease) in other investment
Acquisition of intangible assets
Advance to an associate
(Advance to)/Receipt from
subsidiaries
			
Net cash (used in)/from investing
activities
			

-

64,311

-

-

109,526)

-

-

2,278

394

-

21,628)
10,889)
-

-

-

__________

__________

(
387,183)
__________

1,562
__________

( 354,109)
---------------

(
75,454)
---------------

(
386,789)
---------------

1,562
---------------

19,181)

-

-

1

396,394

1

(

256,530)

(

34,000)
3,135

(

7,840)
3,977
3,151)
59,700)

(
(

(

(
(

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest or profit paid
Proceed from issuance of
ordinary shares
Net proceed from/(Net repayment
of) term loan
Net repayment of finance
lease liabilities
Net proceeds from loans and
borrowings
Dividends paid to owners of the Company
		 (Note 23)
			
Net cash from financing
activities
			
Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year/period
Effect of exchange rate fluctuation
on cash held
			
Cash and cash equivalents at
end of year/period [Note (ii)]
		

(

36,490)

(

396,394
6,777

(

12,964)

-

-

1,924)

(

995)

-

-

91,882

95,913

-

-

(
69,420)
__________

__________

(
69,420)
__________

__________

387,219
---------------

62,774
---------------

326,974
---------------

1
---------------

118,448

43,731

3,809

1

43,731

-

1

-

(
3,710)
__________

__________

__________

__________

158,469
=========

43,731
=========

3,810
=========

1
=========

(
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F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)
Notes:
(i)

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
During the year/period, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment as follows:
Group
01.01.201725.05.2016 31.12.2017
31.12.2016
RM’000
RM’000
Paid in cash
In the form of finance lease
[Note 14(iv)]
Total (see Note 3)

Company
01.01.201702.12.2015 31.12.2017
31.12.2016
RM’000
RM’000

256,530

109,526

-

-

8,880
__________
265,410

1,301
__________
110,827

__________
-

__________
-

========= ========= ========= =========
(ii)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents included in the statements of cash flows comprise the following amounts in the statements of
financial position:

2017
RM’000
Term deposits placed with
licensed banks
Cash and bank balances
Total (see Note 12)
Less: Bank overdrafts
(Note 14)
Less: Deposits pledged
(Note 12)

Group

2016
RM’000

148,661
152,117
__________
300,778

133,031
54,322
__________
187,353

(

(

11,301)

( 131, 008)
__________
158,469
=========

134

Company

2016
RM’000

3,810
__________
3,810

1
__________
-

10,591)

-

-

(
133,031)
__________
43,731
=========

__________
3,810
=========

__________
1
=========

The notes on pages 135 to 207 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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N O T E S T O T H E F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S
Serba Dinamik Holdings Berhad is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia. The address of its
registered office is No. 8-5, Pusat Dagangan UMNO Shah Alam, Lot 8, Persiaran Damai Seksyen 11, 40100 Shah Alam, Selangor Darul
Ehsan.
The consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the financial year ended 31 December 2017 comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group” and individually referred to as “Group
entities”) and the Group’s interest in associates. The financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 December
2017 do not include other entities.
The Company is principally engaged in investment holding and provision of management services while the principal activities of the
subsidiaries are stated in Note 4 to the financial statements.
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 3 April 2018.

1.

Basis of preparation
(a)

Statement of compliance
The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Malaysian
Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”), International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of
the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia..
The following are accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that have been issued by the Malaysian
Accounting Standards Board (“MASB”) but have not been adopted by the Group and the Company:
Effective date

MFRS / Amendment / Interpretation
MFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014)
MFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Clarifications to MFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts
with Customers
Amendments to MFRS 2, Share-based Payment -,
Classification and measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions
IC Interpretation 22, Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

1 January 2018
1 January 2018
1 January 2018

1 January 2018
1 January 2018
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N O T E S T O T H E F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S
1.

Basis of preparation (continued)
(a)

Statement of compliance (continued)
MFRS / Amendment / Interpretation
Amendments to MFRS 1, First-time Adoption of
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (Annual
Improvements to MFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle)
Amendments to MFRS 4, Insurance Contracts Applying MFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
MFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
Amendments to MFRS 128, Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures (Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards
2014 – 2016 Cycle)
Amendments to MFRS 140, Investment Property
– Transfers of Investment Property
MFRS 16, Leases
Amendments to MFRS 3, Business Combinations (Annual
Improvements to MFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle)
Amendments to MFRS 9, Financial Instruments
– Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
Amendments to MFRS 11, Joint Arrangements (Annual
Improvements to MFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle)
Amendments to MFRS 112, Income Taxes (Annual
Improvements to MFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle)
Amendments to MFRS 123, Borrowing Costs (Annual
Improvements to MFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle)
Amendments to MFRS 128, Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures - Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures
IC Interpretation 23, Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments
MFRS 17, Insurance Contracts
Amendments to MFRS 10, Consolidated Financial
Statements and MFRS 128, Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture

Effective date

1 January 2018
1 January 2018
1 January 2018
1 January 2018
1 January 2019
1 January 2019
1 January 2019
1 January 2019
1 January 2019
1 January 2019
1 January 2019
1 January 2019
1 January 2021

Yet to be determined

The Group and the Company plan to apply:
•

from the annual period beginning on 1 January 2018 for MFRS 9, MFRS 15, Clarifications to MFRS 15,
IC Interpretation 22, and Amendments to MFRS 128, which are effective for annual period beginning on
or after 1 January 2018.
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1.

Basis of preparation (continued)
(a)

Statement of compliance (continued)
•

from the annual period beginning on 1 January 2019 for the accounting standard that is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, except for Amendments to MFRS 11.

The Group and the Company do not plan to apply MFRS 17, Insurance Contracts, which is effective for annual
periods beginning on 1 January 2021 as it is not applicable to the Group and the Company.
The initial application of the abovementioned accounting standards, amendments or interpretations are not
expected to have any material financial impacts to the financial statements of the Group and the Company except
as mentioned below:
(i)

MFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
MFRS 15 replaces the guidance in MFRS 111, Construction Contracts, MFRS 118, Revenue, IC
Interpretation 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes, IC Interpretation 15, Agreements for Construction of
Real Estate, IC Interpretation 18, Transfers of Assets from Customers and IC Interpretation 131, Revenue
Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services. Upon adoption of MFRS 15, it is expected that the
timing of revenue recognition might be different as compared with the current practices.
The adoption of MFRS 15 will result in a change in accounting policy. Based on the assessment, the
Group and the Company do not expect the application of MFRS 15 to have a significant impact on its
consolidated financial statements.

(ii)

MFRS 9, Financial Instruments
MFRS 9 replaces the guidance in MFRS 139, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement on
the classification and measurement of financial assets. Upon adoption of MFRS 9, financial assets will
be measured at either fair value or amortised cost. It is expected that the Group’s and the Company’s
investment in unquoted shares will be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.
The adoption of MFRS 9 will result in a change in accounting policy. Based on the assessment, the
Group and the Company do not expect the application of MFRS 9 to have a significant impact on its
consolidated financial statements.

(iii)

MFRS 16, Leases
MFRS 16 replaces the guidance in MFRS 117, Leases, IC Interpretation 4, Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, IC Interpretation 115, Operating Leases – Incentives and IC Interpretation
127, Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.
The Group is currently assessing the financial impact that may arise from the adoption of MFRS 16.

(iv)

Amendments to MFRS 128, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (Annual Improvements to
MFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle)
The amendments clarify that an entity, which is a venture capital organisation, or a mutual fund, unit trust
or similar entities, has an investment-by-investment choice to measure its investments in associates
and joint ventures at fair value.
The Group is currently assessing the financial impact that may arise from the adoption of the Amendments
to MFRS 128.
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1.

Basis of preparation (continued)
(b)

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, other than disclosed in Note 2.

(c)

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”), which is the Company’s functional currency.
All financial information is presented in RM and has been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise
stated.

(d)

Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with MFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.
There are no significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies
that have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

2.

Significant accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in these financial 		
statements, and have been applied consistently by the Group entities, unless otherwise stated.

(a)

Basis of consolidation

		(i)

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities, including structured entities, controlled by the Company. The financial
statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Potential voting
rights are considered when assessing control only when such rights are substantive. The Group also
considers it has de facto power over an investee when, despite not having the majority of voting rights, it
has the current ability to direct the activities of the investee that significantly affect the investee’s return.
Investments in subsidiaries are measured in the Company’s statement of financial position at cost less
any impairment losses, unless the investment is classified as held for sale or distribution. The cost of
investment includes transaction costs.

		(ii)

Business combinations
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method from the acquisition date, which
is the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
For new acquisitions, the Group measures the cost of goodwill at the acquisition date as:
•
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2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(a)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

		(ii)

Business combinations (continued)
•
•
		
•
		

the recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus
if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the existing equity interest
in the acquiree; less
the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and 		
liabilities assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
For each business combination, the Group elects whether it measures the non-controlling interests in
the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at
the acquisition date.
Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that the Group
incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.
(iii)

Acquisitions of non-controlling interests
The Group accounts for all changes in its ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control as equity transactions between the Group and its non-controlling interest holders. Any difference
between the Group’s share of net assets before and after the change, and any consideration received or
paid, is adjusted to or against Group reserves.

(iv)

Acquisitions from entities under common controls
Business combinations arising from transfers of interests in entities that are under the control of the
shareholder that controls the Group are accounted for as if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning
of the earliest comparative period presented or, if later, at the date that common control was established;
for this purpose comparatives are restated. The assets and liabilities acquired are recognised at the
carrying amounts recognised previously in the Group controlling shareholder’s consolidated financial
statements. The components of equity of the acquired entities are added to the same components within
Group equity and any resulting gain/loss is recognised directly in equity.

		(v)

Loss of controls
Upon the loss of control of a subsidiary, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the former
subsidiary, any non-controlling interests and the other components of equity related to the former
subsidiary from the consolidated statement of financial position. Any surplus or deficit arising on the
loss of control is recognised in profit or loss. If the Group retains any interest in the former subsidiary,
then such interest is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost. Subsequently, it is accounted
for as an equity-accounted investee or as an available-for-sale financial asset depending on the level of
influence retained.

(vi)

Associates
Associates are entities, including unincorporated entities, in which the Group has significant influence,
but not control, over the financial and operating policies.
Investments in associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method less any impairment losses, unless it is classified as held for sale or distribution. The cost of the
investment includes transaction costs. The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associates, after adjustments, if any, to align
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2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(a)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

		(vi)

Associates (continued)
the accounting policies with those of the Group, from the date that significant influence commences until
the date that significant influence ceases.
When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an associate, the carrying amount of that
interest including any long-term investments is reduced to zero, and the recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has made payments on behalf of
the associate.
When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate, any retained interest in the
former associate at the date when significant influence is lost is measured at fair value and this amount
is regarded as the initial carrying amount of a financial asset. The difference between the fair value
of any retained interest plus proceeds from the interest disposed of and the carrying amount of the
investment at the date when equity method is discontinued is recognised in the profit or loss.
When the Group’s interest in an associate decreases but does not result in a loss of significant influence,
any retained interest is not remeasured. Any gain or loss arising from the decrease in interest is
recognised in profit or loss. Any gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
also reclassified proportionately to profit or loss if that gain or loss would be required to be reclassified
to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.
Investments in associates are measured in the Group’s statement of financial position at cost less any
impairment losses, unless the investment is classified as held for sale or distribution. The cost of the
investment includes transaction costs.

(vii)

Non-controlling interests
Non-controlling interests at the end of the reporting period, being the equity in a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the equity holders of the Company, are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position and statement of changes in equity within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group is presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of the profit
or loss and the comprehensive income for the period between non-controlling interests and owners of
the Company.
Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling
interests even if doing so causes the non-controlling interests to have a deficit balance.

		

(viii)

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intragroup transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted associates are eliminated against the
investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investees. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(b)

Foreign currency
(i)

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the Group
entities at exchange rates at the dates of transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the reporting period are
retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are not retranslated at the end
of the reporting date, except for those that are measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined.
Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or loss, except for
differences arising on the retranslation of available-for-sale equity instruments or a financial instrument
designated as a hedge of currency risk, which are recognised in other comprehensive income.
In the consolidated financial statements, when settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payable
to a foreign operation is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future, foreign exchange
gains and losses arising from such a monetary item are considered to form part of a net investment in a
foreign operation and are recognised in other comprehensive income, and are presented in the foreign
currency translation reserve (“FCTR”) in equity.

		(ii)

Operations denominated in functional currencies other than Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”)
The assets and liabilities of operations denominated in functional currencies other than RM, including
goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated to RM at exchange rates at
the end of the reporting period. The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated to RM at
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign currency differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the FCTR
in equity. However, if the operation is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary, then the relevant proportionate
share of the translation difference is allocated to the non-controlling interests. When a foreign operation
is disposed of such that control, significant influence is lost, the cumulative amount in the FCTR related
to that foreign operation is reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of only part of its interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to non-controlling interests. When the Group
disposes of only part of its investment in an associate that includes a foreign operation while retaining
significant influence, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss.

(c)

Financial instruments

		(i)

Initial recognition and measurement
A financial asset or a financial liability is recognised in the statement of financial position when, and
only when, the Group or the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
A financial instrument is recognised initially at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial instrument
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of the financial instrument.
An embedded derivative is recognised separately from the host contract and accounted for as a
derivative if, and only if, it is not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host
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2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(c)

Financial instruments (continued)

		(i)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)
contract and the host contract is not categorised at fair value through profit or loss. The host contract, in
the event an embedded derivative is recognised separately, is accounted for in accordance with policy
applicable to the nature of the host contract.

(ii)

Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement
The Group and the Company categorise financial instruments as follows:
Financial assets

			(a)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Fair value through profit or loss category comprises financial assets that are held for trading,
including derivatives (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a
designated and effective hedging instrument), financial assets that are specifically designated
into this category upon initial recognition.
Derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of unquoted equity instruments
whose fair values cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost.
Other financial assets categorised as fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
measured at their fair values with the gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.

		

(b)

Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-maturity investments category comprises debt instruments that are quoted in an
active market and the Group and the Company has the positive intention and ability to hold
them to maturity.
Financial assets categorised as held-to-maturity investments are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

			(c)

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables category comprises debt instruments that are not quoted in an active
market.
Financial assets categorised as loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

		

(d)

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale category comprises investment in equity and debt securities instruments
that are not held for trading.
Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost. Other financial assets
categorised as available-for-sale are subsequently measured at their fair values with the gain
or loss recognised in other comprehensive income, except for impairment losses, foreign
exchange gains and losses arising from monetary items and gains and losses of hedged items
attributable to hedge risks of fair value hedges which are recognised in profit or loss.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(c)

Financial instruments (continued)

		(ii)

Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement (continued)

			(d)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)
On derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity into profit or loss. Interest calculated for a debt instrument using the
effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss.

All financial assets, except for those measured at fair value through profit or loss, are subject to review
for impairment [see Note 2(i)(i)].

		Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities, other than those categorised as fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently
measured at amortised cost.
Fair value through profit or loss category comprises financial liabilities that are derivatives (except for
a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging instrument),
contingent consideration in a business combinations or financial liabilities that are specifically designated
into this category upon initial recognition.
Derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of equity instruments that do not have a
quoted price in an active market for identical instruments whose fair values otherwise cannot be reliably
measured are measured at cost.
Other financial liabilities categorised as fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at
their fair values with the gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.
		(iii)

Financial guarantee contracts
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.
Fair value arising from financial guarantee contracts are classified as deferred income and is amortised
to profit or loss using a straight-line method over the contractual period or, when there is no specified
contractual period, recognised in profit or loss upon discharge of the guarantee. When settlement of a
financial guarantee contract becomes probable, an estimate of the obligation is made. If the carrying
value of the financial guarantee contract is lower than the obligation, the carrying value is adjusted to
the obligation amount and accounted for as a provision.

		(iv)

Regular way purchase or sale of financial assets
A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale of a financial asset under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the asset within the time frame established generally by regulation or convention in
the marketplace concerned.
A regular way purchase or sale of financial assets is recognised and derecognised, as applicable, using
trade date accounting. Trade date accounting refers to:
(a)

the recognition of an asset to be received and the liability to pay for it on 			
the trade date, and
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2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(c)

Financial instruments (continued)

		(iv)

Regular way purchase or sale of financial assets (continued)
(b)

		(v)

derecognition of an asset that is sold, recognition of any gain or loss on disposal 		
and the recognition of a receivable from the buyer for payment on the trade date.

Derecognition
A financial asset or a part thereof is derecognised when, and only when, the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the financial asset expire or the financial asset is transferred to another party without
retaining control or substantially all risks and rewards of the asset. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received (including any
new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and any cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in equity is recognised in the profit or loss.
A financial liability or a part thereof is derecognised when, and only when, the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished or transferred to another party and
the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised
in profit or loss.

(d)

Property, plant and equipment
(i)

Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.
Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and any other
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use, and the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. The cost of
self-constructed assets also includes the cost of materials and direct labour. For qualifying assets,
borrowing costs are capitalised in accordance with the accounting policy on borrowing costs. Cost also
may include transfers from equity of any gain or loss on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency
purchases of property, plant and equipment.
Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of
that equipment.
When significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and is recognised net
within “other operating income” and “administrative expenses” respectively in profit or loss.

(ii)

Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the
component will flow to the Group and the Company, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced component is derecognised to profit or loss. The costs of the day-to-day servicing
of property, plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
(d)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

		(iii)

Depreciation
Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Significant components of individual
assets are assessed, and if a component has a useful life that is different from the remainder of that
asset, then that component is depreciated separately.
Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
each component of an item of property, plant and equipment. Leased assets are depreciated over the
shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Group will obtain
ownership by the end of the lease term. Freehold land is not depreciated. Assets under construction are
not depreciated until the assets are ready for their intended use.
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative period are as follows:
Buildings								
Plant and machinery							
Motor vehicles								
Furniture, fittings and office equipment						
Tools and equipment							
Office renovation							

50 years
10 years
5 years
10 years
10 years
10 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at end of the reporting period, and
adjusted as appropriate.

(e)

Leased assets

		(i)

Finance lease
Leases in terms of which the Group or the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance leases. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is measured at
an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy
applicable to that asset.
Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense
and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period during
the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Contingent lease payments are accounted for by revising the minimum lease payments over the
remaining term of the lease when the lease adjustment is confirmed.
Leasehold land which in substance is a finance lease is classified as property, plant and equipment, or
as investment property if held to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both.

(ii)

Operating lease
Leases, where the Group and the Company does not assume substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as operating leases and, except for property interest held under operating
lease, the leased assets are not recognised on the statement of financial position. Property interest
held under an operating lease, which is held to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or both, is
classified as investment property and measured using fair value model.
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the total
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
(e)

Leased assets (continued)

		(ii)
Operating lease (continued)
			
			lease expense, over the term of the lease. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the 		
			
reporting period in which they are incurred.
			

(f)

Leasehold land which in substance is an operating lease is classified as prepaid lease payments.

Intangible assets

		(i)

Goodwill
Goodwill arises on business combinations is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
In respect of equity-accounted associates, the carrying amount of goodwill is included in the carrying
amount of the investment and an impairment loss on such an investment is not allocated to any asset,
including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of the equity-accounted associates.

		(ii)

Other intangible assets
Intangible assets, other than goodwill, that are acquired by the Group, which have finite useful lives, are
measured at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

		(iii)

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the specific assets to which it relates.

(iv)

Amortisation
Goodwill is not amortised but is tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that
it may be impaired.
Other intangible assets are amortised from the date that they are available for use. Amortisation is based
on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straightline basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets. Amortisation methods, useful lives and
residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted, if appropriate.

(g)

Inventories

		

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

		
		

The cost of inventories is determined on the first-in first-out cost basis. The cost of inventories include 		
expenditure in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their existing location and condition.

		
		

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(h)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, balances and deposits with banks and highly liquid investments
which have an insignificant risk of changes in value with original maturities of three months or less, and are used
by the Group and the Company in the management of their short term commitments. For the purpose of the
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts and pledged deposits.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
(i)

Impairment
(i)

Financial assets
All financial assets (except for financial assets categorised as fair value through profit or loss, investment
in subsidiaries and investment in associates) are assessed at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events having an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the asset. Losses expected as a result of future events, no matter how likely, are
not recognised. For an investment in an equity instrument, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value below its cost is an objective evidence of impairment. If any such objective evidence exists, then
the impairment loss of the financial asset is estimated.
An impairment loss in respect of loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments is recognised
in profit or loss and is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
An impairment loss in respect of available-for-sale financial assets is recognised in profit or loss and
is measured as the difference between the asset’s acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and the asset’s current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised.
Where a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset has been recognised in other
comprehensive income, the cumulative loss in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity
to profit or loss.
An impairment loss in respect of unquoted equity instrument that is carried at cost is recognised in
profit or loss and is measured as the difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset.
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for an investment in an equity instrument classified as
available for sale is not reversed through profit or loss.
If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed, to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed what the
carrying amount would have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment
is reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

(ii)

Other assets
The carrying amounts of other assets (except for inventories [refer Note 2(g)] and deferred tax assets
[refer Note 2(p)]) are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
For goodwill and intangible assets, the recoverable amount is estimated each period at the same time.
For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of
other assets or cash-generating units. Subject to an operating segment ceiling test, for the purpose of
goodwill impairment testing, cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are aggregated
so that the level at which impairment testing is performed reflects the lowest level at which goodwill
is monitored for internal reporting purpose. The goodwill acquired in a business combination, for the
purpose of impairment testing, is allocated to a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
(i)

Impairment (continued)
(ii)

Other assets (continued)
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash-generating unit.
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its related cash-generating unit
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cashgenerating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amounts of any goodwill allocated to the cashgenerating unit (group of cash-generating units) and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the cash-generating unit (groups of cash-generating units) on a pro rata basis.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses
recognised in prior periods are assessed at the end of each reporting period for any indications that the
loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the financial
period in which the reversals are recognised.

(j)
		

Equity instruments
Instruments classified as equity are measured at cost on initial recognition and are not remeasured subsequently.
(i)

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

(ii)

Preference share capital
Preference share capital is classified as equity if it is non-redeemable, or is redeemable but only at the
Group’s option, and any dividends are discretionary. Dividends thereon are recognised as distributions
within equity.
Preference share capital is classified as financial liability if it is redeemable on a specific date or at the
option of the equity holders, or if dividend payments are not discretionary. Dividends thereon are 		
recognised as interest expense in profit or loss as accrued.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
(k)

Employee benefits
(i)

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and
sick leave are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.
A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profitsharing plans if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result
of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(ii)

State plans
The Group’s contributions to statutory pension funds are charged to profit or loss in the financial 		
period to which they relate. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a 		
cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

(iii)

Defined benefit plans
The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current period, discounting
that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.
The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Group, the
recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of
economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the
return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest),
are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. The Group determines the net interest
expense or income on the net defined liability or asset for the period by applying the discount rate used
to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then net defined
benefit liability or asset, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability or asset
during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments.
Net interest expense and other expenses relating to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or
loss.
When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit
that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
The Group recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement
occurs.

(l)

Provisions
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of
the discount is recognised as finance cost.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(l)

Provisions (continued)
(i)

Warranties
A provision for warranties is recognised when the underlying products or services are sold. The provision
is based on historical warranty data and a weighting of all possible outcomes against their associated
probabilities.

(ii)

Site restoration
In accordance with the Group’s published environmental policy and applicable legal requirements, a
provision for site restoration in respect of contaminated land, and the related expense, is recognised
when the land is contaminated.

(iii)

Onerous contracts
A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the Group
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The
provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract
and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Group
recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

(m)

Revenue and other income
(i)

Goods sold
Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume
rebates. Revenue is recognised when persuasive evidence exists, usually in the form of an executed
sales agreement, that the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
customer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods
can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing management involvement with the goods, and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably. If it is probable that discounts will be granted and the
amount can be measured reliably, then the discount is recognised as a reduction of revenue as the sales
are recognised.

(ii)

Services rendered
Revenue from services rendered is recognised in profit or loss based on work orders and contract terms,
agreed billing schedule as well as based on overall performance of services rendered.

(iii)

Construction contracts
Contract revenue includes the initial amount agreed in the contract plus any variations in contract
work, claims and incentive payments, to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue
and can be measured reliably. As soon as the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, contract revenue and contract cost are recognised in profit or loss in proportion to the stage of
completion of the contract. Contract expenses are recognised as incurred unless they create an asset
related to future contract activity.
The stage of completion is assessed by reference to the proportion that contract costs incurred for work
performed to-date bear to the estimated total contract costs.
When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable. An expected
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
(m)

Revenue and other income (continued)
(iii)

Construction contracts (continued)
loss on a contract is recognised immediately in profit or loss

(iv)

Commissions
When the Group acts in the capacity of an agent rather than as the principal in a transaction, the
revenue recognised is the net amount of commission made by the Group.

(v)

Rental income
Rental income is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues, based on rates agreed with tenants.

(vi)

Government grants
Government grants are recognised initially as deferred income at fair value when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group will comply with the conditions associated with
the grant; they are then recognised in profit or loss as other income on a systematic basis over the
useful life of the asset.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised in profit or loss as other
income on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses are recognised.

(vii)

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date that the Group’s or the Company’s right to
receive payment is established, which in the case of quoted securities is the ex-dividend date.

(viii)

Interest income
Interest income is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues, taking into account the effective yield on
the asset.

(ix)

Management fees
Management fees are recognised in profit or loss as it accrues at contracted rates.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
(n)

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets.
The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted
or completed.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

(o)

Income tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or items recognised directly in equity or other
comprehensive income.
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the period, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous financial periods.
Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position and their tax bases. Deferred tax is not
recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of goodwill, the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on
different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis or their tax assets
and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.
A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be
realised.
Unutilised reinvestment allowance and investment tax allowance, being tax incentives that is not a tax base of an
asset, is recognised as a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profits will be
available against which the unutilised tax incentive can be utilised.
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(p)

Earnings per ordinary share
The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share data for its ordinary shares (“EPS”).
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for own shares held.
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares, which comprise convertible notes and share options granted to employees.

(q)

Operating segments
An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s
other components. Operating segment results are reviewed regularly by the chief operating decision maker,
which in this case is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group, to make decisions about resources to be allocated
to the segment and to assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

(r)

Contingent liabilities
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is not recognised in the statements of financial position and is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(s)

Fair value measurements
Fair value of an asset or a liability, except for share-based payment and lease transactions, is determined as
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market or in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market.
For non-financial asset, the fair value measurement takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible.
Fair value are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the input used in the valuation
techniques as follows:
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access
at the measurement date.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfers.
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Long-term
Short-term
leasehold
leasehold
land
land 			
(Unexpired
(Unexpired		 Plant		
lease term
lease term 		
and
Motor
> 50 periods) < 50 periods) Buildings machinery
vehicles
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
Furniture,
fittings
and office
equipment
RM’000
Tools
and
equipment
RM’000
Office
renovation
RM’000

Assets under
construction
RM’000
Total
RM’000

At 25 May 2016
Acquisition through
subsidiaries
4,037
3,100
936
11,643
116,467
15,173
5,879
331,921
2,435
18,652
510,243
58,287
1,075
377
51,051
37
110,827
Additions
( 895)
(
37)
( 17,248)
( 18,180)
Written-off
Total effect of
movement in
exchange rates
29
5,990
200
51
14,606
277
21,153
		__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
At 31 December 2016/
4,066
3,100
936
11,643
179,849
16,411
6,307
380,330
2,472
18,929
624,043
1 January 2017
20,154
8,336
805
103,488
390
56,282
265,410		
Additions
45,359
30,596
Total effect of
movement in
exchange rates
(
37)
- (
6,298)
(
146)
(
33)
( 27,665)
(
2,039) (
36,218)
15,704
( 15,704)
Transfers
		___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ _______
At 31 December 2017
4,029
3,100
21,090
72,706
204,147
24,601
7,079
456,153
2,862
57,468
853,235
		==========================================================================================================================

Cost

			
			
			
		
Freehold
		
land
		
RM’000

Property, plant and equipment - Group
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Long-term Short-term
leasehold
leasehold
land
land 			
(Unexpired
(Unexpired		 Plant		
lease term
lease term 		
and
Motor
> 50 periods) < 50 periods) Buildings machinery
vehicles
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
Furniture,
fittings
and office
equipment
RM’000
Tools
and
equipment
RM’000
Office
renovation
RM’000

Assets under
construction
RM’000
Total
RM’000
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4,029

3,010

20,694

68,864

151,320

12,003

3,084

336,289

1,365

57,468

658,126

=================================================================================================================

At 31 December 2017

At 31 December 2016
4,066
3,020
654
10,157
144,696
6,925
2,939
297,590
1,197
18,929
490,173
===========================================================================================================================

Carrying amounts

At 25 May 2016
Acquisition through
subsidiaries
74
233
1,332
25,436
8,314
2,956
61,064
1,159
100,568
Depreciation for the
period (Note 18)
6
49
154
8,754
1,173
377
22,323
116
32,952
(
37)
( 1,938)
(
1,975)
Written off
Total effect of
movement in
963
36
35
1,291
2,325
exchange rates
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
At 31 December 2016/
80
282
1,486
35,153
9,486
3,368
82,740
1,275
133,870
1 January 2017
Depreciation for the
10
154
2,511
20,063
3,165
566
42,335
222
69,026
year (Note 18)
Total effect of
movement in
(
40) (
155) (
2,389)
(
53)
61
(
5,211)
- (
7,787)
exchange rates
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
At 31 December 2017
90
396
3,842
52,827
12,598
3,995
119,864
1,497
195,109
===========================================================================================================================

Depreciation

			
			
			
		
Freehold
		
land
		
RM’000

Property, plant and equipment - Group (continued)

ANNUAL REPORT | 2017

N O T E S T O T H E F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S

SERBA DINAMIK HOLDINGS BERHAD

ANNUAL REPORT | 2017

N O T E S T O T H E F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S
3.

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
3.1

Leased property, plant and equipment

		
The carrying amounts of the property, plant and equipment under finance leases are as follows:
		
			
Carrying amounts
			
2017
2016
			
RM’000
RM’000
Group
Plant and machinery		
Motor vehicles		
		
		
		
3.2

9,572
9,066
_________
18,638
========

7,813
6,680
_________
14,493
========

Security
The assets under finance leases are charged to secure the finance lease liabilities of the Group (see Note 14).
The following property, plant and equipment are charged as security for certain borrowings of the Group (see Note
14).
Carrying amounts
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

			
			
			
Group
Buildings
Leasehold land
Plant and machinery, tools and equipment

4.

54,642
12,721
12,908
========

10,157
1,213
2,911
========

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

Investment in subsidiaries - Company

			
			

Unquoted shares, at cost
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531,800
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4.

Investment in subsidiaries - Company (continued)
Details of subsidiaries, are as follows:
		
		
Country of
Principal
Subsidiary
incorporation
activities
				
Serba Dinamik Group
Malaysia
Investment holding and
Berhad Malaysia 			
provision of management services
("SDGB")

Effective ownership interest
and voting interest
2017
2016
%		
%
100 		

100

Operation and maintenance
of plants and facilities,
engineering, procurement,
construction and commissioning
and related products and services

100

100

Operation and maintenance
of plants and facilities,
engineering, procurement,
construction and commissioning,
technical training and related
products and services

100

100

Serba Dinamik IT
Malaysia
Solutions Sdn. Bhd. 		
(“SDIT”)		

Information and
communications technology
software and solutions

100

100

SD Controls
Malaysia
Sdn. Bhd.			
					

Testing and calibration
of process control and
instrumentation

Subsidiary of SDGB
Serba Dinamik
Malaysia
International Ltd.		
(“SDIL”)		
				
				
			
Serba Dinamik Sdn.
Malaysia
Bhd. (“SDSB”)		
			
				
				
				

SD Advance Engineering
Malaysia
Sdn. Bhd.			
					

Maintenance of micro
turbines and related
products and services

80 		

80

51 		

51

75 		

75

Serba Dinamik (B)
Brunei
Sdn. Bhd. ^^			
					
					
					

Operation and maintenance
of plants and facilities,
engineering, procurement,
construction and commissioning
and related products and services

AR Global Engineering
Malaysia
Sdn. Bhd.		
				

Process control,
instrumentation and related
products and services

100

100

Maintenance,
repair and overhaul,
fabrication and
logistic services

100

100

Serba Dinamik
United
RMC FZE ^^
Arab Emirates
						
						
Subsidiary of SDIL
PT Serba Dinamik
Indonesia
Indonesia **				
						
					
					

Operation and maintenance
of plants and facilities,
engineering, procurement,
construction and commissioning
and related products and services

157
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4.

Investment in subsidiaries - Company (continued)

		

		
Country of
Principal
Subsidiary
incorporation
activities
				

Effective ownership interest
and voting interest
2017
2016
%
%

Subsidiary of SDIL (continued)
Serba Dinamik
Kingdom		
International
of Bahrain
Petroleum Services
W.L.L **		
				
Serba Dinamik
International
United		
Limited ^^
Kingdom
					
					
					
		
PT Kubic Gasco
Indonesia
(“PTKG”) **		

Operation and maintenance
of plants and facilities,
engineering, procurement,
construction and commissioning
and related products and services

99

99

Inspection, repair and
maintenance of static
equipment and structures,
and related products
and services

100

100

Processing and supply
of compressed natural gas

51

51

Design, engineering
and installation of
auxiliary power generators
and firefighting systems
and equipment

100

100

Dormant

100

100

Internet and mobile		
applications solutions

100

100

Subsidiary of SDSB
Quantum Offshore
United
Limited ^^
Kingdom
				
				
				
Top Luxury Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

Subsidiary of SDIT
Telegistics Asia
Malaysia
Sdn. Bhd.		
Subsidiary of PTKG
PT Delta Conusa Gas **

Indonesia

Dormant		

90

90

PT Muaro Jambi
Energi **

Indonesia

Dormant		

82

82

**

Not audited by member firms of KPMG International

^^

The subsidiary is exempted from statutory audit as permitted by the authority in the relevant country

SERBA DINAMIK HOLDINGS BERHAD

158

4.

Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
		
Net assets
		
01.01.2017-31.12.2017
Revenue
Profit /(Loss) for the year
Total comprehensive income/(loss)
		

As at 31 December

Summarised financial information before intra-group
elimination

Carrying amount of NCI
Profit /(Loss) allocated to NCI

NCI percentage of ownership interest and voting interest

		
		
2017
		

2,920
(
6,777)
(
6,777)
========

2,036
3,321)

22,167
77
77
========

(

24,504
8,533
(
7,254)
(
21,618)
_________
4,165
========

750
19

49%

4,537
22,857
(
532)
(
23,859)
_________
3,003
========

25%

159

11,482
296
296
========

206
11,748
(
6)
(
9,615)
_________
2,333
========

1,143
145

49%
(
(

52)
138)

PT			Other
Serba
PT
SD Advance
individually
Dinamik
Kubic
Engineering
immaterial
Indonesia
Gasco
Sdn. Bhd.
subsidiaries
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

The Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interest (“NCI”) are as follows:

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries - Company (continued)

(

3,877
3,295)

Total
RM’000
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Summarised financial information before intra-group
elimination (continued)

		
		
		
01.01.2017-31.12.2017 (continued)
		

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries (continued)

Investment in subsidiaries - Company (continued)

Cash flows (used in)/from operating activities
Cash flows from/(used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
		
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
			

4.

1,467)
30
2,074
_________
637
========

(

PT
Serba
Dinamik
Indonesia
RM’000

3,966)
3,067)
11,148
_________
4,115
========

(
(

PT
Kubic
Gasco
RM’000

189
144)
6
_________
51
========
(

SD Advance
Engineering
Sdn. Bhd.
RM’000
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4.

Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
		
Net assets
		
25.05.2016-31.12.2016
Revenue
(Loss)/Profit for the period
Total comprehensive (loss)/income
		

As at 31 December

Summarised financial information before intra-group
elimination

Carrying amount of NCI
(Loss)/Profit allocated to NCI

NCI percentage of ownership interest and voting interest

		
		
		
2016

92
(
371)
(
371)
========

5,978
182)

11,228
(
459)
(
459)
========

(

20,055
4,026
(
4,825)
(
7,056)
_________
12,200
========

699
115)

49%

5,870
20,764
(
1,319)
(
22,519)
_________
2,796
========

(

25%

161

8,976
125
125
========

52
15,926
(
13,831)
_________
2,147
========

1,053
61

(

49%		
199
155)

PT			Other
Serba
PT
SD Advance
individually
Dinamik
Kubic
Engineering
immaterial
Indonesia
Gasco
Sdn. Bhd.
subsidiaries
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

The Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interest (“NCI”) are as follows:

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries - Company (continued)

(

7,929
391)

Total
RM’000
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SERBA DINAMIK HOLDINGS BERHAD

Cash flows used in operating activities
Cash flows from/(used in) investing activities
Cash flows from/(used in) financing activities
		
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
		

		
		
		
25.05.2016-31.12.2016 (continued)
		
		
Summarised financial information before intra-group
elimination (continued)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries (continued)

Investment in subsidiaries - Company (continued)

950)
977
678
_________
705
========

(

PT
Serba
Dinamik
Indonesia
RM’000

116)
3,955
(
1,027)
_________
2,812
========

(

PT
Kubic
Gasco
RM’000

3)
2)
_________
(
5)
========

(
(

SD Advance
Engineering
Sdn. Bhd.
RM’000
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5.

Investment in associates - Group

		

2017
RM’000

		
Group
Unquoted shares, at cost
Share of post-acquisition reserve
Impairment loss
		
		
		

46,396
(
2,092)
(
176)
_________
44,128
========

2016
RM’000

12,396
(
176)
_________
12,220
========

During the year, the Group has acquired 40% equity in Konsortium Amanie JV Sdn. Bhd. for a purchase consideration of
RM34,000,000.
The particulars of the associates are as follows:
				
				
		
Country of
Principal
Associate
incorporation
activities
				
Serba Dinamik
International Qatar *
Adat Sanjung Sdn. Bhd.*

Qatar

Dormant

49		

49

Malaysia

Investment holdings

30		

30

Developer of
Water Treatment Plant

40		

-

Konsortium Amanie JV 		
Sdn Bhd*
Malaysia
*

Effective
ownership interest
and voting interest
2017
2016
%		
%

Audited by another firm of Chartered Accountants.

									Konsortium
							
Adat Sanjung
Amanie JV
							
Sdn. Bhd.
Sdn. Bhd.
RM’000
RM’000
2017						
Group
Summarised financial information 			
As at 31 December
Non-current assets					
Current assets					
Non-current liabilities			
Current liabilities				

(
(

346
171,216
96,410)
76,417)

(
1,265)
========
Year ended 31 December
(
7,126)
Loss from continuing operations		
Total comprehensive loss			
(
7,126)
							=======
Included in the total comprehensive
loss is
4,414
Revenue						
========

106,951
4,769
270)
116,329)

(
(

Total
RM’000

(
(

107,297
175,985
96,680)
192,746)

(
4,879)
========

(
6,144)
========

(
573)
(
573)
=======

(
(

========
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7,699)
7,699)
=======
4,414
========
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5.

Investment in associates - Group (continued)
Reconciliation of net assets to carrying amount as at 31 December
									Konsortium
							
Adat Sanjung
Amanie JV
							
Sdn. Bhd.
Sdn. Bhd.
							
RM’000
RM’000
Group’s share of net assets			
Goodwill						
							
Carrying amount in the
statement of financial position			
							

(

3,194)
13,551
________

(

177)
33,948
________

(

10,357
=======

33,771
=======

44,128
=======

Group’s share of results for the year ended 31 December
									Konsortium
							
Adat Sanjung
Amanie JV
							
Sdn. Bhd.
Sdn. Bhd.
							
RM’000
RM’000
Group share result for the year
ended 31 December 2017
Group share of profit or loss			
from continuing operations				

Total
RM’000

(

1,863)
=======

(
229)
=======

3,371)
47,499
________

Total
RM’000

(
2,092)
=======

										
Adat Sanjung
											 Sdn. Bhd.
2016										 RM'000
Group
Summarised financial information
As at 31 December
Non-current assets										93,262
Current assets										 9,445
Non-current liabilities								
(
59,305)
Current liabilities									
(
42,537)		
						
			
___________
												 865
											 =========
Year ended 31 December
Loss from continuing operations							
(
542,663)
Total comprehensive loss								
(
542,663)
										
========
Included in the total comprehensive loss is
Revenue										
2,500,000
											
========
Reconciliation of net assets to carrying amount as at 31 December
Group’s share of net assets								
(
1,331)
Goodwill											13,551
										
Carrying amount in the statement of financial position					
12,220
											 =========
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6.

Other investments - Group

		

		

Non-current
Available-for-sale financial assets
- quoted shares in Malaysia
- unit trust
		
		
		
Representing items:
- market value of quoted shares (Note 25)
- fair value of unit trust (Note 25)
		
Current
Loans and receivables
- Fixed deposits placed with licensed banks with
original maturities exceeding three months
		

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

106
201
_________
307
========

106
201
_________
307
========

80
223
=========

132
204
========

48,469
========

52,446
========

Fixed deposits are pledged for banking facilities granted to the subsidiaries (see Note 14).

165

SERBA DINAMIK HOLDINGS BERHAD

ANNUAL REPORT | 2017

N O T E S T O T H E F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S
7.

Intangible assets - Group

				
			
Goodwill
		
Note
RM’000
Cost
At 25 May 2016		
Acquisition through
subsidiaries
28
3,832
			 _________
At 31 December 2016/
1 January 2017		
3,832
Additions		
			 _________
At 31 December 2017		
3,832
			 ========

License
and rights
RM’000

Total
RM’000
-

-

4
_________

3,836
_________

4
3,151
_________
3,155
========

3,836
3,151
_________
6,987
========

Impairment testing for cash-generating units containing goodwill
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Group’s operating activities which represent the lowest
level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
The recoverable amount of this goodwill is allocated to a subsidiary, which hold a DNV Business Assurance Management
System Certification ISO 9001:2008, which is valid for the design and manufacture of fire pumps and power generation
systems to the offshore industry. Value in use is used to assess the recoverable amount of the CGU.
The budgeted cash flows was based on the following key assumption:
•
		
•

Cash flows were projected based on past experience, with anticipated profit growth by 10% for the years 2018
to 2012; and
A pre-tax discount of 9% was applied to discount the estimated cash flow.

The key assumptions used for the value in use computations are that the markets will grow and the Group will maintain
its market share and gross margins will be maintained at current level.

8.

Deferred taxation - Group
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:
Assets
RM’000

		
2017
Property, plant and equipment
Post employment benefits
Others
		
Tax (assets)/liabilities
		

(
259)
(
2,551)
_________
(
2,810)
========
Assets
RM’000

		
2016
Property, plant and equipment
Post employment benefits
Others
		
Tax (assets)/liabilities
		
SERBA DINAMIK HOLDINGS BERHAD

703)
_________
(
703)
========
(
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Liabilities
RM’000
15,529
107
_________
15,636
========

Net
RM’000
15,529
(
259)
(
2,444)
_________
12,826
========

Liabilities
RM’000
14,243
112
_________
14,355
========

Net
RM’000
14,243
703)
112
_________
13,652
========
(

8.

At
01.01.2017
RM’000

At
25.5.2016
RM’000
_________
========

		
		
		

Property, plant and equipment
Post employment benefits
Others
		
		
		
		

		

Property, plant and equipment
14,243
Post employment benefits
(
703)
Others
112
		
_________
		
13,652
		
========
			

		
		
		

			

Movements in deferred tax during the year/period are as follows:

Deferred taxation - Group (continued)

687
(
246)
(
49)
_________
392
========
(Note 20)

Recognised
in profit
or loss
RM’000

Effect of
acquisition of
subsidiaries
RM’000
13,556
(
461)
161
_________
13,256
========

42)
_________
(
42)
========
(

Effect of
movement in
exchange rate
RM’000

1,286
486
(
2,556)
_________
(
784)
========
(Note 20)

Recognised
in profit
or loss
RM’000

4
_________
4
========

Effect of
movement in
exchange rate
RM’000

15,529
(
259)
(
2,444)
_________
12,826
========

at
31.12.2017
RM’000

14,243
(
703)
112
_________
13,652
========

At
31.12.2016
RM’000
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9.

Inventories - Group
2017
RM’000

		
		

2016
RM’000

At cost
Material on site
Spare parts and consumables
		
		
		

564,298
13,464
__________
577,762
=========

476,433
9,916
__________
486,349
=========

		
		

01.01.2017 31.12.2017
RM’000

25.05.2016 31.12.2016
RM’000

1,092,689
=========

581,514
=========

Recognised in profit or loss
- inventories recognised as cost of sales/services

10.

Trade and other receivables

Group
Company
2017
2016
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
Trade				
Trade receivables
755,011
657,116
Accrued billings
40,540
70,153
		
_________
_________
_________
_________
		
795,551
727,269
		
----------------------------------------------------Non-trade
Amount due from
subsidiaries
Amount due from an
associate
Other receivables
		
		
		

-

-

420,735

-

59,700
25,083
_________
84,783
--------------

13,925
_________
13,925
--------------

_________
420,735
--------------

_________
--------------

Total
		

880,334
========

741,194
========

420,735
========

========

Amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.
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10.

Trade and other receivables (continued)
Trade receivables denominated in foreign currencies comprise the following amounts.
Group
2017
RM’000

		
		
		
United States Dollar (“USD”)

11.

Group
2016
RM’000

454,567
==========

431,539
==========

Deposits and prepayments

2017
RM’000
Deposits
- land
- investments
- others
Prepayments 			
		
		
		
11.1

Group

15,697
12,834
2,170
30,701
9,529
_________
40,230
========

Company

2016
RM’000

2017
RM’000

1,753
1,204
4,800
7,757
3,563
_________
11,320
========

_________
========

2016
RM’000

1,413
1,413
_________
1,413
========

Included in deposits are the following:
i)

On 18 August 2017, the Group entered into a Memorandum of Agreement with a counterparty for
a collaborative development of industrial and commercial projects on a piece of land measuring
approximately 15.87 acres located at Bukit Pelali, Mukim Pengerang, Daerah Pengerang, State of Johor
Darul Takzim amounting RM24,195,402. An amount of RM14,097,701 has been paid as deposits for the
acquisition of the land.

ii)

On 1 October 2017, the Group paid a deposit of RM7,000,000 for acquisition of an investment. The
acquisition is expected to be completed by the second quarter of financial year 2018.

iii)

On 1 January 2016, the Group entered into a sale of shares agreement for the acquisition of 100% equity
interest in Supreme Vista Industries Sdn. Bhd. for a cash consideration of RM2,004,255. The acquisition
is expected to be completed in the second quarter of 2018. The completion date will be the date of final
and full payment by the Group.

iv)

On 21 August 2017, the Group entered into a Share Sale Agreement with a counterparty for the acquisition
of 14,000 ordinary shares representing 30% ordinary equity interest in Al Murisi Development Sdn Bhd,
for a total cash consideration of RM18,300,000. Included in the deposits is an amount of RM1,830,000
paid for this acquisition, which is expected to be completed by the second quarter of financial year 2018.

169

SERBA DINAMIK HOLDINGS BERHAD

ANNUAL REPORT | 2017

N O T E S T O T H E F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S
12.

Cash and cash equivalents
2017
RM’000
Deposits placed with
licensed banks
Cash and bank
balances
		
		
		

Group

2016
RM’000

Company
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

148,661

133,031

-

-

152,117
__________
300,778
=========

54,322
__________
187,353
=========

3,810
__________
3,810
=========

1
__________
1
=========

12.1

Term deposits amounting to RM131,008,000 (2016: RM131,031,000) are pledged for banking facilities granted to
the Group (see Note 14).

12.2

Cash and bank balances include the following balances denominated in foreign currency:
2017
RM’000
152,038
=========

USD

13.

2016
RM’000
38,234
=========

Capital and reserves
13.1

Share capital
__________________ Group and Company __________________
Amount
Number
Number
Amount
RM’000
of shares
RM’000
of shares
2017
2016
2017
2016
Ordinary shares
Issued and fully
paid
At date of
incorporation
Opening balance
Issued during the
financial year/period

SERBA DINAMIK HOLDINGS BERHAD
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531,800

1,063,600,000

396,394
------------928,194
========

271,400,000
--------------1,335,000,000
=========

1
531,799
-------------531,800
=========

2
1,063,599,998
--------------1,063,600,000
=========
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13.

Capital and reserves (continued)
13.1

Share capital (continued)
The new Companies Act 2016, which came into operation on 31 January 2017, abolished the concept of authorised
share capital and par value of share capital. There is no impact on the number of ordinary shares in issue or the
relative entitlement of any of the members as a result of the transition.
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are entitled to
one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
On 8 February 2017, the Company issued 271,400,000 new ordinary shares as part of the Initial Public Offering
at RM1.50 per ordinary share in addition to an offer for sale by the existing shareholders of 118,000,000 shares
of the total enlarged capital of the Company.

13.2

Merger reserve
Pursuant to the restructuring in relation to the initial public offering, Serba Dinamik Holdings Berhad has acquired
the shares in Serba Dinamik Group Berhad for a purchase consideration of RM531,799,999. The difference, net of
tax, between the carrying value and acquisition consideration was treated as merger reserve.
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13.

Capital and reserves (continued)
13.3

Other reserves
		Group
		2017
Note
RM’000
Foreign currency translation reserve
13.3.1
Statutory reserve
13.3.2
Capital redemption reserve
13.3.3
Capital gain on equity conversion		
		
		
		
13.3.1

19,265
275
36,000
8,994
__________
64,534
=========

2016
RM’000
79,688
263
36,000
8,994
__________
124,945
=========

Foreign currency translation reserve
The translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations.

13.3.2

Statutory reserve
In accordance with the provisions of the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law, Decree Number 21 of
2012 in an indirect subsidiary’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, an amount equivalent to
10% of the indirect subsidiary’s net profit before appropriation is required to be transferred to a nondistributable reserve account until such time as a minimum of 50% of the share capital is set aside.

13.3.3

Capital redemption reserve
Capital redemption reserve was in relation to redeemable preference shares redeemed by subsidiaries,
for which amount equivalents to the nominal value of such shares were transferred from retained
earnings.

14.

Loans and borrowings - Group
		
		
Non-current
Term loans (Islamic) - secured
Term loans - secured
Finance lease liabilities - secured
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2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

12,155
2,003
10,600
___________
24,758
-----------------

5,919
3,352
6,958
___________
16,229
-----------------
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14.

Loans and borrowings – Group (continued)
		
		
Current
Bank overdrafts (Islamic) - secured
Bank overdrafts - secured
Bankers’ acceptances - secured
Term loans (Islamic) - secured
Term loans - secured
Revolving credits (Islamic) - secured
Revolving credits - secured
Finance lease liabilities - secured
			
			
		
Total		
		
(i)
Security

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

3,537
7,764
300
4,958
438
592,440
65,847
6,000
___________
681,284
-----------------

5,074
5,517
300
1,955
1,551
529,168
77,089
2,778
___________
623,432
-----------------

706,042
==========

639,661
==========

The bank overdrafts, bankers’ acceptances and revolving credits facilities of the Group are secured by the
following:
(a)
(b)

legal charges over on leasehold land and certain buildings of the Group (see Note 3.2).
secured by the facility agreement and pledged term deposits (see Note 6 and Note 12).

The term loans of the Group are secured by the following:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

general and supplemental facility agreement.
first and second legal charges over leasehold land and certain buildings of the Group (see Note 3.2).
legal charges over plant and machinery as well as tools and equipment of the Group (see Note 3.2).
legal charges over assets belong to the Directors of the Company.
corporate guarantee from the Company.

Finance lease liabilities of the Group are secured on the respective finance lease assets (see Note 3.2).
The revolving credits (Islamic) of the Group are secured by the following:(a)
(b)

secured by pledged term deposits (see Note 6 and 12);
corporate guarantee from the Company.
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14.

Loans and borrowings (continued)
(ii)

Significant covenants on loans and borrowings
The Group is required to maintain a gearing ratio not exceeding 2.00 times in respect of the banking facilities
granted by five licensed banks to the Group. The total outstanding borrowings of the Group with the said banks as
at 31 December 2017 are RM25,470,731. The Group has not breached the covenants.
In addition, a subsidiary of the Company is required to maintain a ratio between the amount due from subsidiaries
and associate as well as amount owing to subsidiaries and associate of not more than 1.00 time for the Islamic
Treasury Facilities secured during the year which has been complied with.
The Islamic term loans, bank overdrafts and revolving credits facilities of RM78,762,132, RM3,537,470 and
RM517,033,817 respectively are Islamic facilities under Bai’ Inah contract.

(iii)

Finance lease liabilities
Finance lease liabilities are payable as follows:
__________2017__________
Future		
Present value
minimum		
of minimum
lease		lease
payments
Interest
payments
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

Group
Less than one year
Between one and two years
Between two and five years
More than five years

932
591
629
_________
2,152
========

6,000
3,772
6,821
7
_________
16,600
========

__________2016__________
Future		
Present value
minimum		
of minimum
lease		lease
payments
Interest
payments
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

Group
Less than one year
Between one and two years
Between two and five years
More than five years
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6,932
4,363
7,450
7
_________
18,752
========

174

3,403
3,364
4,172
148
_________
11,087
========

625
434
276
16
_________
1,351
========

2,778
2,930
3,896
132
_________
9,736
========

14.

Term loans (Islamic)
Term loans
Finance lease liabilities
Revolving credits (Islamic)
Revolving credits
Bankers’ acceptance

7,874
4,903
9,736
529,168
77,089
300
_________
629,070
========

			
			
		
At
		
1.1.2017
		
RM’000
9,239
2,462)
1,924)
103,124
(
11,242)
_________
96,735
========
(
(

8,880
_________
8,880
========

Net change		
from
Acquisition
financing
of new
cash flows
leases
RM’000
RM’000

(iv)           Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

Loans and borrowings (continued)

(
92)
(
39,852)
_________
(
39,944)
========

Effect of
movement in
exchange
rates
RM’000
17,113
2,441
16,600
592,440
65,847
300
_________
694,741
========

At
31.12.2017
RM’000
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15.

Employment benefits - Group
In accordance with Indonesian Labor Law No.13/2003, the Group provides post employment benefits to the eligible
employees of an indirect subsidiary upon terminating their employment or upon attaining retirement age. The benefits
payable are determined based on employees length of services and compensation at termination or retirement.
The Group operates the post employment benefits plan for eligible employees of an indirect subsidiary who are Indonesians
with age above 20 years and continuous service of at least a year from date of hire. The benefits payable on retirement
are based on length of service, input factor and base pay. The retirement age is 55 for employees of the subsidiary. The
post employment benefit plan exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as longevity risk, financial risks such as change in
discount rates and demographic risk such as turnover rate not being borne out.
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balance to the closing balance for defined benefit liability and
its components.
RM’000
Balance at 25 May 2016
Acquisition through subsidiaries

397

Included in profit or loss (Note 18)
Current service cost
		
Balance at 31 December 2016/1 January 2017
Acquisition through subsidiaries

95
_________
492

Included in profit or loss (Note 18)
Current service cost
		
Balance at 31 December 2017
		

100
_________
592
========

Actuarial assumptions
Principal actuarial assumptions at the end of the reporting date
		
Average years of service of employees
Annual discount rate
Salary increment rate
Normal pension rate
Mortality rate
		
		

2017

2016

4.95 years
7.2% p.a.
10% p.a
56 years
Table Mortality
Indonesia (TMI)
============

2.45 years
9% p.a.
7% p.a.
55 years
Table Mortality
Indonesia (TMI)
===========

Sensitivity analysis
There is no sensitivity analysis performed as any change will be insignificant to the Group.
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16.

Trade and other payables
		
		
		

2017
RM’000

Trade payables and accruals
Other payables and accruals
Amount due to subsidiaries
(Note 16.1)
		
Total
		

Group

2016
RM’000

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

315,382
107,984

442,814
58,195

1,559

119

__________
423,366
=========

__________
501,009
=========

26,450
__________
28,009
=========

1,562
__________
1,681
=========

16.1

Amount due to subsidiaries are interest free, unsecured and repayable on demand.

16.2

Trade and other payables denominated in foreign currencies include the following amounts:
2017
RM’000
USD

17.

Company

Group

150,678
=========

2016
RM’000
259,974
=========

Revenue and cost of sales/services
Revenue
		
		
Group
Operation and maintenance
Engineering, procurement, construction and
commissioning
- contract revenue
- others
		
Others
		
		

01.01.201731.12.2017
RM’000

25.05.2016 31.12.2016
RM’000

2,342,698

1,252,880

42,906
331,365
374,271
5,349
__________
2,722,318
=========

61,065
91,303
152,368
3,308
__________
1,408,556
=========

69,420
8,674
__________
78,094
=========

__________
=========

Company
Dividends
Management fee
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17.

Revenue and cost of sales/services (continued)
Cost of sales/services

01.01.201731.12.2017
RM’000

		
		
Group

Cost of sales/services
Contract cost

25.05.2016 31.12.2016
RM’000

2,214,845
23,540

		
					

Company

1,112,868
60,736

2,238,385
=========

1,173,604
========

Cost of services								38		
									=========

18.

-

========

Results from operating activities
		
		
		
		
Results from operating
activities are arrived
at after charging:

01.01.201731.12.2017
RM’000

Auditors’ remuneration
- Audit fees
		 - KPMG Malaysia
		 - Other auditors
- Non-audit fees
- KPMG Malaysia
- Affiliate of KPMG
Malaysia
		 - Other auditors
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment (Note 3)
Foreign exchange loss
		
- realised
		
- unrealised
Personnel expenses
(including key
management
personnel):
- contributions to state
plans
		 - wages, salaries and
others
			
and after crediting:
Employment benefits
(Note 15)
Foreign exchange gain
- unrealised
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Group
25.05.2016 31.12.2016
RM’000

Company
01.01.201702.12.2015 31.12.2017
31.12.2016
RM’000
RM’000

317
114

214
188

70
-

60
-

10

985

-

-

53
176

47
-

-

-

69,026

32,952

-

-

14,320

1,512
2,938

-

-

939

1,227

87

-

66,501
========

27,804
========

========

========

100

95

-

-

========

664
========

========

========
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19.

Finance income and costs
		
		
		
Profit and interest costs

01.01.201731.12.2017
RM’000

Group
25.05.2016 31.12.2016
RM’000

Company
01.01.201702.12.2015 31.12.2017
31.12.2016		
RM’000
RM’000

Profit and interest costs of
financial liabilities that are		
not at fair value through
profit or loss:
- finance leases
701
689
-		 - term loans, revolving credits
and bankers’ acceptances
33,390
17,688
- bank overdrafts
255
152
- other finance costs
482
652
- overdue, late payment and
trade finance cost
2,243
609
________
_________
_________
________
Recognised in profit or loss
37,071
19,790
========
========
========
========
Interest income
Interest income of financial
assets that are not at fair
value through profit or loss:
- term deposits
Recognised in profit or loss

20.

3,135
________
3,135
========

2,278
_________
2,278
========

394
_________
394
========

________
========

Tax expense
Recognised in profit or loss
		
		
		

Current tax expense
Malaysia - current year
		
- prior period
Overseas - current year
		
		

01.01.201731.12.2017
RM’000
13,337
26,970
188
40,495
----------------

Group
25.05.2016 31.12.2016
RM’000
15,245
335)
138)
14,772
--------------(
(

Company
01.01.201702.12.2015 31.12.2017
31.12.2016		
RM’000
RM’000
140
140
---------------
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20.

Tax expense (continued)
		
		
		

01.01.201731.12.2017
RM’000

Deferred tax expense
(Note 8)
- Current year
- Prior period

Group		
25.05.2016 31.12.2016
RM’000

3,382
2,598)
784
__________
41,279
========
(

(

215)
607
392
__________
15,164
========

Company
01.01.201702.12.2015 31.12.2017
31.12.2016		
RM’000
RM’000

__________
140
========

__________		
========

Reconciliation of tax expense

		
		
		

01.01.201731.12.2017
RM’000

Profit/(Loss) after tax
Total tax expense
Profit/(Loss) excluding tax
Income tax calculated
using Malaysian tax rate
of 24%
Tax exempt income
Tax exempt income under
Labuan Business
Activity Tax *
Effect of tax rate in
foreign jurisdictions
Non-deductible expenses
Profit of foreign source
not subject to
Malaysian tax
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Group
25.05.2016 31.12.2016
RM’000

304,792
41,279
__________
346,071
=========

151,440
15,164
__________
166,604
=========

83,057
-

39,985
-

(

69,689
140
__________
69,829
=========

(

16,759
16,661)

(

267)
__________
(
267)
=========

(

64)
-

61,875)

(

32,030)

-

-

95
3,866

(

998)
9,166

42

64

(
1,231)
__________
14,892
---------------

__________
140
---------------

__________
---------------

(
8,236)
__________
16,907
---------------
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20.

Tax expense (continued)
Reconciliation of tax expense (continued)

		
		
		
Under provision in prior
period
Total tax expense

*

Group
01.01.201725.05.2016 31.12.2017
31.12.2016
RM’000
RM’000
24,372
__________
41,279
=========

272
__________
15,164
=========

Company
01.01.201702.12.2015 31.12.2017
31.12.2016		
RM’000
RM’000
__________
140
=========

__________
=========

Under the preferential tax treatment given to Labuan entities incorporated or register under the Labuan Companies
Act 1990, a subsidiary has qualified and elected to pay tax of RM20,000 per annum.

During the year, Lembaga Hasil Dalam Negeri (“LHDN”) has conducted tax investigation on two subsidiaries of the Group
in relation to Year of Assessment 2010 to 2015. The tax investigation has been settled subsequent to year end, with total
tax settlement of RM45 million, of which constitute additional tax payable of RM29 million and tax penalty of RM16 million.
As at 31 December 2017, the outstanding tax payment for the additional tax payable and tax penalty are amounting to
RM16,933,374 and RM9,316,626 respectively. The subsidiaries of the Group have agreed on a instalment plan with LHDN.

21.

Compensations to key management personnel
Compensations paid/payable to key management personnel are as follows:
		
		
		
Directors of the Company
- fees
- remuneration
- other short-term employee
benefits

01.01.201731.12.2017
RM’000

Group
25.05.2016 31.12.2016
RM’000

Company
01.01.201702.12.2015 31.12.2017
31.12.2016		
RM’000
RM’000

642
1,248

299
519

642
1,248

-

898
_________
2,788
--------------

181
_________
999
--------------

898
_________
2,788
--------------

_________
--------------
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21.

Compensations to key management personnel (continued)
Group
01.01.201725.05.2016 31.12.2017
31.12.2016
RM’000
RM’000

		
		
		
Other key management
personnel
- remuneration
- other short-term
employee benefits

Company
01.01.201702.12.2015 31.12.2017
31.12.2016		
RM’000
RM’000

736

202

736

-

305
_________
1,041
-------------3,829
========

120
_________
322
-------------1,321
========

305
_________
1,041
-------------3,829
========

_________
-------------========

Other key management personnel comprise persons other than the Directors of group entities, having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the group entities either directly or indirectly.

22.

Earnings per ordinary share - Group
Basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share at 31 December 2017 was based on the profit attributable
to ordinary shareholders and a weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, calculated as follows:
		
Group
		
01.01.2017
25.05.2016 		
31.12.2017
31.12.2016
RM’000
RM’000
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders

308,087
==========
2017

151,831
==========
2016

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
at the beginning/end of period		
		
Sen

1,306,744,658
==========

1,063,600,000
==========

Basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share		
		

23.58
==========

14.28
==========
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23.

Dividends
Dividends recognised by the Company:
Sen per
share

2017
First interim
Second interim
Third interim

2.2
1.5
1.5

			
			

Total
amount
RM’000

Date of payment

29,370
20,025
20,025
__________
69,420
=========

21 June 2017
20 September 2017
20 December 2017

On February 2018, the Board of Director declared a fourth interm dividend of RM1.60 per ordinary share totalling
RM31,360,000 in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2017. The dividend will be recognised in subsequent
financial year.
The Directors do not recommend any final dividend to be paid for the year under review.

24.

Operating segments
The Group has three reportable segments, as described below, which are the Group’s strategic business units. For each of
the strategic business units, the Group Chief Executive Officer (being the Chief Operating Decision Maker), reviews internal
management reports quarterly. The following describes the operations in each of the Group’s reportable segments.
O&M

-

Operations and maintenance which includes maintenance, repair and overhaul of rotating equipment,
inspection, repair and maintenance of static equipment and structure, maintenance of process control and
instrumentation, and other related services.

EPCC

-

Engineering, procurement, construction and commissioning which includes, among others, piping system,
process control and instrumentation, equipment installation, power generation plant, gas compression
plant, auxiliary power generation and fire-fighting system, and other related services.

Others

-

Technical training, ICT solutions, and supply of products and parts.
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24.

Operating segments (continued)
There are varying levels of integration between the reportable segments. Inter-segment pricing is determined on negotiated
terms.
Performance is measured based on segment profit before tax as included in the internal management reports. Segment
profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such information is the most relevant in evaluating the
results of the segments relative to other entities that operate within these industries.
Segment assets and liabilities
For decision making and resources allocation, the Group Chief Executive Officer reviews the statement of financial position
of respective subsidiaries. As such, information on segment assets and segment liabilities is not presented.
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1,252,880
========
212,369
========

419,612
=========

25.05.2016 31.12.2016
RM’000

2,342,697
=========

O&M

EPCC

63,042
========

374,271
========

01.01.2017 –
31.12.2017
RM’000

21,947
========

152,368
========

25.05.2016 31.12.2016
RM’000

Unallocated costs				
Finance income 				
Finance costs				
Share of results of
equity accounted
associates						
				
Profit before tax				
Income tax expense				
				
Profit for the year				
				

Segment profit

Revenue from
external customers

01.01.2017 –
31.12.2017
RM’000

Operating segments (continued)

		

24.

1,279
=========

636
========

3,308
========

Others
25.05.2016 31.12.2016
RM’000

5,350
=========

01.01.2017 –
31.12.2017
RM’000

101,834)
3,135
37,071)
(
2,092)
_________
346,071
(
41,279)
_________
304,792
========

(

(

483,933
========

2,722,318
========

50,836)
2,278
19,790)
_________
166,604
( 15,164)
_________
151,440
========

(

(

234,952
========

1,408,556
========

Consolidated
01.01.2017 –
25.05.2016 31.12.2016
31.12.2017
RM’000
RM’000
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Included in the
segment profit or loss
Depreciation of
property plant
and equipment
Unallocated
depreciation of
property, plant
and equipment
Unrealised
foreign exchange
loss
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14,320
=========

-

55,740

01.01.2017 –
31.12.2017
RM’000

Operating segments (continued)

		

24.

186
-

26,666

25.05.2016 31.12.2016
RM’000

2,274
=========

O&M

========

-

8,869

01.01.2017 –
31.12.2017
RM’000

-

3,320

25.05.2016 31.12.2016
RM’000

=========

EPCC

=========

-

129

01.01.2017 –
31.12.2017
RM’000

=========

-

76

Others
25.05.2016 31.12.2016
RM’000

14,320
=========

4,288

64,738

2,274
=========

2,890

30,062

Consolidated
01.01.2017 –
25.05.2016 31.12.2017
31.12.2016
RM’000
RM’000

ANNUAL REPORT | 2017

N O T E S T O T H E F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S

ANNUAL REPORT | 2017

N O T E S T O T H E F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S
24.

Operating segments (continued)
Geographical segments
In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, segment revenue is based on geographical location of
customers. Segment assets are based on the geographical location of the assets.
01.01.201731.12.2017
RM’000

Revenue
Malaysia
Qatar
Saudi Arabia
Indonesia
United Arab Emirates
Bahrain
Other countries

869,095
491,372
303,668
101,073
289,663
341,211
326,236
____________
2,722,318
===========

Consolidated

25.05.2016 31.12.2016
RM’000
506,746
260,249
164,659
103,241
113,636
146,723
113,302
____________
1,408,556
===========

2017
RM’000

Non-current assets
Malaysia
Indonesia
Other countries

688,316
25,558
488
____________
714,362
===========

Consolidated

2016
RM’000
477,492
25,850
3,897
____________
507,239
===========

Major customers
The following are the major customers individually accounting for 10% or more of group revenue for current period:

Customer A
Customer B
Customer C 		
Customer D

Revenue
01.01.201731.12.2017
RM

Revenue
25.05.2016 31.12.2016
RM

378,881,421
271,119,476
266,326,476
336,566,738
==========

219,551,047
148,005,288
144,161,353
==========
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25.

Financial instruments
25.1

Categories of financial instruments
The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments categorised as follows:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)

Loans and receivables (“L&R”);
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (“FL”); and
Available for sale financial assets (“AFS”).

Financial assets/(liabilities)

Carrying
amount
RM’000

L&R/
(FL)
RM’000

AFS
RM’000

2017
Group
Other investments
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents		
Trade and other payables
Loans and borrowings

48,776
880,334
300,778
( 423,366)
( 706,042)
========

48,469
880,334
300,778
( 423,366)
( 706,042)
========

307
========

420,735
3,810
(
28,009)
========

420,735
3,810
(
28,009)
========

========

52,753
741,194
187,353
( 501,009)
( 639,661)
========

52,446
741,194
187,353
( 501,009)
( 639,661)
========

307
========

1
(
1,681)
========

1
(
1,681)
========

========

Company
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables
2016
Group
Other investments
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables
Loans and borrowings
Company
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables
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25.

Financial instruments (continued)
25.2

Net gains and losses arising from financial instruments
The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments categorised as follows:
01.01.201731.12.2017
RM’000

Group
Net gains/(losses) on:
Loans and receivables
Financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost

25.3

25.05.2016 31.12.2016
RM’000

3,135

2,278

(
51,391)
_________
(
48,256)
========

(
19,356)
_________
(
17,078)
========

Financial risk management
The Group and the Company are exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
•
•
•

Credit risk
Liquidity risk; and
Market risk

(a)

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises principally from its
receivables from trade customers. The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises principally from loans
and advances to subsidiaries and financial guarantees given to banks for credit facilities granted to
subsidiaries.
Receivables from external parties
(i)

Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk
The customers of the Group are principally involved in the oil and gas industry. The Group
uses ageing analysis to monitor the credit quality of the receivables.
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25.

Financial instruments (continued)
25.3

Financial risk management (continued)
(a)

Credit risk (continued)
Receivables from external parties (continued)
(ii)

Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral
As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk arising from
receivables is represented by the carrying amounts in the statement of financial position.
Cash and cash equivalents are only placed with licensed banks/institutions.
Management has taken reasonable steps to ensure that receivables that are neither past due
nor impaired are stated at their realisable values. A significant portion of these receivables are
regular customers that have been transacting with the Group. The Group uses ageing analysis
to monitor the credit quality of the receivables. Any receivables having significant balances
past due more than 120 days, which are deemed to have higher credit risk, are monitored
individually.
As at the end of the reporting period, there are no significant concentrations of credit risk
other than the amount due from two (2016: one) counterparties of RM204,141,806 (2016:
RM82,949,000).
The exposure of credit risk for trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period by
geographic region is:
Group
Malaysia
Asia
Middle East
Europe
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2017
RM’000
308,636
43,533
401,802
1,040
__________
755,011
=========

2016
RM’000
208,365
67,775
379,816
1,160
__________
657,116
=========
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25.

Financial instruments (continued)
25.3

Financial risk management (continued)
(a)

Credit risk (continued)
(iii)

Impairment losses
The Group maintains an ageing analysis in respect of trade receivables only. The ageing of
trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period was:
Group

Gross
RM’000

Impairment
RM’000

Net
RM’000

2017
Not past due
Past due 0 - 30
days
Past due 31 - 120
days
Past due more
than 120 days

729,622

-

729,622

303

-

303

13,152

-

13,152

11,934
__________
755,011
=========

__________
=========

11,934
__________
755,011
=========

628,900

-

628,900

12,014

-

12,014

13,249

-

13,249

2,953
__________
657,116
=========

__________
=========

2,953
__________
657,116
=========

2016
Not past due
Past due 0 - 30
days
Past due 31 - 120
days
Past due more
than 120 days

Other investments
(i)

Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk
Investments are allowed only in liquid securities in licensed financial institutions.
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25.

Financial instruments (continued)
25.3

Financial risk management (continued)
(a)

Credit risk (continued)
Other investments (continued)
(ii)

Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral
As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has only invested in domestic securities. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by their carrying amounts in the statement
of financial position.
Other investments of the Group (see Note 6) are categorised as available for-sale financial
assets. The Group does not have overdue investments that have not been impaired.
The investments are unsecured.

Inter-company balances
(i)

Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk
The Company provides unsecured loans and advances to subsidiaries and monitors the
results of the subsidiaries regularly. The subsidiaries have been reporting strong financial
performance and are able to repay the loans and advances in due course.

(ii)

Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral
As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
their carrying amounts in the statement of financial position.

Financial guarantees
(i)

Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk
The Company provides unsecured financial guarantees to banks in respect of banking facilities
granted to certain subsidiaries.
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25.

Financial instruments (continued)
25.3

Financial risk management (continued)
(a)

Credit risk (continued)
Financial guarantees (continued)
(ii)

Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral
The maximum exposure to credit risk amounts to RM706,042,000 (2016: RM639,661,000)
representing the outstanding banking facilities of the subsidiaries as at end of the reporting
period.
As at the end of the reporting period, there was no indication that any subsidiary would default
on repayment.
The financial guarantees have not been recognised since the fair value on initial recognition
was not material.

(b)

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk arises principally from its various payables, loans and borrowings.
Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk
The Group maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents and bank facilities deemed adequate by the
management to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
they fall due.
It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier,
or at significantly different amounts.
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Finance lease liabilities
- secured
Bank overdrafts (Islamic)		
- secured
Bank overdrafts – secured
Revolving credits – secured
Term loans (Islamic) – secured
Term loans – secured
Bankers’ acceptance – secured
Revolving credits (Islamic)
- secured
Trade and other payables

Group

2017

3,537
7,764
65,847
18,615
2,655
303
592,440
423,366
_________
1,133,279
========

8.00 – 9.00
8.00 – 9.00
7.85 – 9.10
1.40 – 15.50
4.25 – 4.77
3.50

3,537
7,764
65,847
17,113
2,441
300
592,440
3.00 – 9.10
423,366
_________		
1,129,408		
========

18,752

Contractual
cash flows
RM’000

1.05 – 9.55

Contractual
interest rate
%

16,600

Carrying
amount
RM’000

592,440
423,366
_________
1,105,982
========

3,537
7,764
65,847
5,355
438
303

6,932

Under
1 year
RM’000

_________
13,653
========

8,281
1,009
-

4,363

1-2
years
RM’000

________
11,217
========

3,137
630
-

7,450

2-5
years
RM’000

7

_________
2,427
========

1,842
578
-

More than
5 years
RM’000

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period based on undiscounted contractual payments:

Maturity analysis

Liquidity risk (continued)

Financial risk management (continued)

		

25.3

Financial instruments (continued)
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25.

(b)

(i)

Finance lease liabilities
- secured
Bank overdrafts (Islamic)
- secured
Bank overdrafts – secured
Revolving credits – secured
Term loans (Islamic) - secured
Term loans – secured
Bankers’ acceptance – secured
Revolving credits (Islamic)
- secured
Trade and other payables

Group

2016

Maturity analysis (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Financial risk management (continued)

		

25.3

Financial instruments (continued)

529,168
501,009
_________
1,125,959
========

529,168
3.00 – 9.10
529,168
501,009
501,009
_________		
_________
1,140,670		
1,144,655
========		
========

3,403

Under
1 year
RM’000

5,110
5,556
77,089
2,593
1,728
303

8.00 – 9.00
8.00 – 9.00
7.85 – 9.10
7.20 – 15.50
4.25 – 4.77
3.50

5,074
5,517
77,089
7,874
4,903
300

11,087

Contractual
cash flows
RM’000

5,110
5,556
77,089
10,002
5,331
303

1.05 – 9.55

Contractual
interest rate
%

9,736

Carrying
amount
RM’000

_________
6,367
========

1,384
1,619
-

3,364

1-2
years
RM’000

_________
8,602
========

3,137
1,293
-

4,172

2-5
years
RM’000

_________
3,727
========

2,888
691
-

148

More than
5 years
RM’000
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(b)

(ii)
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*

1,681
========

28,009
========

Carrying
amount
RM’000

-

-

Contractual
interest rate
%

Under
1 year
RM’000

1-2
years
RM’000

2-5
years
RM’000

More than
5 years
RM’000

1,681
1,681
539,736
539,736
======== ======== ========= ======== =========

28,009
28,009
571,188
571,188
======== ======== ========= ======== =========

Contractual
cash flows
RM’000

Being corporate guarantees granted for banking facilities of certain subsidiaries and associate [see Note 14], which will only be encashed in
the event of the default by the subsidiaries and associate. These financial guarantees do not have an impact on Group contractual cash
flows.

Trade and other payables
Financial guarantees *

2016

Trade and other payables
Financial guarantees *

Company

2017

Maturity analysis (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Financial risk management (continued)

		

25.3

Financial instruments (continued)
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25.

Financial instruments (continued)
25.3

Financial risk management (continued)
(c)

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
other prices that will affect the Group’s financial position or cash flows.
Currency risk
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings that are denominated
in a currency other than the respective functional currencies of Group entities. The currencies giving rise
to this risk is primarily US Dollar (“USD”).
(i)

Exposure to foreign currency risk
The Group’s exposure to foreign currency (a currency which is other than the financial currency
of the Group entities) risk, based on carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting period
was:
Balance denominated in USD
2017
RM’000
Group
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade payables
Net exposure in the statement
of financial position

(ii)

2016
RM’000

10,835
3,687
(
8,359)
_________

1,850
1,835
(
2,660)
_________

6,163
========

1,025
========

Currency risk sensitivity analysis
A 10% strengthening of the Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”) against USD at the end of the reporting
period would have decreased equity and post-tax profit or loss by the amounts shown below.
The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remained constant.

197

SERBA DINAMIK HOLDINGS BERHAD

ANNUAL REPORT | 2017

N O T E S T O T H E F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S
25.

Financial instruments (continued)
25.3

Financial risk management (continued)
(c)

Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (continued)
(ii)

Currency risk sensitivity analysis (continued)
Profit or loss
01.01.201725.05.2016 31.12.2017
31.12.2016
RM’000
RM’000
USD
In Group

(
468)
========

(
77)
========

A 10% weakening of Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”) against the above currencies at the end of the
reporting period would have had equal but opposite effect on the above currencies to the
amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables remained constant.
Interest and profit rates risk
The Group’s fixed rate borrowings are exposed to a risk of change in their fair value due to changes in
interest or profit rates. For the Islamic and conventional facilities respectively, the Group’s variable rate
borrowings are exposed to a risk of change in cash flows due to changes in interest or profit rates. The
Group is also exposed to interest or profit rate risk on the term deposits placed with licensed banks.
Investments in equity securities and short term receivables and payables are not significantly exposed
to interest or profit rate risk.
(i)

Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk
The Group monitors its exposure to changes in interest or profit rates on a regular basis.
Borrowings are negotiated with a view to securing the best possible terms including rates of
interest and profit rate, to the Group.
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25.

Financial instruments (continued)
25.3

Financial risk management (continued)
(c)

Market risk (continued)
Interest and profit rate risk (continued)
(ii)

Exposure to interest and profit rates risk
The interest and profit rates profile of the Group’s and the Company’s significant interestbearing financial instruments, based on carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting period
was:
2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

Group
Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets
Financial liabilities

Floating rate instruments
Financial liabilities
(iii)

124,666
(
27,901)
__________
96,765
=========

159,820
(
20,327)
__________
139,493
=========

(
678,141)
=========

( 619,333)
=========

Interest and profit rates risk sensitivity analysis
Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, and the Group does not designate derivatives as hedging instruments
under a fair value hedge accounting model. Therefore, a change in interest and profit rates at
the end of the reporting period would not affect profit or loss.
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
A change of 100 basis points (“bp”) in interest and profit rates at the end of the reporting
period would have increased/(decreased) post-tax profit or loss by the amounts shown below.
This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain
constant.
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25.

Financial instruments (continued)
25.3

Financial risk management (continued)
(c)

Market risk (continued)
Interest and profit rates risk (continued)
(iii)

Interest and profit rates risk sensitivity analysis (continued)
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments (continued)

Group
Floating rate instruments
- 2017
- 2016

100bp
increase
RM’000

Profit or loss

( 5,154)
( 4,706)
=======

100bp
decrease
RM’000
5,154
4,706
=======

Other price risk
Equity price risk arises from the Company’s investments in equity securities.
(i)

Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk
Management monitors the equity investments on a portfolio basis. Material investments within
the portfolio are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are approved
by management.
There is no sensitivity analysis performed as any change will be insignificant to the Group.

25.4

Fair value information
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, short term receivables and payables and short term borrowings
reasonably approximate fair values due to the relatively short term nature of these financial instruments.
The fair value of other investments is disclosed in Note 6, which is based on their quoted closing market prices
and the net asset value of the unit trust at their reporting date.
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25.

25.4

Financial liabilities
Term loans (Islamic)		
Term loans			
Finance lease liabilities

Group
Financial assets
Other investments

2017

_________
========

307
========
_________
========

307
========

Fair value of
financial instruments
__carried at fair value__
Level 1
Total
RM’000
RM’000

12,155
2,003
10,600
_________
24,758
========

========
12,155
2,003
10,600
_________
24,758
========

========

Fair value of
financial instruments
__not carried at fair value__
Level 3
Total
RM’000
RM’000

12,155
2,003
10,600
_________
24,758
========

307
========

Total fair
value
RM’000

12,155
2,003
10,600
_________
24,758
========

307
========

Carrying
amount
RM’000

The table below analyses non-current financial instruments carried at fair value and those not carried at fair value for which fair value is disclosed, together with their fair values and
carrying amounts shown in the statement of financial position.

Fair value information (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
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25.4

SERBA DINAMIK HOLDINGS BERHAD

Financial liabilities
Term loans (Islamic)		
Term loans			
Finance lease liabilities

Group
Financial assets
Other investments

2016

Fair value information (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

_________
========

307
========
_________
========

307
========

Fair value of
financial instruments
__carried at fair value__
Level 1
Total
RM’000
RM’000

5,919
3,352
6,958
_________
16,229
========

========
5,919
3,352
6,958
_________
16,229
========

========

Fair value of
financial instruments
__not carried at fair value__
Level 3
Total
RM’000
RM’000

5,919
3,352
6,958
_________
16,229
========

307
========

Total fair
value
RM’000

5,919
3,352
6,958
_________
16,229
========

307
========

Carrying
amount
RM’000
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25.

Financial instruments (continued)
25.4

Fair value information (continued)
Policy on transfer between levels
The fair value of an asset to be transferred between levels is determined as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.
Level 1 fair value
Level 1 fair value is derived from quoted price (unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.
Level 2 fair value
Level 2 fair value is estimated using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the financial assets or liabilities, either directly or indirectly.
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present value of future principal
and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the end of the reporting period.
Transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair values
There has been no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 fair values during the financial period.
Level 3 fair value
Level 3 fair value is estimated using observable inputs for the financial assets and liabilities.
The table in ensuring page shows the valuation techniques used in the determination of fair values within Level 3,
as well as the key unobservable inputs used in the valuation models.
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25.

Financial instruments (continued)
25.4

Fair value information (continued)
Level 3 fair value (continued)
Financial instruments not carried at fair value
Description of valuation
technique and input used

Type
Term loans and finance lease
liabilities

26.

Discounted cash flow using a rate
based on the current market rate of
borrowing of the respective Group
entities at the reporting date.

Capital management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital is to maintain a strong capital base and safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development
of the business. The Directors monitor and are determined to maintain an optimal debt-to-equity ratio that complies with
debt covenants and regulatory requirements.
The Group’s strategy, was to maintain the debt-to-equity ratio not exceeding 2.00 times. The debt-to-equity ratios at 31
December 2017, were as follows:
2017
RM’000

Group

2016
RM’000

Total loans and borrowings (Note 14)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 12)
Less: Other investments (Note 6)
		
		
		

706,042
(
300,778)
(
48,469)
__________
356,795
=========

639,661
(
187,353)
(
52,446)
__________
399,862
=========

Total equity

1,387,729
=========

817,142
=========

Debt-to-equity ratios
		

0.26
=========

0.49
=========

There was no change in the Group’s approach to capital management during the financial year.
The Group is also required to maintain a maximum debt-to-equity ratio of 2.00 to comply with bank covenants, failing
which, the banks may call an event of default. The Group has not breached this covenant (see Note 14).
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27.

Related parties
Identity of related parties
For the purposes of the financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Group or the Company if the Group
or the Company has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control or jointly control the parties or exercise significant influence
over the parties in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group or the Company and the
parties are subject to common control. Related party may be individuals or other entities.
Related parties also include key management personnel defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group and the Company either directly or indirectly and entity that
provides key management personnel services to the Group. Key management personnel include all the Directors of the
Group and the Company, and certain members of senior management of the Group and the Company.
The Group and the Company has related party relationships with its significant investors, subsidiaries, associate and key
management personnel.
Significant related party transactions
Significant related party transactions, other than compensations paid to key management personnel (see Note 21) and
those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, are as follows:
Transactions with companies/corporations in which certain Directors have or are deemed to have substantial
interests
Company

Group
		
		
		

01.01.201731.12.2017
RM’000

25.05.2016 31.12.2016
RM’000

01.01.201731.12.2017
RM’000

02.12.2015 31.12.2016		
RM’000

Nature of transaction
Contractor charges
Purchase of goods
Professional service
charges
Revenue from operation
and maintenance

8,101

2,000

-

-

-

622

-

-

9,333

-

-

-

(
3,999)
========

========

========

========
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27.

Related parties (continued)
Transactions with associates
Group
		
		
		

01.01.201731.12.2017
RM’000

Company
25.05.2016 31.12.2016
RM’000

01.01.201731.12.2017
RM’000

02.12.2015 31.12.2016		
RM’000

Nature of transaction
Revenue from engineering,
procurement, construction
and commissioning project
Contract revenue

(
53,332)
(
42,906)
========

(
61,065)
========

========

========

The balances with associate and subsidiaries are disclosed in Notes 10 and 16 to the financial statements.
The above transactions are based on negotiated terms. All the outstanding balances are unsecured and expected to be
settled in cash.

28.

Significant events
On 25 May 2016, the shareholders of the Company entered into the Share Purchase Agreement with Serba Dinamik Group
Berhad (“Serba Dinamik Group”) for the purchase by the Company from the shareholders of the entire issued and paid-up
share capital of Serba Dinamik Group, 73,978,860 ordinary shares of, at a total consideration of RM531,799,999 to be
satisfied by the issuance of a total of 1,063,599,998 ordinary shares in the Company to each of the shareholder. Since then,
the Company became the holding company of Serba Dinamik Group.
The acquisition of shares forms part of the internal reorganisation of the Group and its group of companies in relation to the
initial public offering of the ordinary shares in the Company and the proposed listing of the Company on the Main Market of
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
In accordance with MFRS 3, Business Combinations, the acquisition was accounted for using the reverse acquisition method
with the Company being the accounting acquirer and Serba Dinamik Group being the accounting acquiree.
The assets and liabilities of the Serba Dinamik Group are reflected at their respective carrying amounts. Any difference
between the consideration paid and the share capital and the capital of the acquiree is reflected within equity as a “merger
reserve”.
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28.

Significant events (continued)
A deficit in business combination arose as a result of the reverse acquisition as follows:
RM’000
Purchase consideration
Less: Share capital of Serba Dinamik Group
Less: Share premium of Serba Dinamik Group

531,799
(
73,979)
(
23,111)
__________
434,709
=========

Merger reserve

On 8 February 2017, the Company issued 271,400,000 new ordinary shares of RM0.50 each as part of the Initial Public
Offering at RM1.50 per ordinary share in addition to an offer for sale by the existing shareholders of 118,000,000 shares of
the total enlarged capital of the Company.

29.

Capital commitments – Group

2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000
		
Land
Contracted but not provided for
439,150
9,780
=========
=========

30.

Subsequent event

i)
		

On 30 January 2018, the Company has completed private placement exercise in which the Company has issued
133.5 million new shares with an issue price of RM3.20 per placement shares.

ii)
		
		

On 5 February 2018, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company entered into a Memorandum of Agreement for
the acquisition of 40% equity stake held in Maju Renewable Energy Sdn. Bhd., Maju RE (Talang) Sdn. Bhd. and
Maju RE (Temenggor) Sdn. Bhd. with purchase consideration of RM24,853,941.00.

iii)
		
		

On 14 February 2018, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company entered into a conditional Share Sale 		
Agreement to acquire 1,000,000 ordinary shares in KB Engineering which represent 100% of the issued share
capital of KB Engineering for a total cash consideration of RM2,000,000.

31.

Comparative figure
The comparative financial statements covered the period from 25 May 2016 to 31 December 2016 for Group and 2
December 2015 to 31 December 2016 for Company.
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Statement by Directors

pursuant to Section 251(2) of the Companies Act 2016
In the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set out on pages 126 to 207 are drawn up in accordance with Malaysian
Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in
Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as of 31 December 2017 and of
their financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended.
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:

…………………………………………………….

Dato’ Dr. Ir. Mohd Abdul Karim Bin Abdullah
Director

…………………………………………………….

Dato’ Awang Daud Bin Awang Putera
Director

Shah Alam,
Date: 3 April 2018
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Statutory declaration

pursuant to Section 251(1)(b) of the Companies Act 2016
I, Syed Nazim bin Syed Faisal, the Officer primarily responsible for the financial management of Serba Dinamik Holdings Berhad,
do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out on pages 126 to 207 are, to the best of my knowledge and
belief, correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the declaration to be true, and by virtue of the provisions
of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.
Subscribed and solemnly declared by the abovenamed Syed Nazim bin Syed Faisal, NRIC: 801112-08-5943, MIA CA 27418, at Shah
Alam in the State of Selangor Darul Ehsan on ……………..

……………………………….………

Syed Nazim Bin Syed Faisal
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF SERBA DINAMIK HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Company No. 1167905 - P)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Serba Dinamik Holdings Berhad, which comprise the statements of financial position
as at 31 December 2017 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and the statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the year then ended, and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 126 to 207.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the
Company as at 31 December 2017 and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies
Act 2016 in Malaysia.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our auditors’ report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities
We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct and Practice)
of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”), and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws
and the IESBA Code.
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Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
1.

Existence, accuracy and completeness of revenue recognition
Refer to Note 2(m) (accounting policy) and Note 17 (financial disclosures)
Key audit matter
How the matter was addressed in our audit
Serba Group generates its revenue from provision of
operation and maintenance services (“O&M”) as well
as its participations in engineering, procurement,
construction and commissioning projects (“EPCC”).
Revenue generated from O&M segment is
approximately RM2,342 million, representing 86%
of total revenue. EPCC segment contributes to 14%
of the total revenue. Contracts for both O&M services
and EPCC project varies, each with different terms.
This leads to complexity around the calculation
and recognition of revenue and any accrued and
deferred revenue. Currently, the revenue from the
maintenance service and certain EPCC contracts
is tracked manually on the point of service and,
where necessary, estimates of fair values for the
services provided that involve a significant degree of
management judgment. On the other hand, certain
EPCC contract is to be accounted for using contract
accounting and the revenue recognition is based on
the stage of completion. The stage of completion
is determined by reference to the survey of work
performed.

Our audit procedures included, amongst others:
i)

We evaluated the controls designed and applied by
the Group in the process of determining the revenue
recognised in the financial statements.

ii)

We inspected all new contracts with customers to
determine whether, based on the contract terms
and billing schedule as well as overall performance
of services, the Group has appropriately accounted
for the contracts in accordance with the accounting
policy.

iii)

We checked completeness and accuracy of revenue
by inspecting job completion certificates and other
relevant documents (i.e. timesheets, delivery order,
etc.) whether the associated revenue was recognised
in the correct period.

iv)

We checked billed invoices against the job completion
certificates, delivery orders and/or proforma invoices.

v)

We verified journal entries for revenue and revenue
related accounts based on specific high risk criteria
set to ascertain whether there are any unusual,
unauthorised or unsupported entries made against
revenue.

vi)

We confirmed trade receivables balances and
performed alternative test on non-replies by sighting
to underlying delivery orders, job completion
certificates and other underlying source documents.

Hence, revenue recognition has been considered as
the key audit matter

211

SERBA DINAMIK HOLDINGS BERHAD

ANNUAL REPORT | 2017

I N D E P E N D E N T AU D I TO R S ' R E P O R T
2.

Completeness and existence of material on site
Refer to Note 2(g) (accounting policy) and Note 9 (financial disclosures).
Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group has high material on site balance in
particular in various locations in the Middle East as
well as in Malaysia. Material on site is a significant
portion of the Group’s current assets amounting
to RM564 million, which is approximately 30% of
total current assets. This reflects the needs for the
material on site to be on be available on the sites
given the logistical complexity in delivering the
material on site to various locations.
We focused on this area as a key audit matter due
to its susceptibility to error especially in determining
the completeness and the existence of the material
on site.

3.

Our audit procedures included, amongst others:
i)

We evaluated the design and implementation of
controls related to inventories.

ii)

We attended inventory count at various locations
in the Middle East and Malaysia to ascertain the
existence and accuracy of the material on site.

iii)

We verified purchases of material on site to the
suppliers’ invoices and goods entry forms as well as
verified to goods exit forms for the material on site
consumed.

Valuation of trade and other receivables
Refer to Note 2(i) (i) (accounting policy) and Note 10 (financial disclosures).
Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

As at 31 December 2017, the trade receivables
and other receivables of the Group stood at RM880
million, representing 48% and 34% of current and
total assets respectively.
The recoverability of the trade receivables and the
level of allowance for impairment losses of doubtful
receivables are considered to be key audit matter
due to the pervasive nature of these balances to
the financial statement. The level of allowance of
impairment losses involved management judgement
based upon the individual debtor’s credit risk
evaluation, historical payment trends, subsequent to
year end collections and the existence of collaterals.
There is a risk that the management assessment
of the level of these allowances is insufficient or
inaccurate.

Our audit procedures included, amongst others:
i)

We tested the processes for trade receivables and
credit control, including the allowance for impairment
losses and cash receipts.

ii)

We checked the accuracy of trade receivables ageing
and verified the past payment patterns and credit
history, existence of collaterals and disputes with
customers.

iii)

We checked the adequacy of impairment loss of
trade receivables by recalculating the impairment
loss for significantly aged balances, and considered
receivables where the ageing profile had deteriorated
or where there is evidence that the credit quality of
the debtor is considered a risk.

iv)

We evaluated the Directors’ conclusion on the level
of impairment loss of trade receivables, specifically
significant outstanding balances which are past due
but assessed as not impaired, by assessing the cash
receipts during the year and subsequent to year
end collections and considered the actions taken by
management to recover the debts.

We have determined that there is no key audit matter in the audit of the separate financial statements of the Company to communicate
in our auditors’ report.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon
The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the annual report but does not include the financial statements of the Company and our auditors’ report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements of the Company does not cover the annual report and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Company, our responsibility is to read the annual report and, in doing so,
consider whether the annual report is materially inconsistent with the financial statements of the Company or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of the annual report, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements
The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the Company that give
a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the
requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the Company that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the
Group and of the Company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue ¬an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved
standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and the Company, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control of the Group and of the
Company.
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors.
• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
ability of the Group or of the Company to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of the Group and of
the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group or the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that gives a true and fair view.
• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our auditors’ report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia, we report that the subsidiaries of which we have not
acted as auditors are disclosed in Note 4 to the financial statements.

Other Matter
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the Companies Act 2016 in
Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

KPMG PLT					Nicholas Chia Wei Chit
(LLP0010081-LCA & AF 0758)			
Approval Number: 03102/03/2020 J
Chartered Accountants				Chartered Accountant
Kuching,
Date: 3 April 2018
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Other COMPLIANCE
Information
1. Imposition of Sanctions and/or penalties
Aside from penalties imposed by the Inland Revenue Board detailed in Note 20 of the financial statements on page 179 and
publicly announced on 26 February 2018, there were no other material sanctions/or penalties imposed on the Company and its
subsidiaries, its Directors, or Management.

2. Variation in results from estimates, forecasts or unaudited results announced
The Company did not release any profit estimates, forecasts or projections for the FYE2017 and there was no material variation
between the audited results for the FYE2017 and the unaudited results previously announced.

3. Non-audit Fees
Total non-audit fees paid/payable to the external auditors during the FYE2017 amounted to RM239,000.00.

4. Material Contracts
To the best of the Board’s knowledge, there are no material contracts involving the Group with any of the major shareholders or
directors in office during the FYE2017.
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ANALYSIS of
SHAREHOLDINGS
ANALYSIS BY SIZE OF HOLDINGS
AS AT 30/03/2018
Size Of Holdings

No. Of Holders

%

No. Of Shares

%

1 - 99
100 - 1,000
1,001 - 10,000
10,001 - 100,000
100,001 - 73,424,999 (*)
73,425,000 and above (**)

21
639
1,530
585
297
4

0.682
20.773
49.739
19.018
9.655
0.130

184
446,000
7,031,820
21,172,887
554,104,909
885,744,200

0.000
0.030
0.478
1.441
37.732
60.316

TOTAL

3,076

100.000

1,468,500,000

100.000

Remark :

* - Less Than 5% Of Issued Shares
** - 5% And Above Of Issued Shares

INFORMATION ON SUBSTANTIAL HOLDERS' HOLDINGS
AS AT 30/03/2018
No.

Name

1

Country

Holdings

%

Mohd Abdul Karim Bin Abdullah

MALAYSIA

337,036,100

22.951

2

Abdul Kadier Sahib

MALAYSIA

277,214,900

18.877

3

Awang Daud Bin Awang Putera

MALAYSIA

156,345,700

10.646

4

Kumpulan Wang Persaraan (Diperbadankan)

MALAYSIA

115,817,500

7.886

Country

Holdings

%

INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS HOLDINGS
AS AT 30/03/2018
No.

Name

1

Abdul Kadier Sahib

MALAYSIA

277,214,900

18.877

2

Awang Daud Bin Awang Putera

MALAYSIA

156,345,700

10.646

3

Hasman Yusri Bin Yusoff

MALAYSIA

0

0.000

4

Mohamed Nor Bin Abu Bakar

MALAYSIA

0

0.000

5

Mohd Abdul Karim Bin Abdullah

MALAYSIA

337,036,100

22.951

6

Sharifah Irina Binti Syed Ahmad Radzi

MALAYSIA

0

0.000

7

Tengku Dato' Seri Hasmuddin Tengku Othman

MALAYSIA

0

0.000
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LIST OF TOP 30 HOLDERS AS AT 30 MARCH 2018
(Without Aggregating Securities From Different Securities Accounts Belonging To The Same Registered Holder)

No

Name

HOLDINGS

1

Mohd Abdul Karim Bin Abdullah

337,036,100

22.951

2

Abdul Kadier Sahib

276,544,900

18.831

3

Awang Daud Bin Awang Putera

156,345,700

10.646

4

Kumpulan Wang Persaraan (Diperbadankan)

115,817,500

7.886

5

State Financial Secretary Sarawak

60,000,000

4.085

6

Citigroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Employees Provident Fund Board

48,829,500

3.325

7

Citigroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Exempt An For Aia Bhd.		

46,321,700

3.154

8

Amanahraya Trustees Berhad
Amanah Saham Bumiputera 2

15,000,000

1.021

9

Amanahraya Trustees Berhad
Amanah Saham Bumiputera

14,162,700

0.964

10

Perbadanan Nasional Berhad

13,500,000

0.919

11

Citigroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Employees Provident Fund Board (Cimb Prin)

12,011,800

0.817

12

Cartaban Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pamb For Prulink Equity Fund

10,417,700

0.709

13

Lembaga Kemajuan Bintulu

10,000,000

0.680

14

Amanahraya Trustees Berhad		
Amanah Saham Gemilang For Amanah Saham Kesihatan

9,773,200

0.665

15

Amanahraya Trustees Berhad		
Amanah Saham Gemilang For
Amanah Saham Pendidikan

8,863,200

0.603

16

Malaysia Nominees (Tempatan) Sendirian Berhad Great
Eastern Life Assurance (Malaysia) Berhad

8,327,000

0.567

17

Citigroup Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
Exempt An For Citibank New York (Norges Bank 14)

7,883,600

0.536

18

Malaysia Nominees (Tempatan) Sendirian Berhad Great
Eastern Life Assurance (Malaysia) Berhad (Lsf)

7,600,000

0.517

%
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No

Name

HOLDINGS

19

Cartaban Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pamb For Participating Fund

7,398,000

0.503

20

Citigroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Employees Provident Fund Board (Amundi)

7,000,000

0.476

21

Db (Malaysia) Nominee (Tempatan) Sendirian Berhad Deutsche
Trustees Malaysia Berhad For Eastspring
Investm Ents Islamic Small-Cap Fund

6,346,300

0.432

22

Cartaban Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pbtb For Takafulink Dana Ekuiti

6,168,000

0.420

23

Amanahraya Trustees Berhad
Amanah Saham Malaysia

6,000,000

0.408

24

Malaysia Nominees (Tempatan) Sendirian Berhad
Great Eastern Life Assurance (Malaysia) Berhad
(Par 3)

5,900,000

0.401

25

Db (Malaysia) Nominee (Tempatan) Sendirian Berhad
Deutsche Trustees Malaysia Berhad For Eastspring
Investmentsdana Al-Ilham

5,889,300

0.401

26

Cartaban Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pamb For Prulink Dana Unggul

5,621,000

0.382

27

Amanahraya Trustees Berhad
Amanah Saham Didik

5,562,900

0.378

28

Malaysia Nominees (Tempatan) Sendirian Berhad
Great Eastern Life Assurance (Malaysia) Berhad
(Leef)

5,267,000

0.358

29

Citigroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Kumpulan Wang Persaraan (Diperbadankan)
(Cimb Equities)

5,062,300

0.344

30

Amsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Mtrustee Berhad For Cimb Islamic Dali Equity
Growth Fund (Ut-Cimb-Dali)
		

5,033,900

0.342
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Notice of ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING
NOTICE OF THE SECOND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Second Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at Entrance 9C, IDCC Shah Alam,
Level 7, Jalan Pahat L 15/L, Seksyen 15 Shah Alam, 40200 Shah Alam, Selangor Darul Ehsan on Monday, 14 May 2018 at 9.00 a.m.,
to consider the following matters:

AGENDA
As Ordinary Business:
1.

To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2017
together with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.
(Please refer to Explanatory Note. 2 below)

2.

3.

4.

To re-elect the following Directors who are retiring by rotation pursuant to Article 111 of the
Articles of Association of the Company, comprising part of the Constitution of the Company and
who eligible offer themselves for re-election:
(i)
Dato’ Mohamed Nor Bin Abu Bakar
(ii) Sharifah Irina Binti Syed Ahmad Radzi
To approve the payment of Directors’ fees and benefits up to an amount not exceeding RM1,500,000
in respect of the financial period from 1 January 2018 until the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting of the Company.
To re-appoint KPMG PLT as auditors of the Company and to authorise the Directors to fix their
remuneration.

Resolution 1
Resolution 2
Resolution 3

Resolution 4

As Special Business:
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following as Ordinary Resolution:
5.

Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate and Proposed New Shareholders’ Mandate for
Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a Revenue or Trading Nature
“THAT, approval be and is hereby given for the Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate and
Proposed New Shareholders’ Mandate for the Company and/or its subsidiaries to enter into the
categories of recurrent related party transactions of a revenue or trading nature falling within the
nature of transactions set out in Section 2.2 under Part A of the Circular to Shareholders dated
13 April 2018 (“the Circular”), with the related parties falling within the classes of persons set
out in Section 2.2 under Part A of the Circular, such transactions are necessary for the Company
and/or its subsidiaries’ day-to-day operations and which are carried out in the ordinary course
of business, on terms which are not more favourable to the related parties than those generally
available to the public and are not detriment of the minority shareholders.

Resolution 5

THAT the authority conferred by such mandate shall commence upon the passing of this resolution
and continue to be in force until:
(i)

the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company, at which
time it will lapse, unless by a resolution passed at the next AGM, the authority is
renewed;

(ii)

the expiration of the period within which the next AGM is required to be held pursuant
to Section 340(2) of the Companies Act 2016 (“Act”) (but must not extend to such
extension as may be allowed pursuant to Section 340(4) of the Act); or

(iii)

revoked or varied by resolution passed by the shareholders in a general meeting;
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whichever is the earlier.
AND THAT the Directors of the Company be hereby authorised to complete and do all such acts
and things as they may consider expedient or necessary to give effect to this Ordinary Resolution.”
(Please refer to Explanatory Note. 3 below)

6.

Proposed Authority for Share Buy-Back
“THAT subject to the Companies Act 2016, the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad and the approval of all relevant governmental and/or regulatory authorities,
the Company be and is hereby authorised to purchase such number of ordinary shares in the
Company as may be determined by the Board from time to time on Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad upon such terms and conditions as the Board may deem fit and expedient in the interest of
the Company provided that the aggregate number of shares purchased pursuant to this resolution
does not exceed ten percent (10%) of the total number of issued shares of the Company as quoted
on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad as at the time of purchase(s) and an amount not exceeding
the retained profits of the Company, at the time of purchase(s).

Resolution 6

THAT such authority shall commence upon the passing of this resolution and shall remain in force
until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company unless earlier revoked or
varied by ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company in general meeting.
THAT authority be and is hereby given to the Directors of the Company to decide in their discretion
to retain the ordinary shares in the Company so purchased by the Company as treasury shares
and/or cancel them and/or resell the treasury shares or distribute them as share dividend and/or
subsequently cancel them.
AND THAT authority be and is hereby given to the Directors of the Company to take all such steps
as are necessary (including executing all such documents as may be required) and to enter into
any agreements and arrangements with any party or parties to implement, finalise and give full
effect to the aforesaid with full powers to assent to any conditions, modifications, variations and/
or amendments (if any) as may be imposed by the relevant authorities and to do all such acts and
things as the Directors may deem fit and expedient in the interest of the Company.”
(Please refer to Explanatory Note. 4 below)

7.

Authority to Allot & Issue Shares
“THAT, subject to the Companies Act 2016 (“the Act”), the Constitution of the Company and the
approvals of the relevant governmental / regulatory authorities, where such approval is necessary,
the Directors be and are hereby empowered pursuant to Section 75 and 76 of the Act, to issue
shares in the Company, from time to time and upon such terms and conditions and for such
purposes the Directors may deem fit and expedient in the interest of the Company, provided that
the aggregate number of shares issued pursuant to this resolution does not exceed 10% of the
issued and paid-up capital of the Company for the time being and that the Directors be and also
empowered to obtain approval for the listing of and quotation for the additional shares so issued
from Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and that such authority shall continue to be in force until
the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.”
(Please refer to Explanatory Note. 5 below)

8.

To transact any other business of the Company of which due notice shall have been given.
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By Order of the Board

MUHAMMAD HAFIZ BIN OTHMAN (MIA 37218)
AZLIN AZLINA BINTI BORHAN NORDIN (LS 0008712)
Company Secretaries
Kuala Lumpur
Dated: 13 April 2018

NOTES:
1.

Appointment of Proxy
(a)
A Member of the Company who is entitled to attend and vote at the meeting shall be entitled to appoint any person
as his proxy to attend and vote instead of him.
(b)
A Member of the Company who is an authorised nominee as defined in the Securities Industry (Central Depositories)
Act, 1991 (“SICDA”) may appoint one (1) proxy in respect of each securities account it holds with ordinary shares
of the Company standing to the credit of the said securities account.
(c)
A Member of the Company who is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company
for multiple beneficial owners in one (1) securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of
proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds. An exempt
authorised nominee refers to an authorised nominee defined under SICDA which is exempted from compliance
with the provisions of subsection 25A(1) of SICDA.
(d)
Where an exempt authorized nominee appoints two (2) or more proxies, the proportion of shareholdings to be
represented by each proxy must be specified in the instrument appointing the proxies.
(e)
(f)

(g)

(h)

A proxy may but need not be a Member of the Company. A proxy appointed to attend and vote shall have the same
rights as the Member to speak at the meeting.
The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or his attorney duly authorised
in writing, or if the appointer is a corporation, either under its common seal or the hand of its officer or its duly
authorised attorney.
The instrument of proxy must be deposited at the Share Registrar’s Office situated at Unit 32-01, Level 32, Tower
A, Vertical Business Suite, Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur or its Customer
Service Centre at Unit G-3, Ground Floor, Vertical Podium, Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200
Kuala Lumpur at least forty-eight (48) hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjournment
thereof.
For the purpose of determining a Member who shall be entitled to attend and vote at the meeting, the Company
shall be requesting Bursa Malaysia Depository Sdn Bhd to make available to the Company a Record of Depositors
as at 7 May 2018 and only a depositor whose name appears on the Record of Depositors shall be entitled to attend
the meeting or appoint proxies to attend and vote in his stead.
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2.

Agenda Item No. 1
This item of the Agenda is meant for discussion only. The provisions of Section 340(1)(a) of the Companies Act 2016
require that the audited financial statements and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon be laid before the
Company at its Annual General Meeting. As such this Agenda item is not a business which requires a resolution to be put
to vote by shareholders.

EXPLANATORY NOTES ON SPECIAL BUSINESS:3.

Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a Revenue or Trading Nature
The proposed Resolution 5 is to seek of Shareholders’ Mandate to allow the Company and/or its subsidiaries to enter into
Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a Revenue or Trading Nature and to enable the Company to comply with Paragraph
10.09, Part E of the Listing Requirement for the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The mandate will take effect
from the date of the passing of the Ordinary Resolution until the next Annual General Meeting of the Company. For further
information, please refer to Part A of the Circular to Shareholders dated 13 April 2018 accompanying the Company’s
Annual Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2017.

4.

Proposed Authority for Share Buy-Back by the Company
The proposed Resolution 6, if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company to purchase up to 10% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company by utilising the funds allocated which shall not exceed the retained profits of the
Company. This authority, unless revoked or varied at a general meeting, will expire at the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting of the Company.
For further information, please refer to the Share Buy-Back Statement dated 13 April 2018 accompanying the Company’s
Annual Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2017.

5.

Authority to Allot & Issue Shares
The proposed Resolution 7, if passed, will provide flexibility to the Directors to undertake fund raising activities, including
but not limited to placement of shares for the funding of the Company’s future investment projects, working capital and / or
acquisitions, by the issuance of shares in the Company to such persons at any time, as the Directors may deem fit, without
having to convene a general meeting. This authority, unless revoked or varied by the Company in a general meeting will expire
at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.
At this juncture, there is no decision to issue new shares. If there should be a decision to issue new shares after the general
mandate is sought, the Company will make an announcement in respect thereof.
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FORM OF PROXY
FORM OF PROXY

SERBA DINAMIK HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Company No. 1167905 - P)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
I/We, ……………………………………………...….. NRIC No./Passport No./Company No. ……………………..……..........……...
of ………………………………………………………..……………………………………………………………...................................
being a member/members of SERBA DINAMIK HOLDINGS BERHAD, do hereby appoint …..…….………………............…....
…………………….…………………………………..… (NRIC No.) ………………………………….....…… and/or failing him/her
………………………….....………….....…………......................... (NRIC No.) …………………………..……...………... or failing
him/her the Chairman of the Meeting as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on our behalf at the Second Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held at Entrance 9C, IDCC Shah Alam, Level 7, Jalan Pahat L 15/L, Seksyen 15 Shah
Alam, 40200 Shah Alam, Selangor Darul Ehsan on Monday, 14 May 2018 at 9.00 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof.
My/our proxy is to vote as indicated below:
No.
Resolutions
Ordinary Resolutions
1.
To re-elect Dato’ Mohamed Nor Bin Abu Bakar as Director of the Company.
2.
To re-elect Sharifah Irina Binti Syed Ahmad Radzi as Director of the Company.
3.
To approve the payment of Directors’ fees and benefits up to an amount not exceeding
RM1,500,000 in respect of the financial period from 1 January 2018 until the conclusion of
the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.
4.
To re-appoint KPMG PLT as auditors of the Company and to authorise the Directors to fix
their remuneration.
5.
Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate and Proposed New Shareholders’ Mandate
for Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a Revenue or Trading Nature.
6.
Proposed Authority for Share Buy-Back
7.
Authority to Allot and Issue Shares

FOR

AGAINST

Please indicate with an “X” in the spaces provided whether you wish your votes to be cast for or against the resolutions. In
the absence of specific directions, your proxy will vote or abstain as he thinks fit.
Dated this ………….. day of …………………………………2018
No. of shares held

CDS Account No.

…………………………………………
Signature of Shareholder

For appointment of two proxies, percentage of shareholdings to be represented by the proxies
No. of Shares
Percentage
Proxy 1
%
Proxy 2
%
100
%
Notes:
(a)
(b)
(c)

(d)
(e)
(f)
(g)

(h)

A Member of the Company who is entitled to attend and vote at the meeting shall be entitled to appoint any person as his proxy to attend
and vote instead of him.
A Member of the Company who is an authorised nominee as defined in the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act, 1991
(“SICDA”) may appoint one (1) proxy in respect of each securities account it holds with ordinary shares of the Company standing to the
credit of the said securities account.
A Member of the Company who is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial
owners in one (1) securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee
may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds. An exempt authorised nominee refers to an authorised nominee defined under
SICDA which is exempted from compliance with the provisions of subsection 25A(1) of SICDA.
Where an exempt authorised nominee appoints two (2) or more proxies, the proportion of shareholdings to be represented by each proxy
must be specified in the instrument appointing the proxies.
A proxy may but need not be a Member of the Company. A proxy appointed to attend and vote shall have the same rights as the Member
to speak at the meeting.
The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or his attorney duly authorised in writing, or if the
appointer is a corporation, either under its common seal or the hand of its officer or its duly authorised attorney.
The instrument of proxy must be deposited at the Share Registrar’s Office situated at Unit 32-01, Level 32, Tower A, Vertical Business
Suite, Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur or its Customer Service Centre at Unit G-3, Ground Floor,
Vertical Podium, Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur at least forty-eight (48) hours before the time
appointed for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof.
For the purpose of determining a Member who shall be entitled to attend and vote at the meeting, the Company shall be requesting
Bursa Malaysia Depository Sdn Bhd to make available to the Company a Record of Depositors as at 7 May 2018 and only a depositor
whose name appears on the Record of Depositors shall be entitled to attend the meeting or appoint proxies to attend and vote in his
stead.
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